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B - 1,095
- 10,167 8,730
B 1,255 1,209
)
CKHH CKHH
- 638 735
- HPH
9,216 910
- HUD
5,337 579
B 9,198 8,764
B 3,727 1,584
- UK
- 740
B 5,529 5,374
B 146,041 156,913
- nGen
13,256 13,659
B 2,395 2,203
B 3,203 4,021
h 1,102 1,102
©
CKHH
30,967 25,060
381,775 393,258
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Fok Kin Ning, Canning

2011 14
2011 23
(2022 12 31 ) |11 10
71

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand

CK CKHH
HK HK
HK
TPG
CK

Cenovus Energy Inc.
PT Tbk PT Indosat Tbk

CKHH
2020 2022 12 31

2021

61/501



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Ip Sing Chi
2011 14
(2022 12 31 )y [11 10
69

Westports Holdings Berhad
Piraeus Port Authority S.A.
Orient Overseas (International) Limited

C0sCo COSCO SHIPPING Development Co., Ltd
2014 12 the Hong Kong Port Development Council
the Hong Kong Container Terminal Operators Association Limited
2000 2001
40
2020 2022 12 31
C0sco COSCO SHIPPING Energy Transportation
Co., Ltd.
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Edith Shih

2017

(2022 12 31 )

71

University of the Philippines

Columbia University

The Chartered Governance Institute CGl The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute ( HKCGI )
Chartered Secretary Chartered Governance Professional

CK CKHH
PT Tbk PT Duta Intidaya Tbk
CKHH
CGl 2018 2020
HKCGI 2011 2014

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Finanical Reporting
Council Securities and Futures Appeals
Tribunal Hong Kong Management Association

2020 2022 12 31

63/501



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000000000000000000(E25351)
OoooO0O0ooO0oooooodood

Lee Tung Wan, Diana

2022
(2022 12 31 )
54
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
2011 2016
IR 2016 2021 12
2020 2022 12 31
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Chan Tze Leung, Robert

2011 14

(2022 12 31 )y [11 10

76

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

Long March Capital Limited
39

2011 12 31 United Overseas Bank
2020 2022 12 31
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Fong Chi Wai, Alex

2020 11

(2022 12 31 ) 10

66

University of Hong Kong
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

New York University
City University of Hong Kong

Chartered Institute of
Logistics and Transport

Hong Kong University Business School
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Business School

HK
HK HK

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce CEO 2006 2011
25

2020 2022 12 31
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Graeme Allan Jack

2011 14

(2022 12 31 y |11 10

72

The Greenbrier Companies Inc.
HUTCHMED (China) Limited

2006 PricewaterhouseCoopers
2020 2022 12 31
COSCO COSCO SHIPPING Development Co., Ltd.
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Sng Sow-Mei Poon Sow Mei
2011 14

(2022 12 31 ) |11 11
81

CK
Prosperity Real Estate Investment Trust
ARA ARA Asset Management (Prosperity) Limited

CK

PPA(P) Pingat Pentadbiran Awam (Perak)

2020 2022 12 31
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Wong Kwai Lam

2015 12

(2022 12 31 )

73

Leicester University, England

ARA
K K. Wah International Holdings Limited
Langham Hospitality Investments Limited
Langham Hospitality Investments
LHIL LHIL Manager Limited

CK

IncitAdv Consultants Limited

New Asia College

CUHK CUHK Medical Centre Limited
Hong Kong Grand Opera Company Ltd

Securities and Futures Commission

33
Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
2009 2010
2020 2022 12 31
2023 26
2023 26

2023 26
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Seah Bee Eng Alias Jennifer Loh

2023 26

(2022 12 31 )

70

ISCA
CAANZ

2020 2022 12 31

MPACT
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Tony Fan-Cheong Chan

2023 26
(2022 12 31 )
71
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers American

Association for Advancement of Science and Society for Industrial & Applied Math

King Abdullah University of Science and Technology
KAUST KAUST Investment Management Company
King Abdulaziz City for Science and Technology

Future Investment Initiative Institute FIl
Institute
Riyadh BioTech City
Skolkovo Institute of Science and Technology
The Hong Kong Academy of Science
Yidan Prize Foundation
Academic Ranking of World Universities /
King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals /
Korea Advanced Institute of Science & Technology /
Research Development and Innovation Supreme Committee of Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia

2020 2022 12 31
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Ivor Chow
HIT

2021
HPH
20
HPH HPH

HPH HPH
2011 2011
IR
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario

Jimmy Ng
IR
2022

2017

2008 HPH

20
CPA

Lawrence Shum
HPH
COSCO-HIT

1996 HPH

North and East China
26

IR

HPH
1998 HPH
HPH
2008 HPH
2016

HPH

HIT
2001
HPH
2021
ACT
HPH
HPH

Chinese People ”s Political Consultative Conference
2022 10 Shenzhen Ports Association

Accountants in England and Wales
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Ma Xiaoli
COSCO-HIT ACT
COSCO-HIT ACT HPH
2021 HPH
2005 HPH HPH
13
Raymond Lam
HIT
HIT HPH
2015 HPH COSCO-HIT
27
Raymond Chan
HPH 2021
HPH
1992 HPH
HPH
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HPH HPH
HPH
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HPH
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HPH HPH

HPH HPH 100
HPH 30 12 31
90

CDP

CDP
HPH

HPH

HPH
HPH
HPH
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HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH
HPH
HPH 2018 12 31

12,289

HPH
HPH
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2008
2016
2020 31 EU
2020 12 31 2020 12 EU 2021
EU EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement EU
2021 5 1
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH HPH HPH
HPH
HPH HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
2020 3 11
HPH
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HPH
HPH HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
2021 12 31
10 61 87
15

HPH

27

HPH

HPH
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HPH HPH HPH
HPH HPH
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CKHH HPH
CKHH HPH
15
HPH
CKHH
HPH
HPH
HPH
YICTP
YICTP
10
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HPH
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CKHH
15
CKHH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
ACT MTL
HIT
HPHT MTL
2020 10 30 HPHT
HPH
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2013
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HPH

HPH
HPH
1990 2000 2003
2019 2020 HPH
HPH

GDP

HPH

2019 2020

HPH
HPH

HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH
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HPH

HPH

HPH
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HPH

10 50
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HPH
10.0
5.0
HPH
5.0 10.0
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HPH
HPH
HPH HPH
HPHT 13 12
HPH
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YICTP YICTP
50
HPH HPH
2023 HPH
2,619,246,222
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
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HPH
HPH HPH

HPH
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50 75 HPH
25
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HPH
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25
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HPH
HPH
2.5 2011 12 31
HPH 10
HPH
http://www. info.gov.hk/hkma/eng/statistics/index_efdhk.htm
12 31 12 31
2022 12 2022 12 31
HPH 2011
45.88
25.0
3.0
25.0
25.0 50.0
6.0
25.0
50.0 75.0
12.0
75.0
18.0
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2013 25 2012 12 31
2,213,022 0.8152
2012
HPH
HPH HPH 50.0
0.5
HPH
HPH 1.0
HPH
HPH 0.5
HPH
100.0
HPH
HPH
500
2.5 HPH
HPH
500 12.5 500
1.5 HPH
HPH
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HPH

IT IT
HPH HPH

0.0325

2023 30

20 15 2013
2037 12 31 2.1
20.315
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37 14
100
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2013 2037 12 31
2.1
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18
2023
50
2013 2037 12 31
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10
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HPH

109 FRS 109
FRS 109
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21,666,672 100.2
33,902 0.2
1,188 0.0
21,631,582 100.0

33,902 0.0

7,298,729 15.8

53,609,377 115.9

46,276,746 100.0

HPH HPH HPHT
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HIT COSCO-HIT ACT
2019
MTL
16
62
170
2022 8.9 TEU
1,600
2,600
2022 12 31
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12
100
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HIT RTGC
34 RTGC
34 RTGC
24
2022
LNG
LNG
LNG C LNG
LNG
LNG
C
2,000 LPG LPG
SZCBEA
2022 6 Shenzhen Cross-Border E-Commerce Association SZCBEA
2022 7 SZCBEA
SZCBEA
SZCBEA
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1
2022
TEU 2021
2022 4,174.5
265.7
3,004.0
2022 146.2
500.4 17
4,280.9 2021
1,007.5 29 2,519.7
1,099.0
2022
10,395.2 HPH
HPH 2017
2022 12 31
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5,300
2022 1,263.1
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EDINETOOOO

OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)

HPH
12

12,166.2

2021 4,474.7

2021

2021 417.9

1,097.9

2021

HPH

29,038.0
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HPH

2021
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10
19
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3,298
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HPH

2,270 TEU 2021

2022 11

2021

13,244.1

2021
2021

2021

652.8
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4,700
24

4,000
45

12
SEASPAN BRIGHTNESS

HPH 2022
RTGC

HIT COSCO-HIT ACT

40 RTGC RTGC
400
MSC SVEVA MANCHESTER MAERSK CMA CGM ALEXANDER VON HUMBOLDT CMA CGM GEORG FORSTER CMA CGM JEAN MERMOZ
EVELYN MAERSK

12 2022

2022 eBCN
2021 eRO

2022
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G
RTGC G 2023
2022 G RTGC
2022 HIT
2023
2025 40 RTGC
HPH
460
HPH
HPH
HPH
2023
2023 8,711,101,022
HPH
99 14 0.04 389 0.00
100 1,000 2,922 9.18 2,785,840 0.03
1,001 10,000 16,449 51.68 82,770,682 0.95
10,001 1,000,000 12,304 38.65 823,834,884 9.46
1,000,001 142 0.45 7,801,709,227 89.56
31,831 100.00 8,711,101,022 100.00
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2023
CK 2,619,246,222 | 30.07
2,406,227,022 | 27.62
CK
2,406,227,022 | 27.62
905,364,000 | 10.39
PSA
315,764,400 3.62 905,364,000 | 10.39
1,313,144,754 | 15.07

CK CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (CKHH ) CKHH CK
CK Hutchison Global Investments Limited CKHGI
HPGH HPH
CKHH CKHH CKH CKH
2.45
HPGH CKHGI HPGH HPH
PSA PSA
PSA
PSA

114/501



EDINETOOOO

OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

20
2023

2,406,227,022 | 27.62
1,546,865,810 | 17.76
905,364,000 | 10.39
DBS 749,201,810 8.60
577,367,967 6.63
PSA 330,814,600 3.80
HSBC 239,162,467 2.75
DBSN 215,283,485 2.47
BNP 131,656,849 1.51
10 | OCBC 78,139,301 0.90
11 | DB 47,727,203 0.55
12 46,836,380 0.54
13 43,014,272 0.49
14 | UOB 39,505,871 0.45
15 36,689,300 0.42
16 | BPSS 26,574,367 0.31

DBS
17 16,475,140 0.19
18 15,185,000 0.17
19 | OCBC 13,399,148 0.15
20 13,048,262 0.15
7,478,538,254 | 85.85

2023 54.83
HPH 723
2022 1,967,593 0.265 0.355 0.156 0.225
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)
2022 12 31
( (
)
)
HPHT 10,000,000 10 2,425 | 24,246.8 [ 100
100
100
)

10

12
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10
26,002.0 464,136 25,331.3 452,164 2.98 53 2.91 52
2020 12 )
11
27,106.8 483,856 26,409.9 471,417 3.11 56 3.03 54
2021 12 )
12
26,807.0 478,505 26,110.1 466,065 3.08 55 3.00 54
2022 12 )
HPH
10
24,229.3 432,493 23,558.6 420,521 2.78 50 2.70 48
2020 12 )
11
22,952.3 409,699 22,255.4 397,259 2.63 47 2.55 46
2021 12 )
12
21,631.6 386,124 20,934.7 373,684 2.48 44 2.40 43
2022 12 )
2011 18 HPH
2022 0.235 32.87 0.330 34.09
2022 0.235 32.87 0.330 34.09
2022 0.215 30.08 0.300 30.99
2022 0.184 25.74 0.260 26.86
2022 10 0.163 22.80 0.230 23.76
2022 11 0.186 26.02 0.250 25.82
2022 12 0.194 27.14 0.260 26.86
2023 0.205 28.68 0.270 27.89
2023 0.184 25.74 0.250 25.82
2023 0.189 26.44 0.250 25.82
2023 0.189 26.44 0.255 26.34
2023 0.183 25.60 0.250 25.82
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( ) (
10
1,045.3 12.00
2020 2020 12 31
11
1,263.1 14.50
2021 2021 12 31
12
1,263.1 14.50
2022 2022 12 31
()
10
3.8
2020 2020 12 31
11
9.2
2021 2021 12 31
12
3.6
2022 2022 12 31
( ) (A B)+ Bx 100
A
B
)
10
2020 2020 12 31
11
2021 2021 12 31
12
2022 2022 12 31
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HPH

HPH
HPH

HPH HPH HPH
14

CDP CDP
coP

CDP
CDP CDP

HPH 12 31 HPH
2011 25 2011 12 31
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HPH
HPH
HPH

HPH

21
75

9.2

905 906
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HPH 2011 25 HPH

CKHH

6.1.1 36 806 2023
25
HPH

50.0

20.0

HPH
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HPH

HPH HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH

CbP

HPH

HPH

HPH

CbP
CDP
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HPH
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CDP

HPH CDP
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12

CDP HPH

HPH
9.2
HPH

HPH
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HPH HPH

36

HPH HPH

HPH HPH

48

HPH

HPH
SGXNET

HPH
HPH HPH
HPH
HPH
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HPH
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HPH

38 59 131

23
103
193
Independent Auditor®™s Report

2023 26
17.85
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4(a)

2022 2021
12,166,251 217,168 13,244,074 236,407
(4,174,560) (74,516)  (4,474,689) (79,873)
(265,661) 4,742)  (257,204) (4,591)
(3,003,976) (53,621)  (3,050,872) (54,458)
146,167 2,609 417,901 7,460
(587,283) (10,483)  (500,424) (8,933)
(7,885,313)  (140,753) (7,865,288)  (140,395)
4,280,938 76,415 5,378,786 96,011
(673,345) (12,019)  (616,466) (11,004)
(81,423) (1,453) (81,530) (1,455)
74,730 1,334 115,580 2,063
3,600,900 64,276 4,796,370 85,615
(1,081,199) (19,299)  (1,269,217) (22,656)
2,519,701 44,977 3,527,153 62,960
(1,420,667) (25,359)  (1,780,002) (31,773)
1,099,034 19,618 1,747,151 31,187
12.62 2.25 20.06 3.58
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2022 2021
2,519,701 44,977 3,527,153 62,960
(138,037) (2,464) 240,146 4,287
(12,341) (220) 5,088 91
339,490 6,060 253,664 4,528
774 14 15,783 282
(25,488) (455) (604) 1)
(65,875) (1,176) 1,813 32
(473,051) (8,444) 139,745 2,494
(374,528) (6,685) 655,635 11,703
2,145,173 38,201 4,182,788 74,663
(1,181,801) (21,095)  (1,841,740) (32,875)
963,372 17,196 2,341,048 41,788
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2022 12 31

2022 2021
10 20,357,742 363,386 21,646,925 386,398
11 762,911 13,618 654,524 11,683
12 33,178,968 592,245 34,579,438 617,243
13 9,400 168 10,787 193
14(a) 4,499,154 80,310 4,833,360 86,275
14(b) 11,270,044 201,170 11,270,044 201,170
15 204,026 3,642 957,537 17,092
16 3,957,599 70,643 3,018,035 53,872
17 685,042 12,228 509,667 9,098
23 123,213 2,199 303,782 5,423
18 5,059 90 11,978 214
75,053,158 1,339,699 77,796,077 1,388,660
19 10,395,168 185,554 11,048,007 197,207
20 3,118,233 55,660 4,033,078 71,990
79,609 1,421 86,564 1,545
13,593,010 242,635 15,167,649 270,743
21 6,014,844 107,365 6,713,045 119,828
22 5,067,659 90,458 7,190,345 128,348
308,015 5,498 421,976 7,532
11,390,518 203,321 14,325,366 255,708
2,202,492 39,314 842,283 15,035
77,255,650 1,379,013 78,638,360 1,403,695
22 21,971,912 392,199 21,729,962 387,880
18 8,883,533 158,571 9,268,299 165,439
24 123,459 2,204 240,976 4,301
30,978,904 552,973 31,239,237 557,620
46,276,746 826,040 47,399,123 846,074
25 68,553,839 1,223,686 68,553,839 1,223,686
(41,746,767)  (745,180) (41,447,029)  (739,829)
HPH 26,807,072 478,506 27,106,810 483,857
19,469,674 347,534 20,292,313 362,218
46,276,746 826,040 47,399,123 846,074
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26

19
20

21

25

2022 2021
21,666,672 386,750 22,969,782 410,011
5,049 90 4,868 87

1,014 18 1,080 19

6,063 108 5,948 106
41,153 735 23,353 417
(35,090) (626) (17,405) (311)
21,631,582 386,124 22,952,377 409,700
68,553,839 1,223,686 68,553,839 1,223,686
(46,922,257)  (837,562) (45,601,462)  (813,986)
21,631,582 386,124 22,952,377 409,700
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2022 12 31
2022 2021
27(a) 8,067,306 144,001 8,624,092 153,940
(644,959) (11,513)  (500,516) (8,934)
(1,572,662) (28,072)  (1,388,674) (24,788)
5,849,685 104,417 6,734,902 120,218
(1,170,853) (20,900)  (422,659) (7,544)
(407,400) (7,272)  (408,300) (7,288)
(511,344) 9,127)  (232,267) (4,146)
978 17 13,482 241
19,034 340 28,854 515
114,423 2,042 147,223 2,628
136,781 2,442 58,983 1,053
524,800 9,368 276,650 4,938
(1,293,581) (23,090)  (538,034) (9,604)
5,273,500 94,132 7,800,000 139,230
(7,198,000)  (128,484) (8,182,000)  (146,049)
(64,414) (1,150)
(14,381) (257) (12,747) (228)
(10,476) (187)
HPH

(1,263,110) (22,547)  (1,236,976) (22,080)

(2,006,952) (35,824)  (1,208,836) (21,578)

(5,208,943) (92,980)  (2,915,449) (52,041)
(652,839) (11,653) 3,281,419 58,573
11,048,007 197,207 7,766,588 138,634

19 10,395,168 185,554 11,048,007 197,207
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2022 12 31
2022 68,553,839 69,619  (297,461)  (24,808) (3,269) 596,658 (41,787,768) 27,106,810 20,292,313 47,399,123
1,099,034 1,099,034 1,420,667 2,519,701
(138,037) (138,037) (138,037)
(12,341) (12,341) (12,341)|
339,490 339,490 339,490
774 774 774
(17,001) (17,001) (8,487)  (25,488)
(53,047) 395 (52,652)  (13,223)  (65,875)
(255,895) (255,895)  (217,156)  (473,051)
(325,943)  (11,946) 339,490 774 (138,037) (135,662)  (238,866)  (374,528)
(325,943)  (11,946) 339,490 774 (138,037) 1,099,034 963,372 1,181,801 2,145,173
(581) 581
(1,263,110) (1,263,110) (1,263,110)
(2,004,440) (2,004,440)
2022 12 31 68,553,839  (256,905)  (309,407) 314,682 (2,495) 458,621 (41,951,263) 26,807,072 19,469,674 46,276,746
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2021 68,553,839 9,390)  (303,452)  (278,472)  (19,052) 356,512 (42,297,943) 26,002,042 19,601,893 45,603,935
1,747,151 1,747,151 1,780,002 3,527,153

240,146 240,146 240,146

5,088 5,088 5,088

253,664 253,664 253,664

15,783 15,783 15,783

(1,975) (1,975) 1,371 (604)

910 903 1,813 1,813

79,378 79,378 60,367 139,745

78,313 5,991 253,664 15,783 240,146 593,897 61,738 655,635

78,313 5,991 253,664 15,783 240,146 1,747,151 2,341,048 1,841,740 4,182,788

696 696 54,226 54,922

(1,236,976) (1,236,976) (1,236,976)

(1,205,546) (1,205,546)

2021 12 31 68,553,839 69,619  (297,461)  (24,808) (3,269) 596,658 (41,787,768) 27,106,810 20,292,313 47,399,123
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1,223,686 1,243 (5,310) (443) (58) 10,650  (745,912) 483,857 362,218 846,074
19,618 19,618 25,359 44,977
(2,464) (2,464) (2,464)
(220) (220) (220)
6,060 6,060 6,060
14 14 14
(303) (303) (151) (455)|
(947) 7 (940) (236) (1,176)
(4,568) (4,568) (3,876) (8,444)
(5,818) (213) 6,060 14 (2,464) (2,422) (4,264) (6,685)
(5,818) (213) 6,060 14 (2,464) 19,618 17,196 21,095 38,291
(10) 10
(22,547)  (22,547) (22,547)
(35,779) (35,779)
1,223,686 (4,586) (5,523) 5,617 (45) 8,186  (748,830) 478,506 347,534 826,040
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1,223,686 (168) (5,417) (4,971) (340) 6,364  (755,018) 464,136 349,894 814,030
31,187 31,187 31,773 62,960
4,287 4,287 4,287
91 91 91
4,528 4,528 4,528
282 282 282
(35) (35) 24 1)
16 16 32 32
1,417 1,417 1,078 2,494
1,398 107 4,528 282 4,287 10,601 1,102 11,703
1,398 107 4,528 282 4,287 31,187 41,788 32,875 74,663
12 12 968 980
(22,080)  (22,080) (22,080)
(21,519)  (21,519)
1,223,686 1,243 (5,310) (443) (58) 10,650  (745,912) 483,857 362,218 846,074
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2022 12 31
2022 68,553,839 (45,601,462) 22,952,377
(57,685) (57,685)
(1,263,110) (1,263,110)
2022 12 31 68,553,839 (46,922,257) 21,631,582
2021 68,553,839 (44,324,508) 24,229,331
(39,978) (39,978)
(1,236,976) (1,236,976)
2021 12 31 68,553,839 (45,601,462) 22,952,377
2022 1,223,686 (813,986) 409,700
(1,030) (1,030)
(22,547) (22,547)
2022 12 31 1,223,686 (837,562) 386,124
2021 1,223,686 (791,192) 432,494
(714) (714)
(22,080) (22,080)
2021 12 31 1,223,686 (813,986) 409,700
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HPH
2011 25
HPH 2004
2001
HPH
098632
#14 07 HPH 2011 18
SGX-ST
HPH
HPH HPH
HPH
HKICPA HKFRS
HKFRS IFRS
HKFRS IFRS
HKFRS

2022
HKICPA
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HKAS @
HKAS @
HKFRS @
HKAS @
HKAS 12 @
HKFRS 16 @
HKAS @
HKERS 10 HKAS 28 ®
D 5023
@ 02
@)
HKFRS
@)
2022 12 31
© @
2022 12 31
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4
@
2022 2021
11,687,782 12,734,118
261,648 402,551
35,743 35,107
6,953 7,002
1,683 1,619
11,993,809 13,180,397
172,442 63,677
12,166,251 13,244,074
®)
HPH
HPH
HPH
2022 2021 2022 2021
3,266,293 3,715,152 20,140,660 21,213,393
8,899,958 9,528,922 54,912,498 56,582,684
12,166,251 13,244,074 75,053,158 77,796,077
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2022 2021
17 16,239 25,462
140 10,493
30,647 418
17,697
14,884 13,983
1,183 2,676
1,295,000 1,294,106
524 542
334,206 334,206
1,362,530 1,410,335
11,716 11,683
62,787 64,413
1,348,464 1,359,949
120,855 128,429
53,457
2022 12 31
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2022 2021
309,844 275,488
317,210 288,590

1,631 3,139

722 989

43,938 48,260

673,345 616,466
2022 2021

1,458,883 1,529,039

(377,684) (259,822)

1,081,199 1,269,217
2022 2021

3,607,593 4,762,320

25.6 945,970 1,217,811
(55,663) (170,860)
(17,778) (8,281)

99,803 93,561
128,831 155,674
(4,534) (4,403)
(16,378) (14,430)
977 37

(29) 108
1,081,199 1,269,217
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2022 2021
2020 2020 12 31
7.70 670,755
2021 2021 30
6.50 566,221
2021 2021 12 31
8.00 696,888
2022 2022 30
6.50 566,222
1,263,110 1,236,976
2023 2022 2022 12 31
8.00 2021 8.00
696.9 2021 696.9 2023 24
2023 12 31
2022 12 31 HPH
1,099,034,000 2021 1,747,151,000
8,711,101,022 2021 8,711,101,022

2022 2021 12 31
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10

2022
15,065,231 6,152,202 1,098 428,394 21,646,925
29,840 35,583 1,038 66,461
" 34,797 187,735 25,215 247,747
(625,007) (681,429) (95) (67,715)  (1,374,246)
71) (67) (838)
(178,732) (41,116) (8,459) (228,307)
14,326,129 5,652,204 1,003 378,406 20,357,742
2022 12 31
21,159,889 13,521,297 9,484 1,071,442 35,762,112
(6,833,760)  (7,869,093) (8,481) (693,036) (15,404,370)
14,326,129 5,652,204 1,003 378,406 20,357,742
2021
15,616,352 6,743,300 2,503 476,799 22,838,954
962 11,299 12,261
" 17,533 111,160 21,308 150,001
(627,390) (720,927) (592) (73,109)  (1,422,018)
(162) (5,658) (813) (6,633)
57,936 13,028 3,39 74,360
15,065,231 6,152,202 1,098 428,394 21,646,925
2021 12 31
21,338,353 13,328,113 9,484 1,070,764 35,746,714
(6,273,122)  (7,175,911) (8,386) (642,370) (14,099,789)
15,065,231 6,152,202 1,098 428,394 21,646,925
2022 12 31
24,218,000 2021 2022 12
31 2021 3,275,000

158/501
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2022

26,449
692

2021

14,912
126

27,141

15,038

2022

11,415
301

2021

10,890
793

11,716

11,683

2022

654,524
361,361
(247,747)

(5.,227)

2021

478,216
324,582
(150,001)

1,727

762,911

654,524

159/501
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7,194,832,000
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2022

34,579,438
(1,295,000)
(105,470)

2021

35,843,729
(1,294,106)
29,815

33,178,968

34,579,438

48,220,758
(15,041,790)

48,357,185
(13,777,747)

33,178,968

34,579,438

2022 12 31

160/501
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2022

10,787
(524)
(863)

2021

11,056
(542)
273

9,400

10,787

14,939
(5.,539)

16,966
(6,179)

9,400

10,787

2022

4,833,360
(334,206)

2021

5,167,566
(334,206)

4,499,154

4,833,360

8,440,000
(3,940,846)

8,440,000
(3,606,640)

4,499,154

4,833,360

161/501
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20
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Cccu

2022 2021
11,270,044 11,270,044
11,270,044 11,270,044
2022 2021
11,270,044 11,270,044
11,270,044 11,270,044

2022

2021
10
0.5 0.5 CGU
14 CGU
21

162/501



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15

2022 2021
204,026 310,937
646,600
204,026 957,537
530,000,000 593,600,000 2021 530,000,000
646,600,000 4.0 2023
2022
12 31 20
2022 2021 12 31
23.84
41.31
()
)
2022 12 31
2022 2021
(81,423) (81,530)
(25,488) (604)

(106,911) (82,134)

163/501



EDINETOOOO

OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)

16

120,000,000
HIBOR 2.1
2,200,000
2022 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
COSCO-HIT
1
1
2
1
vepicr @
1
2

2021 120,000,000

2023

20

164/501
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2022 2021
4,887,599 3,825,835
122,200

(930, 000) (930, 000)
3,957,599 3,018,035

2021 12 31
2022 12 31

50.00

40.00

50.00

50.00

49.00

39.73

28.21
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2022

74,730
(65,875)

2021

115,580
1,813

8,855

117,393

2022

29,701
280,109
50,198

325,034

2021

39,151
283,000
45,759
56,190

85,567

685,042

509,667

2022

(5,059)
8,883,533

2021

(11,978)
9,268,299

8,878,474

9,256,321

165/501
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2022 12 31

2021
2021

2021 12 31

@
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(12,353) 519,730 8,294,176 460,431 (5,663) 9,256,321
6,615 (21,781)  (355,578) (7,164) 224 (377,684)
28 (191) (163)
(5.738) 497,977 7,938,598 453,267 (5,630) 8,878,474
(19,449) 547,006 8,652,669 343,323 (6,893) 9,516,656
7,108 (27,250)  (358,493) 117,577 1,236 (259,822)
12) (26) (469) (6) (513)
(12,353) 519,730 8,294,176 460,431 (5.663) 9,256,321
2022 12 31 87,642,000
115,381,000
63,225,000 2021 12 31 90,532,000
24,417,000 2021 12 31 24,849,000
2022 2021

1,007 223

10,245 3,017

9,215 11,364

11 10,197

3,939 48

24,417 24,849

12

166/501
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2022 2021
1,614,255 1,620,219
8,780,913 9,427,788

10,395,168 11,048,007

2022 2021

5,049 4,868

2022 2021

34 43
10 10
56 47
100 100

2022 2021

48 76

5 3
47 21
100 100
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2022 2021
1,897,009 3,464,903
d (47,339) (50,786)
1,849,670 3,414,117
393,935 341,978
a 11,805 17,955
a 149,223 147,218
b 593,600 109,800
c 120,000
2,010
3,118,233 4,033,078
2022 2021
356 366
a 658 714
1,014 1,080
2022 2021
47 48
39 41
14 11
100 100
2022 2021
100 100

@

168/501
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4.0 2021
12 31 2.3
HIBOR 2.1
2022 12 31 47,339,000 2021 50,786,000

HKFRS

2022 2021
50,786 51,043

12 650

(3,116) (251)
(335) (563)

(8) (93)

47,339 50,786

169/501
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21

2022 2021
5,706,185 6,403,773
108,756 115,756
12,391 12,100
12,847
24
107,473 100,958
3,016 2,898
64,176 77,560
6,014,844 6,713,045
2022 2021
6,456 5,642
32,851 16,477
b 1,846 1,234
41,153 23,353
2022 2021
87 83
10 15
3 2
100 100
2022 2021
4 5
80 71
16 24
100 100
2022 12 31

170/501
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2021 12 31

2021 2022
2019 11
2021

1.50
2022 12 31

2.3
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85,400,000

2024

500

2026

70,000,000 78,400,000
2.0
5,070,000 10,370,000 15,440,000
11,700,000 11,700,000
5,070,000 22,070,000 27,140,000
(2,341) (98,088) (100, 429)
5,067,659 21,971,912 27,039,571
3,298,000 10,140,000 13,438,000
3,900,000 11,700,000 15,600,000
7,198,000 21,840,000 29,038,000
(7,655) (110,038) (117,693)
7,190,345 21,729,962 28,920,307
2023 2027
2.875 500
2026 2.00 500 2026
3.1 2021

171/501



23

€Y

2022 12 31

EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 2021
20 11
80 89
100 100
2022 2021
123,213 303,782

2021 12 31
HKAS 19 2011
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2022 2021
3.70 3.80 1.20 1.50
3.50 3.50
5.00 6.00 5.00 6.00
2022 2021
1,291,827 1,699,440
(1,168,614) (1,395,658)
123,213 303,782
(1,395,658) 1,699,440 303,782
(46,377) (619) (46,996)
(17,373) 21,545 4,172
(63,750) 20,926 (42,824)
4,607 4,607
158,689 158,689
(136) (136)
(301,197) (301,197)
163,160 (301,197) (138,037)
292 292
(6,172) 6,172
118,617 (118,617)
15,189 (15,189)
(1,168,614) 1,291,827 123,213

173/501
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(1,513,663) 1,599,377 85,714
(52,446) (383) (52,829)
(5.744) 5,579 (165)
(58,190) 5,196 (52,994)
5,473 5,473
77,582 77,582
121 121
156,970 156,970
83,176 156,970 240,146
30,916 30,916
(6,711) 6,711
98,565 (98,565)
1,165 (1,165)
(1,395, 658) 1,699,440 303,782
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2022 2021

1 1

43 55

3 3

1 1

0 0

7 7

1 1

60 72

5

4

5

11 8

34 22

6 6

100 100

2022 2021

Aaa/AAA 16 17

Aal/AA+ 21 15
Aa2/AA

Aa3/AA- 8

Al/A+ 15 14

A2/A 5 9

A3/A- 11 9

Baal/BBB+ 9

Baa2/BBB 3

2

12 8

100 100

175/501
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1994
ORSO
2022 164
3.5
2022 12 31 ORSO
2022 12 31 1,127,000 2021
981,000 2022 12 31
2022 12 31 2021
0.25 1.3 1.3
0.25 0.2 0.2
18,401,000 (2021 32,000,000 )
2022 12 31 5.0 2021 6.0
78,031,000 2021

75,435,000

176/501
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2022 2021
12,847 115,654
21 (12,847)

115,654

16,674 5,859

106,785 119,463

123,459 240,976

2021 2021 12 31 2022 12 31 8,711,101,022 68,553,839

177/501
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2022 2021

10,000 10,000

45,868,723 47,171,833

(24,212,051) (24,212,051)

21,666,672 22,969,782

HPH HPHT 2011
HPH HPHT 67,280,000,000
HPH HPHT
HPHT HPH

31

178/501
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179/501

2022 2021
4,280,938 5,378,786
3,003,976 3,050,872

(140) (10,493)
(19,034) (28,854)
(172,442) (63,677)
7,093,298 8,326,634
6,955 12,784
1,628,943 (882,476)
(9,121) 8,417
(695,301) 1,136,655
42,532 22,078
8,067,306 8,624,092
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(b)
2022 3,294,669 10,107,454 15,518,184 28,077 17,959 28,966,343
(2,006,952) (3,298,000) 5,273,500 (3,900,000) (14,381) (3,945,833)
2,512 2,512
5,067,659 (5,067,659)
2,004,440 2,004,440
24,765 24,765
3,331 17,074 23,359  (340,264) 722 (295,778)
2022 12 31 5,067,659 10,330,369 11,641,543  (312,187) 29,065 26,756,449
2022 53,577,000

180/501
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2021 3,990,570 17,563,628 7,764,545 297,524 30,077 29,646,344
(1,208,836) (3,992,000) (4,190,000) 7,735,586 (12,747) (1,667,997)
3,290 3,290

3,294,669 (3,294,669)

1,205,546 1,205,546

(360) (360)

1,430 28,495 18,053  (269,447) 989  (220,480)

2021 12 31 3,294,669 10,107,454 15,518,184 28,077 17,959 28,966,343
2021 67,479,000

181/501



28

@

(b)

©

©)

11 12
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2022 2021
62,064 45,883
1,241,198

2022 2021
2,590,767 42,365

11

2022 2021
2,180 1,669

2022 2021
48,831 66,468
28,823 43,527

14,690

92,344 109,995
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29

15 16 20 21
()
2022 2021
12,819 11,554
a
b 43,799 43,029
c 101,329 182,376
29,308 28,804
12,109 11,956
e
17,189 10,211
e
f
25,809 25,060
21,029 3,552
72
g 154,856 150,362
I
) 48,676 46,712
@
)
©
@ 120,000,000 HIBOR 2.1 2021  HIBOR
2.1 530,000,000 593,600,000 2021
530,000,000 646,600,000 4.0 2021
12 31 90,000,000 109,800,000
2.3

183/501
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®©
™

2,500,000 19,500,000

2012 2022 12 31
2022 12
HPH YEPICT
(6H) 500
2.5
HPH 39.73
@ 500
12.5 500
1.5 HPH
39.73
2022 12 31 500
2022 2021 12 31 2.5
2021 49.0
HPH
50.0
1.0

@
) IT IT

184/501
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COSCO-HIT

2019

23

2022 2021

25,273 29,094

185/501



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000000000000000000(E25351)
0o00000000o0ooooood

2022 12 31 46,276,746,000 2021 47,399,123,000

16,744,832,000
2021 17,989,993,000

©

ECL
2022 2021 12 31
ECL

@

1,244,000 2021 6,776,000

186/501
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3,900
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2022 2021
312,187 (30,087)
7,800,000 7,800,000
2023 2023
2025 2025
11 11
135,819 5,348
(135,819) (5.348)
2.15 2.15
2.46 0.84
7,800,000,000 2021
2021 7,800
2022 2021
(12,847) (113,644)
3,900,000 7,800,000
2023 2022
2023
11 11
842 5,494
(842) (5.,494)
7.84 7.83
1 1

187/501
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HKFRS
2022 2021
36,340 64,134
(184) (212)
17 5
36,173 63,927
6,014,844 5,978,785 5,978,785
27,039,571 27,140,000 5,070,000 22,070,000
16,674 16,163 16,163
33,071,089 33,134,948 11,048,785 22,086,163
6,713,045 6,724,228 6,724,228
28,920,307 29,038,000 7,198,000 21,840,000
121,513 144,346 91,394 52,952
35,754,865 35,906,574 14,013,622 21,892,952
696,067,000 2021 538,741,000
1,494,649,000 2021 819,601,000

188/501
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2022
41,153 41,153 41,153
2021
23,353 23,353 23,353
@
HKFRS 2022 12 31 2021
12 31
2022 2021

17 FVOCI 29,701 39,151
17 FVOCI 280,109 283,000
17 325,034 85,567
20 2,010
19 10,395,168 11,048,007
20 3,065,567 3,860,157
14,095,579 15,317,892
22 27,039,571 28,920,307
21 5,989,606 6,700,945
21,24 29,065 17,959
24 12,847 115,654
33,071,089 35,754,865
FVOCI 309,810 322,151
13,460,735 14,908,164
325,034 87,577

33,058,242 35,639,211
12,847 115,654

189/501
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™

2022 12 31
17 29,701 29,701
17 280,109 280,109
17 325,034 325,034
24 (12,847) (12,847)
29,701 312,187 280,109 621,997
2021 12 31
17 39,151 39,151
17 283,000 283,000
17 85,567 85,567
20 2,010 2,010
24 (115,654) (115, 654)
39,151 (28,077) 283,000 294,074

190/501
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 12 31 22 26,084.8
2021 12 31 29,059.4

191/501
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@ 2022 2021 12 31

HPHT @

@

HIT
@

@

@

@

@

()
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2022 2021

10,000,000 100 100
100 100

7 200 100 100

< 7 800

100 100

20 100 100
2,400,000,000 56.41 56.41
6,056,960,000 51.64 51.64
150,000,000 51.64 51.64
2,343,300,000 51.64 51.64
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2022 2021
10,000,000 79.45 79.45
(€Y
@ e 32 94.88 94.88
7 593
< 7 2,005 79.45 79.45
(€)) 7 8,424
200 100 100
@
@ 10,000 100 100
100 100
@
1
2
712 715

®)
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2022 2021
58,547,303 60,681,858
8,550,764 8,988,284
67,098,067 69,670,142
6,222,865 6,467,223
3,613,665 4,366,386
9,836,530 10,833,609

2022 2021
8,679,362 9,249,513
3,162,437 3,938,984

2022 2021
(153,336) 3,008,205
2,006,952 1,208,836

138 194 2023

194/501
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HUTCHISOMW PORT HOLDIKGE TRUST

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 202

MNote HHS'000 HHES'000

Revenue and other income aia) 12,166,251 13244074
Cost of senvices rendered [4,174,560) (4,474 683)
Sraff costs {265,661) {257,204}
Depreciation and amartisation (3.003.976) (3,050,872}

Other operating income 146,167 417,931
Ouhier oprating expenses {5E7.283) (500424}
Total nperating expenses [7.8E5313) {7,865, 284)
Operating profit 5 4,280,938 5,378,786
Interest and other finance costs [ {673,345) {616,464}
Share of profits less kosses after tax of associated companies (B1.,423) [B1,530)
Share of profits less losses after tax of joint ventures 74,730 115580
Profit before tax 3,600,900 4,796,370
Tax 7 [1,081,199) {1,269.217}
Profit for the year 2,519,7M 3527153
Allocated as: Profit attributable to non-controlling interests (1,420,667 (1,780,002}

Prafic atributable 1o unitholders of HPH Trust 9 1,089,034 1,747,151

HEK cents HK cents

Earnings per umit attributable to unitholders of HPH Trust 9 12,62 20,06

138

195/501
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AMHMUIAL BEPOAT 2037

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
HES'000 HES'D0D
Prafit for the year 2,519,701 3,527,153
Other comprehensive (lassifincome;
Items that will mot be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (138,037) 40,145
Irsestments
Valuation (lossesifgains taken o reserves [12,341) 5,088
Itrres that may be reclissilied subsequently to profit or kss:
Cash flow hedges arising from cross curmency interest rate swap contracts
and interest rate swap contracts
Fair value gains recagnised directly in reserves 339,450 253,664
Costs of hedging
Changes in fair value of currency basis spread T4 15,783
Share of other comprehensive boss of associated companies [25,488) (B0
Share of other comprehensive (lessiincome of joint ventures (65,875} 1813
Currency translation differences {473,051} 139,745
Tatal ather comprafhentive (loss)fincome for the year (374,528} 655,635
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,145,173 4,182,788
Allocated as: Attributable to non-comralling interess (1,181,801} (1,841,740}
Attributabile to unitholdars of HPH Trust 963,372 2.341,048
MNote:
Itemes shown within other comprehensive (lossifingome have no tax effect.
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HUTCHISOMW PORT HOLDIKGE TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AL 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note HHE'000 HKS'000
ASSETS

MNon-current assets
Fieed assiets 10 20,357,742 21,646,925
Projects under development n TBE911 B54.524
Leasehold land and land use rights 12 33,178,968 34,579,438
Railwiry usage rights 13 9,400 10,787
Customer relationships 1a3(a) 4,459,154 4833380
Goodwill 1) 11,270,044 11,270,044
Assoclated companies 15 204,026 5957537
|nt ventures 16 3,957,599 3018035
Other non-current assets 17 bES,042 S{H, b6
Penslon assets 23 123,213 303782
Deferred tax assets 18 5,059 11,973

75,053,158 T.T96.077

Current assets

Cash and bank balsnces 19 10,395,168 11,048,007
Trade and other receivables 20 3118233 4,033,078
Irventories 79,605 B6,564
13,593,010 15,167 643

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 6,014,844 6,713,045
Bank and other debits 22 5,067,659 7.190,345
Current tax labilites 308,015 421,976
11,390,518 14,325,366
Met current assets 2,802,452 842283
Tatal assats less current liabilities 77,256,650 78,638,360

Nom-current liabilities

Bank and other debits 22 21,971,912 21,729,962
Deferred tax liabilities 18 8,883,533 9,268,299
Other non-curnant liabilities 24 123,459 240,975
30,976,904 31,239,237
Net assets 46,276,745 47,399,123
EQUITY
Units in issue 25 68,553,839 68,553,839
Reserves (41,746,767  (47,447,029)
Met assets attributable to unitholders of HPH Trust 26,807,072 27106810
Man-contralling interests 19,469,674 20,492,313
Total equity 46,276,748 47,398123
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

AL 31 December 2022

2022 2021
y Note HKST00 _HESTDO0
ASSETS
Mon-current asset
Irvestment in a subsidiary company 26 21,666,672 22,968,782
Current assers
Cash and bank balances 19 5,049 4868
Trade and other receivables 20 1,014 1,080
6,063 5948
Current liability
Trade and other payables a | 41,153 23353
Met current Habilicles [35,050) [17,40%)
Total assets less current lHabilities 21,631,582 22,952377
EQuITY
Linits in issue 25 68,553,839 68,553,839
Reserves (46,922,257} (45,601,462}
Total equity 21,631,582 22852 377
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HUTCHISOMN PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 o
MNate HES'000 HHS'000
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 27a) 8,067,306 8,624 092
Interest and ather finance costs paid 1644,955) (500.518)
Tax paid [1,572.662) {1, 2B8.674]
Net cash from operating activities 5,849,685 b, 734,902
Investing activities
Ieestmnenl in a joinl venture (1,170,853) (422,653]
Loan to an assoclated company {407, 400) (408, 300
Purdhase of fixed assets and projects under development {511,344) {232.267)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 978 13482
Dividends received from Investments 19,034 26,834
Dividends received from an associated company and joint ventures 114,423 147223
Irterest recahsed 136,781 580983
Repayment of lnans by an associated company and a point venture 534,800 76,650
Met cash used in investing activities [1,293,581) (538,034}
Financing activities
Mew borrowings 5,273,500 7,800,000
Repayment of barrawings 7, 156,000| (8,182,000}
Upfront debt transaction costs and facilities fees of borrowings - G414}
Principal slements of lease payments (14,381) (12747}
Repayment of loan to non-controlling interests - [10,475)
Chstributions to unitholders of HPH Trust (1,263,110) (1,236,976)
Dividends to non-cantrolling interests 12,006,953) 11,208, 835)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,208,943 {2,915,449]
Met changes in cash and cash equavalents {652.839) 3481419
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 11,048,007 7,766,538
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 10,395,168 11,048,007
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ANMUIAL REPORT 20232

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Emhange
and Comnof Ariribitable Hen
Uaits  other Revalumion Hedping hedping  Penslon  Aevwnulaed to ooatralling
Inisue  reserves FESENVE  TRSEMVE PESETVE [ESEMVE losses  unitholders Int=rests Tonal

HESTIO0  HKSDOO HESTO0  HMSOH) WSO  HKSDOD HESTO HESTO0  HKIOO0 HKSTOD

Goup
ALY Jamary 201
Profit for the year
Other comprehensie
lessiintome:
Remexsuremant of defined
benefit plas
ivetments:
Wihuanon losses ken 1
FESEES
Cash flow Fedges aruing
Yt A i Euriecy
Mii2nes, PRl e3P CONDTECTS
a0l intErest iae awap
s
Fair walue s
recognred directly in
TESETYES

Costs of hedging
(et in i e of
arrpncy basls spread

Sham of otwer

comprehensve lass of
50U CIMpaT

Share ol otner
comprehensive ks of
ot ventres
Currency brarslation
differences
Tetdl cther (ompreharsse
less.
Tolal comprehemive Reome
Transtemed Fromiio resene
Transactins with oanars:
Deiribution)
Dvdends
At December MUIZ

SEEIAN @1 QAR QAN D269 RN MLTIRTEED  ITUDESN 0B 4TIl

g £ - - - - 1nsanM MO L0 151

2 e = ik = [Tty o
: - (12341 - - - 12341 - [y
R - - 4 - - - A - i
2 ™ = h il

[17.001) . 7001 R4 (SR

- (M 35 - - - - GIESH (39 [EER
Rt * . = . - [SAE05) (HTASE WTADEY)

- ISy (118460 335490 T T - {1356E0  (BREE  MEN
= [l5MR 1548 3340 T R 1050 1AM RE LM
- B - . - - s . = ¥
MM s = (L2610

- - - - - - - L ]

SESSIAN  SAOR) (AU JNAER 4% 4men MISSLES  IGMNATD  NRAGRETY  AEITE VG

143

200/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 20242
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF
HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Units Accumulated Attributable to

in issun lossas unitholders
~ _HEFOH0 CHEFD00 HESD00.
Trust
At 1 January 2022 68,553,839 {45,607, 462) 22,952,377
Loss and total comprehensive 063 for the year = [57,685) [57,685)
Transactions with owners:

Distributions - {1.263,110) 1,263,110)
AL 31 December 2022 68,553,839 145,922,257) 21,631,582
At 1 January 2021 68,553 839 {44,324 S0E) 24,275,331
Liss and total coimprehensive loss for the yeas - (39,978) {39,978)
Transactions with owners:

Distributions {1.236,976) {7,236,976)
AL 31 December 2021 £8,553,839 {45,601,462) 22952377
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HUTCHISOMW PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General Infarmation

Hutchisen Port Holdings Trust {*Trust® or "HPH Trust”) is a business trust constituted by a deed of trust dated
25 February 2011 (a5 amended) (the “Trust Deed”) and registered with the Monetary Authority of Singapore.
HPH Trust is principally regulated by the Business Trusts Act 2004 af Singapore and Securities and Futures
Act 200V of Singapore, Under the Trust Deed, Hutchisen Fort Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the
"Trustee-Manager-], has declared that it will hold all its assets {Including businesses) acquired on trust for
the unitholders as the Trustee-Manager of HPH Trust. The registered address of the Trustee-Manager is at
1 Harbourfront Avenue, #14-07, Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore 098632, HPH Trust was listed on the Main Board
al Singapare Exenange Securitios Trading Limited (the "SGX-5T7) on 18 Mareh 2011

HPH Trust Is established with the principal Investment mandate of imeesting in, developing, operatmg and
managing deep-water container ports in the Guangdong Province of China, Hong Kong and Macau. HPH Trust
may alkso invest in other types of port assets including river parts, which are complementary 1o the deep-water
cantainer ports owned by HPH Trust, a5 well as undertake certain port ancillary services including, but nat
fimited to, trucking, feedering. freight-forwarding. supply chaln management, warehousing and distribution
Services,

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of HPH Trust and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS®) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPAT), The financial statements have been prepared under the
histarical cost canvention E!EEFT for ineestments and dervatve financial instrumants which are stated at fair
value, a5 explained Im the significant accounting policies set out in Note 2.

There is no material difference in preparing the financial statements using HKFRS and |nternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRST). Mo material adjustments arg required to restate the financial statements
prepared under HKFRS to comply with IFRS.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires management to exercise
its judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies &f the Group. It also requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of judgements
ar complexity, ar areas whare assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 3,

fopti i J i i
The Group has adopted all of the new and revised standards and amendments issued by the HKICPA that are
relevant to the Group's operations and mandatory for annual period beginning 1 January 2022, The effect of

the adoption of these new and revised standards and amendments was not material to the Group's results or
financia! positicn,
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AMMUAL REPORT 2033

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
Standards and amendments which are not yet effective

Az the date of authorisation of thie Bnancial statements, the following standards and amendments were in
issue and relevant 1o the Growp but not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Groug:

Amengments (o HKAS 111 Classefication of Liabilities as Current or Mon-curcent and Classification
of Liabilties as Current or Non-current - Deferral of Effective Date

Amenadments (o HKAS 1 [Revised)™ Presantation of Financial Statements

Amendmants to HEFRS Practice Making Materiality jJudgements
Statement 21

Amendments to HKAS 87 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes

Amendments to HKFRS 169 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to HEAS 114 Nan-current Liahilines with Covenants

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assels betweean an investor and LS ASSOCIate or
HIKAS Zn Joint Venture

(1] Effeive for aniual periods beginning 1 January 2023
{21 Efective for annual perinds beginning 1 Jonuary 2024
{3 MNew eNeoie date to be determined

The Group is assessing the full impact of these new or revised HKFRS, Certain of them may give rise to change
In presentation, disclosure and measurements of certain [tems in the financial statements, They are not
expected to have material Impact to the Group.

[E1] Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 3022 include all its direct
and indirect subsidiary companies and also incorporate the imterest in associated companies, jaint operations
and joint ventures on the basis set out in Notes 2{c) and 2(d] below. Results of subsidiary companies,
associated companies and joint ventures acquired or disposed of during the year are inciuded as from Uheir
effective dates of acquisitien to 31 December 2022 or up to the dates of disposal as the case may be, The
acguisition of subsidiary companies is accounted for using the acquisition method.

{b)]  Subsidiary companies

A subsidiary company S an entity aver which the Graup has control. The Group contrals an entity when the
Group is exposed 1o, or has rights to, variable returns from its imaohement with the entity and has the abiliy
to affect those returns through its power over the entity, Subsidiary companies are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred o the Group. They are deconsolidated frem the date that contral ceases,
Im the uncenselidated financial staterments of the holding company, investments in subsidiary companies are
carried at cost less provision for impairment in value,
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

MNOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
(k) Subsidiary companies [Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used ta account for business combinations by the Group. The
consigeration transferred for the acquisition of subsidiary companies are the fair values of the assets
transferred, the llabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
alse indudes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquasition-related costs are expansed as incurrad, Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
Habsiligies ascirmed in & Business combination afe measiired initially at their fair vabies at the acgidsition date,
On the acguisition by acguisition basis, the Group recognises a non-controlling interest In the acquiree either
at fair value or a1 non-controlling Interest's proporticnate share of the acquiree’s net assets,

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-contralling intarest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interast in the acquires over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired Is recorded as goodwill. If this s less than the fair value of the nat assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargaln purchase, the difference Is recognised directly in the income
staterment.

{c)  Associated companies

An associated company Is an entity, other than a subsldiary company or a joint venture, In which the Group
has a long-term equity interest and over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence owver
its management, which includes participation in the financial and operating palicy decisions,

The results and assets and liabilitles of assocdzted companies are incorporated in these financlal statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investmenit is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is accounted for under HEFRS 5 “*Naon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”. The total
carrying amount of such imaestments is reduced 1o recognise any identified impairment 1055 in the value of
indhidual investments.

{d} |oint arrangements

A joing arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have jeint contrel and over which none of
the participating partses has unilateral control,

Investments in joint arrangements are classified either as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual Fights and cbligations each imvestor has, foint operations arise where the investors have rights to
the assets and obligations for the labilities of an arrangement. A joint operator accounts for its share of the
assets, liabllties, revenue and expenses, joint ventures arise where the investors have rights to the net assets
of the arrangemeant.

The results and net assets of joint ventures are incarporated in these financial staterments using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accoumed
for under HKFRS 5 “Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations®. The total carrying
amount of such investments is reduced to recognise any ientified impairment loss in the value of individual
imeestments.

(e}  Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment loss. Properties comprise buildings
and civil works, Buildings and civil works are depreciated on the basis of on expected Bife of 50 years, or the
remainder thereal, or over the remaining penod of the lease of the underlying leasehald land and Lend use

rights, whichever is lesser, The period of the lease includes the period for which a right of renewal is attached,
Other assats comprise motor vehicles, computer equipment and other fixed assets.
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AMNMUAL REPORT 20237

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basiz of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
(e}  Fixed assets (Continued)

Depreciation of fixed assets other than properties is provided at rates ealeulated to write off their costs 1o
their resicual values over their estimated useful Ives on a siralght Ene basis as Tollows:

Container handling equipment 10 - 30 years
Barges 15 years
Maotar wihicles 5 yars
Computer equipment 2 years
Other fized assets 5 - 25 years

The gain ar loss on disposal or retirement of a fiked asset is the differance between the net sales proceeds
and the carrging amaunt of the relevant asset, and i€ recognised in the income sTatement,

in Projects under development

Projects under development are carried at cost and include project developmant expenditure and capitalised
interast on related Ipans incurred up 1o the date of completion, On caompletion, projects under develapment
are transferred (o fixed assels.

{g} Leaschold land and land use rights

The acquisition costs and upfront payments made for leasehold land and land use rights are presented on the
statement of financlal position as leasehold land and land use rights. The prepald lease payments are right-of-
use gssets. The balance are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
leasefrights.

ik}  Custamer relatlonships

Customer relationships, which are acquired in a business combination, are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date, Customer relationships are carried at cost less accumulated amaortisation, Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-fine method over the expected life of the customer relationships, ranging from
approaximately 23 to 33 years.

(i) Goodwill

Goodwlll Is Initially measured at cost being excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling Interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Goodwill on acquisition of a foreign operation is treated as an asset of the forelgn operation.

Goodwill i subject to impairment test annually and when there are indications that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. if the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired company. the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated to each of the Groug's cash-generating
units ["CGUR) expected to benafit from synergies arising from the business combination,

An impairment loss 5 recognised when the carrying amount of a COU, including the goodwill, exceeds the
recoverable amount of the CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of the CGURs fair value hess
cost 1o sell and valug-in-use,

The total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the

CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the bass of the carrying amount of each asset in the
CoL.
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant sccounting policies (Continued)
{ii  Goodwill (Continued)
A impasrment kass on goodwill s recognised a5 an expense and |5 not reversed in o subseguent pariod,

The profit or loss on disposal is calculated by reference 1o the net assets at the date of disposal including the
attributable amount of goodwill but does net incude any attributable goodwill previously eliminated agalinst
reserves.

i  Rallway usage rights

Rallway usage rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation s calculated using the
straight-line basis over the period of operation of approsimately 45 years,

ik} Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in ether comprehensive income or directly in equity, In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting periad in the countries where the group companies operate and generate taxable income,
Managemaent periodically evalustes positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject te interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected 1o be pald o the tax authorities.

Deferred tax Is provided in full, using the labilities method, on temparary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amownts in the financial statements, Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that It is probable thar future taxable prafit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset whien there is 4 legally enforceable right to offset curfent tax
asses Againgt current tax labilities and wihen the deferred tax assets and labilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

in Investments

Investments (other than investments in subsidiary companies, associated companies or joint ventures) are
non-derivative equity financial investments which are measured at falr value. Management |s eligible to make
an irevocable election, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, on equity imestments other than those held
far trading, to present changes in fair value through prafit or loss or fair value through ather comprehensive
income ("FVOCE). The Group has elected to measure as FVOCL to which any fair value gains or losses
accumulated in the revaluation reserve account will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss following the
derecognition of such investment. Dividends from investments continued to be recognised as other operating
income in the income statement when the rght 1o receive payment s established. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value,

{m) Fimancial assets at amortised cost

Financial assers at amortsed cost ane debt instruments that are beld for coltecton of contractual cash ows
where those cash Nows répresent solely payments of principal and interest, They are nitally recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets at amortised
cost and are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment. Appropriate allowances fior estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the income statement based on expected cradit loss ("ECLY) model,
Irerest income using the effective interest method is recagnised in the income stalement
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AMNMUAL REPORT 20237

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basiz of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

{n}  Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amertised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverabble amounts are recognised in the income statement based on lifetime ECL.

{o]  Inventories

Imventaries consist mainty of replacement parts and are stated at the loweer of cost and net realisabile value,
Cost is calculated on the weighted average basis,

{pl  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with maturity less than three months,
and bank overdrafts, excluding secured bank balances, if amy.

{q] Borrowings and borrowing costs
The borrowings are Initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. and are subsequently carried
at amaortised cost, Any difference between the proceeds (net of tramsaction costs) and the settlement or
redempticn of borrowings is recognised over the period of the borrowings wsing the effective interest method.
Borrewing costs directly atinbutable to the acquisition, constructlon or praduction of qualifyng assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time (o get ready for thelr intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the intome statement in the period in which they are
ingurred,

ir) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured st amartised cost
using the effective interest methed,

is) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required o settle
a present obligation as a result of past evénts and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,

{t]  Asset impairment

’ (f ’ .

The Group applies the ECL model to assess impairment of financial assets classified at amortised cost and
detst Instruments measured al PYOCL The impairment methodology (o be applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Far trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expetted bosses for amounts due from customers to be recognised from initial recognition of the trade
receivables.

As debt instruments at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, the impalrment provision applied
is to recognise 12-month ECL.
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{u]

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

Asset impairment (Continued)
Impairment of other assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested for impalrment annually and when there ks Indication that
they may be impaired. Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment
to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying values of these assets may not be recoverable
and have sulfered an mpaicment 055, IF any such indication exists, the fecoveralile amaunt of the assel
is estimated in order (o determine the extent of the impalrment lass, if any, The recoverable amount s
the higher of an asser's falr value less costs to sell and valwe-in-use. Such impairment loss s recognised in
income statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the
revaluation surplus for that asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease and is recognised in
ather comprensnsve income,

Derivative financlal instruments and hedging activities

Derivative financial instruments are utilised by the Group in the management of its foreign currency and
iNerest rate exposures. The Group's policy is not 1o ulilise derivative financial instruments for orading or
speculative purposes, Derlvative financial Instruments are initially measured at falr value on the contract date,
and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, Changes in fair value are recognised based
on whether certain qualifying criteria under HEFRS 9 are satisfied in order to apply hedge accounting, and if
20, the nature of the items being hodged.

The Group documents at the Inceprion of the hedging ransaction the economic relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items Including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in
cash flows of hedged items. The group documents its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge ransactions a1 the inception of each hedge relationship.

Derivatives designated as hedging Instruments to hedge the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities may
qualify as fair value hedges. The Group mainky enters into interest rate swap contracts to swap certain fixed
interest rate borrowings into floating interest rate borrowings. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
contracts, together with the changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities attributable (o the
hedged risk are recognised in the income statement. At the same time, the carrying amount of the hedged
asset ar lability In the statement of finandal position is adjusted for the changes in falr value,

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments (o hedge against the cash flows attributable 1o recognised
assels or liabilties may qualify as cash flow hedges. The Group mainly enters into (i} cross currency interest
rate swap contracts to swap certain fixed interest rate United States dollar debts to fixed interest rate Hong
Kong dollar debis; (if] cross currency Interest rate swap contracts to swap certain floating interest rate United
States dollar debts to fixed interest rate Hong Kong dollar debts; and (i) interest rate swap contracts to swap
certain floating interest rate Unived States dolior debts to ficed interest rate United States dollar debts 1o
hedge against the foreign currency and interest rate risk. The Group excludes foreign currency basis spread
of these cross currency swaps in the hedge designation. The change in fair value of the foreign currency
basis spread {to the extent it relates to the hedged item) is recognised in other comprehensive iIncome and
is accumiulated in a separdle costs of hedging reserve under equity. Changes in the Tair value relating to the
eflective portion of derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments qualifying as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve, The gain
or loss relating to the Ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement. Amaunts accumulated are
removed from hedging reserve and costs of hedging reserve and recognised in the income statement in the
periods when the hedged dervative conlracl matures,

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 will be accounted for with the changes in
fair value being recognised in the income statement.
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MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basiz of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
{v}  Pension plans
Pension plans are classified Inte defined benefit and defined centribution plans,

Pension costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using the projected unit credit method. Under this
methad, the cost of providing pensiens is charged 16 incame stiement 20 a5 (o spread the regular cost aver
the future service lives of empioyees in accordance with the advice of the actuaries who carmy out a valuation
of the plans. The pension obligation is measured as the present value of the estmated future cash outflows
using interest rates detarmined by reference to market yields al the end of the reporting period based on high
quality corporate bonds with currency and term similar to the estimated term of benefit obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive income in the
year in which they occur and refllecied immediately In pension reserve, Remeasurements comprise aciuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liabilityfasset) and any change in the effect of the asset celling {excluding amounts included in net
intergst on the net defingd benefit Rabilityfasset).

The coniributions o the defined contributien plans are charged (o the income statement in the year incurred.

Penslon costs are charged against the income statement within staff costs, The pension plans are generally
fumded by the relevant Group companies taking into account the recommendations of independent qualified
actuaries and by payments from employees for contributery plamns,

{w)] Foreign exchange

Thie consobdated Naancial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the functional
currency of HPH Trust

Transactions. in foreign currencies are converted ot the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates,
Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Tha financial statements of foreign operations (e, subsidiary companies, assodiated companies, joint ventures
or branches whose acthities are based or conducted In @ country or currency other than those of the Trust)
are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the year end rates of exchange for the statement of financial
position items and the average rates of exchange for the year for the income statement ibems. Exchange
differences are recognised i other comprehensive income and accumaulated under the heading of exchange
reserve, Exchange differences arising fram foreign currency berrowings and other currency INSIrUments
designated as hedges of such overseas investments, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of exchange reserve,

Exchange differences arising from translation of inter-company loan balances between Group entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of exchange réserve when
such loans form part of the Group's net investmant in a fareign entity. On the disposal of a foreign operation
{i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foregn operation, or a disposal imohang loss af control aver
a submsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal imaolving loss of joint contral over a joint wenture that
intludes a foreign operation, or a disposal invelving loss of significant influence over an associated company
that includes a foreign operatien], all of the exchange gains or losses accumulated in exchange reserve in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the company are transferred out of the exchange
reserve and are recognised in the income statement.

Im addition, in relation to a partlal disposal of 2 subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing contral
over the subsidiary, the propomionate share of accumulated exchange differences Is re-attributed to non-
controlling Interests and is not recognised in the income statement. For all other partial disposals {i.e. partial
disposals of associated companies or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant influence
ar joint controd), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difterences is transferred oul of the
exchange reserve and Is recognised in the Income statement.

All ther exchange differences are recognised in the income statement.
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

Distributions to the Trust's unitholders

Distributians to the Trust's unitholders are recorded in equity in the perind in which they are appraved for

payment.

Leases

AR Arrangemsnt, tompr'iilng A trantaCtion &F a deries of (ransactions, is or contains & lease il the Graip
derermines that the arrangement conveys a right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for conskderation, Such determination ks made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whether the arrangements take the lega! form of a lease.

U]

i

Agcers eased (o the Group

Leases are Initially recognised as a right-of-use asset and corresponding liability at the date of which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as 1o
produce a constant penodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for sach period,
The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorer of the asset’s useful life and the lease term an a

straight-line basls,

Agcots [eased (o the Group and the corresponding liabilities are initially measured on & present value
basis. Lease liabilales include the net present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incantives recehvable;
variable lease payments that are based on an ingex or a rate; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Group, as a lessee,
exercising an optien to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate can
be determined, or the incremental borrowing rate of the respective entities. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost comprising the following:

anvy initiad direct costs; and

restoration costs,

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

any lease paymenis made at or before the commencement date, less any [ease incentive

Paymenls associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on & straight-
lime basis as an expense in the Income statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise equipment and small items of office furniture.

Assets leased out by the Group

A lease is classified a5 a finance lease If It transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incldental
to ownership of an underlying asset, A lease is classified as an operating lease If it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to owmership of an underlying asset. Income received
under operating leases net of any incentives provided to the leasing company are credited to the
income staternent on a straight-line basis over Lhe lease periods,
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Basiz of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
Rewenue and other income recognition

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the good or service s transferred to the custamer,
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the good or service
miay be transferred over time or at a polnt in time,

Controd of the good or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance prevides all of the benefits
rcihind and consumed simultanssusly by the custamer

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation, Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a paint in time when the customer obtains controd of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the perfermance obligation is measured based on direct
measurements af the value transferred by the Group to the customer,

Transaction price of a contract shall be allacated to individual performance obligation {or distinct goed or
service), The abjective when allocating the ransaction price is for an entity tn allecate the transaction price
1o each performance cbligation In an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer,

Revenue is recognised over tima:

(i} for poris and related senvices, ransportation and logistics solutions along with the progress when
service is renderad; and

(1) for management and service fee income, and system development and support fees along with the
proqgress when sandce Is rendered.

Imterest income is recognised over time an a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Government Grant

Subsidy from the government |s recognised at thelr falr values whera there is a reasonable assurance that the
subsidy will be received and the Group will comply with all sttached conditions. The amounts are recognised
within "other opeérating income” in the income statement.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Note 2 includes 8 summary of the significant accounting policces wsed in the preparation of the financial
statements, The preparation of financial statements often requires the use of judgements to select specific
accounting methods and policies from several acceptable aliernatives, Furthermore, significant estimates and
assumptions concerning the future may be required in salecting and applying those methods and policies in
the financial statemenls. The Group bases its estimates and judgements on historical experience and various
other assumptions that it belleves are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates and judgements under different assumptions or conditions,

The following ks a review of the more significant assumptions and estimates as well as the accounting policies
and methods wsed in the preparation of the financial stalements.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
(2} Long lived assets

The Group has made substantial investments in tangible long-lived assets in its container terminal aperating
business, Changes in technotogy or the inended use of these assets may cause the estimated period of use or
value of these assets to change.

The Group considers its assets impairment accounting palicy to be a policy that requires one of the most
extensme applications of judgements and pstimates by management

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed to determine whether there is any indicason that the
carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable and have suffered an impalrment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverabla amaunts of the assets are estimated in order to detarmine the extent of
the impairment loss, iF any, The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and
value-dn-use, Such iImpalrment loss |s recognised In the Income statement except where the asset Is carrled at
valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that asset, in which case it is
treated as a revaluation decrease and is recognised in other comprehensive income,

Management's judgements are required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has gcourred that may Indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable: (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, baing the higher of fair value
less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the Group: and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash Now
prn]en:lu.ns il'l!.'!l,lﬂlna W‘Hﬂhﬁr these cash Tl pm]ec;lnn-:. are dhscaunted IJEII'IEI an appmprlale Fate, £han3}.n5
the assumptions selected by management to determing the level, If any, of impairment. including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net presant value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial condition and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it
miay be necessany o take an impairment charge to the income statement.

(b}  Goodwill

For the purposes of impairment (ests, the recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-
in-use calculations, The value-in-use calculations primarity use cash fiow projections based on financial
projections approved by management. There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for the
preparation of cash flow projections. The key assumptions adopted in the value-in-use calculations are based
on management’s best estimates and past experience, Changes to key assumptions can affect significantly the
results of the Impairment tests,

Key assumptions are made with respect to the expected growth in revenues and cost of services rendered,
timing of future capital expenditures, terminal growth rates and selection of discount rate, which
approximately reflect the risks invobved, The growth in revenues will be affected by the growth in both the
vedume of containers handled and tarifl, The volume of containers handied will be impacted by econamsc
and global market conditions, structural changes within the shipping line Industry and Influenced by the
performance and growth of regional and international trading economies. If key export markets for local
eNpOrters experience an economic downlurn or recession, exporl volumes may decrease, The growth of
tarifi depends on the Group's overall competitiveness, which is determined by a number of factors, such as
geographical reach and comnectivity, operating efficiency, berth availabilicy, mega vessel handling capability,
technology offerings, transportation and logistics network and ancillary services and facilities.

A significant portion of cost of services rendered is labour cost which will be impacted by labour supply

and inflation. In addition, the introduction of ever larger wessels by shipping lines will require upgrading af
equipment and new wark practices 1o increase productivity o a5 1o remain competitive,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Cantinued)
{c) Customer relationships

Custamer relatinnships acquired (n a business combination are recognised at fair value a the acquisition date,
Customer refationships are carried at cost less acoumulated amartisation. Amortisation is caloulated using the
straight-line method over the expectad life of the customer relationships.

The Group considers its impairment accounting policy to be a policy that requires ane of the most extensive
applications al judgements and estimates by managemant, Intangible 45315 with definite uselul lives that
are subject (o amortisation are reviewed 1o determine whether there is any indication that the carrying
value of these assets may not be recoverable and have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
ewists, the recoverable amounts of the intangible assets are estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any, The receverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and valug-in-use. Such impairment loss s recognised in the income statement. Management's judgements
are required in the area of intangible asset impairment, particularly in assessing: {1) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; and (2) whether the carmying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
or net present value aof future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the Group

{d] Depreciation

Depreciation of oparating assels constitutes a substantial operating cost for the Group. The cost of fixed
assets is charged as depreciation expense over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the
stralght-line method. The Group periadically reviews changes In technology and industry conditions, asset
retirement activity and residual values to determine adjustments to estimated remaining useful lives and
depreciation rates,

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lhves, Perladic reviews could result In a change in
depreciabie lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods,

{e}  Accrual of net revenus

Revenue |5 accrued at period end with reference to the throughput handied and the terms of agreements for
container handling service. Consequently, recognition of revenue is based on the volume of services rendered
as well as the latest tanlf agreed with customers or best estimated by management. This estimate is based
on the |atest tariff and other industry considerations as appropriate. If the actual revenue differs from the
estimated accrual, this will have an impact on revenue in future periods.

in Pension costs

The Group operates several defined Benefit plans, Pension costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using
the projected unit cradit method In accardance with HEAS 19 (2011}, Employes Benefits, Lindar this method,
the cost of providing pensions & charged to the Income statement 5o as to spread the regular cost over the
future service lives of employees in accardance with the advice of the actuaries who carry out a valuation of
the plans. The pension assets/obligations are measured al the present values of the estimated fulure cash
outflows using interest rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reponing period
based on high guality corporate bonds with currencies and terms similar to the estimated terms of benefit
obligations.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgemnents (Continued)
Pension costs (Continued)

Remeasurements arising fram defined benefit plans are recagnised in other camprehensive income in the
year in which they ocour and reflected immediately in pension resende, ReMeasurements comprise aciuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts inchided in net interest on the net defined
berefit Hability/asset) and any change in the effect of the asset cefling (excluding amounts induded in net
interast on the net defined benafit Rability/asset).

Management appointed actuaries to carry out 3 full valuation of these pension plans to determing the
pensicn assets/obligations that are required to be dischosed and accounted for in the financlal statements in
accordance with the HEFRS requirements.

Thie actearies use assumptions and estimatas in determining thie fair value of the defingd benelit plans and
evaluate and update these assumptions on an annual basis, judgements are required to determine the
principal actuarial assumpticns to determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and service
costs, Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can significantly affect the present value of plan
abligations and service costs in future periods.

Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions. Significant judgements are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and caleulations for which the
ulumate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises iabilites
for anticipated tax audit isswes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were previously recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax s provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilitkes and thelr carrying values In the financlal statements, Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses casrried forward to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be utiised, based on all available evidence, Recognition
primarlly involves judgements regarding the future financial performance of the particular legal entity or tax
group in which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated in
considering whether there s comvincing eviderce that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary differences, group relief,
tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised, The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets and related financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available
within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the carry forward tax losses, the asset balance will be
reduced and charged o the income statement

215/501



b}

EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

AMMNLIAL REPOART 2023

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and other income and segment information

Rewenue and ather income

2022 2021
HE$'000 HKS'000
Revenue

Rendering of port and related senvices 11,687,782 12,734,118
iendering of transpartation and logistics solutions 261,648 402,551
Management and service fee intome 35,743 35107
System development and support lees 6,953 7,002
Others 1.683 1.61%

11,993,809 13,180,397

Other income
Interest income 172842 63,677
14,166,251 13,244,074

Segment information

The chief operating decision maker has baen determined (o be the executive committee of HPH Trust
{the “Executive Committee”]. The Executive Committee reviews the Intermal reparting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

HPH Trust is principally engaged in investing in, developing, operating and managing deep-water container
ports and port ancillary senvices and therefore management considers that HPH Trust operates in one single
business segment at two geographical kocations.

Revenue is recognised over bme and disclosures by geographical lacation are shawn below:

Revenue and other incomae Non-current asseis
2022 2021 2022 2021
HESD00 HES 000 HESDRD HES 000
Hong Kong 3,266,293 3,715,152 20,140,660 21,213,393
Maintand China E BO0, 958 5.528.922 540012 498 56,582 B4

12,166,251 13,244,074 75,053,158 FI.796,077

159

216/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after crediting and charging the fellowing:

2022 2011
HKS000 HKS00
Crediting
Dividend oome from River Ports Economic Benelits (Note 17) 16,239 25,463
Met gain on disposal of fixed assets 140 10,493
Wage, salary and other subsidies (Note} 30,647 118
Net exchange gain - 17.697
Charging
Auditor's remuneration
- audit senices 14,884 13,983
= non-audit services 1,183 2676
Amortisation
- leasehold land and |land use rights 1,205,000 1,204, 106
= raihway usage rights 524 542
- customer relatinnships 334,206 334,206
Depreciation of fixed assets 1,362,530 1410335
Depreciation of right-of-use assets within fixed assets 1,16 11,683
Short-term lease coses for
- office premisas and port facilities B2, 787 68413
Staff costs (including amount charged within cost of services rendered)
- Wages, salaries and other benefits 1,348 464 1,359,949
- Pension costs 120,855 128,429
Wet exchange loss 53,457 -
Mote:

Mainly benefits received from government under COVID-19 related employment support scheme recognised
in other eperating income for the year ended 31 December 2022

(] Interest and other finance costs

2022 2021

HKS'000 HES000

Bank loans and overdralts 309,844 275,488
Guaranteed notes ERlr e [+ 288,590
Leans from non-controlling interests 1,631 3139
Liease liabilithes 722 QE9
Other finance costs 43938 48,260
673,345 616,466
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Tax
2022 2021
HKS000 HES 000
Current tax 1,458,883 1,529,039
Déferred tax (Mata 18] (377 684N [259,BXF)
1,081,199 1,269,217

The tax charge an the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate of the Group as follows:

2022 2021
HES'000 HES'000
Prafit before tax excluding share of profits less losses after tax
of joint ventures and associated companies 3,607,593 4,762,320
Tax-calculated at weighted average tox rate of 26.2% (2021: 25.6%) 945,570 1,217,811
Tax exemption in China 155,663 {170,860}
Income not subject to tax [V7,778) (8.281)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 9,803 93,561
Withhalding tax on unremittad earnings 12883 155,674
Utllisation of previously unrecognised tax losses [4,534) [#.403)
Crerprowision in prior year {16,378] (14,430}
Tax losses not recognised a9 i
Others 129} 108
Tatal tax 1,061,199 1.269.217
Distributions
2022 2021
HEK$000 HES'000
For the period from 1 july 2020 to 31 December 2020
Distribution of 7.70 HK cents per wnit - 670,755
Far the period from 1 Janweary 2021 to 30 June 2021
Distribution of 6.50 HK cents per unit - 566,221
For the period from 1 July 2021 to 31 Decemnber 2021
Distribution of 800 HK canis per unit 606,88 -
For the period from 1 janeary 2022 to 30 June 2022
Distribution of 6,50 HE cents per unit 566,222 -
1,263,110 1.236,976

On 7 February 2023, the Board of Direciors of the Trustee-Manager approved the distribution of 8.00 HK
cents per unit for the financial result from 1 July 2022 to 31 December 2022 (2021: E.00 HK cents per unit)
amounting to HKEE96.9 million (2027: HKS696.9 million) and payable on 24 March 2023. This distribution is
nat reflecied in these financial statements and will be recognised in equity in the financiasl year ending 31
December 2023,
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9 Earnings per unit
The calculation of earnings per unit is based on profit attributable to unitholders of HPH Trust of
HK$1,095,03.4.000 for the year ended 31 Decermber 2022 [2021: HK$1,747.151,000) and on 8.711,101,022 units
ir issue (2027 B, 711,000,022 units in issue),
Diluted earmings per unlt s the same as the baske earnings per unit for the years ended 31 Dacember 2022
and 2021,

10 Fixed assets

Group Container
handling Other fixed
Properties equipment Barges assets Total
HES 000 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
2022
Opening net book amount 15,065,231 6,152,202 1.048 428,394 21,646,325
Additions 29,840 35,583 - 1.038 bb,4b1
Transfer from projects under
develapment [Mate 11) 34,797 187,735 - 25,215 247,747
Depreciation {625,007) (BE1,429) {95) (67,715)  {1,374,246)
Disposals - {771} = {67) {838)
Currency translation
differences (178,732} {41,118} - [B,45%) [228,307)
Clasing net book amount 14,326,129 5,052,204 1,003 7R, 406 20,357,742

At 31 Decemnber 2022

Cost 21,155,889 13,521,297 9,484 1,071,442 35762112
Accumilated depreciation {6,833, 760) {7,860,003) {8,481} [B03,036)  (15404,370)
et book amount 14,326,129 5,652,204 1,003 3TE.AD6 20,357,742
2021
Opening net book amount 15,616,352 6,743,300 2503 476,799 22 838,954
Additions 962 11,299 - - 12,261
Transfer from projects under

development (Note 1) 17,333 111,160 - £1,308 150,001
Depreciation 1627, 390) (720,927) (592) (73,109 11,422,018)
Dispasals {1162) (5,658) (813) - (6,633)
currenq,r translatian

differences 57,936 13,028 - 3,396 74,360
Closing net book amount 15,065,231 5,152,202 1,058 426,354 21,040,925

At 31 December 2021

Cost 21,338353 13,328,113 5,484 1,070,764 35,746,714
Accumulated depreciation i6,273,122) {7175,3111 [8,385) (642,370} (14,093, 789)
Met book amount 15,065,231 6,152,202 1,008 425, 394 21,646,925
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Graup has the right ta contral the use of certain assets included in properties, cantainer handling
equipment and other fixed assets for a period of time through lease arrangements. LEAse arrangements
with terms of 1 1o 3 years are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of terms and
conditions, During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions to the right-of-use assets under properties
and ather fixed assets were HK$24,218.000 (2021: nil) and no disposals to the right-of-use assets under
container handling squipment due to termination of lease Wenms for the year énd 31 December 2022 (2021

HEK$3,273.000],

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets included in fixed assets are as follows;

Properties
Other Nxed assets

2022 2021
HES D00 HKS000
26,448 14912
632 126
27,141 15,038

Depraciation eharge for right-of.use assets recognised i the consalidated incame statement 5 as follaws!

2022 2021
HKES'000 HKS'000
Properties 11415 10,890
Other fixed assels 3m 793
11,716 11,683
Frojects under development

Group 2022 2021
HES'000 HESD00

At beginning of the year 654,524 478,216
Additions 361,361 324,582
Transfar 1o fixed assets (Note 10) (247,747 {150,001)
Currency translation differences 15.227) 1,727
At end of the year 762,911 654,524

Projects under development mainly represent the cost of construction of port Tacilities in Hong Kong and

Mainland China,
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12 Leasehold land and land wuse rights

Graup 2022 2021
HKS'000 HES000

Net book value

At bispinning of the year 34575438 35,843,729

Amortisation (1,285,000) {1,294,108)
Currency translation differences 105,470} 28815

At end of the year 33,178,968 34.579,438

Cost 48,220,758 43,357,185

Accumubated amortisation (15041,790)  3.777.747)

13,178,968 44573438

The net book value of land use rights, which are accounted for as right-of-use assets, was HK$7,082,083,000
at 31 December 2022 (2021: HE$7,194,832,000). The corresponding amortisation charge for the year was
HES284,834,000 (2027: HK$283,118.000),

13  Railway usage rights

Group 2022 2021
HKS000 HEKST00

MNet beok value
At beginning of the year 10,787 11,056
Amortisation {524) {542}
Currency translation differences {853) 273
At end of the year 9,400 10,787
Cost 14,939 16,966
Accumulated amoirtisathon (5,539 (6,17%)
9,400 10,787

14 Intangible assets

ta) Customer relationships

Group 2022 2021
HKS000 HKSD00

Met beok value

At beginning of the year 4,833,350 5.167 566

Amortisation _B34206)  (334,206)
AL end of the year 4,499,154 4,833,360

Cost 8,440,000 3,440,000

Accumulated amortisation {3,240, 845) 13,606,540)
At end of the year 4,499,154 4,833,360
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MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Intangible assets (Continued)
{b)  Goodwil

The Group has ane busmess segment and two geagraphical CGLU te which goodwill is allocated as lollows:

Group 022 2021

HKLD00 HKL'000
Hﬂﬂg Kﬂ'la - -
Mainland China 11,270,044 11,270,044

11,270,044 11,270,044

2022 2021

HKST00 HKS D00

At beginning of the year 11,270,044 11,270,044
Impairment of goodwill (accumulated: HK$30.4 billion) - -
At end ol the year 11,270,044 11.270,044

As in the prior year, management performed an impairment assessment based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year pericd
and a further cutlook for 5 years, which is considered appropriate in view of the long-term nature of the
termingl busingss, Management determined that no furthuer impaierment of goodwill % required in 2022, The
impairment methodelogy assumed terminal values and discount rates of 2%-30% (2021: 2%-3%) and 10%-11%
{2021: 8%-10%) per annum, respectively, Terminal values are determined by considering both intermal and
external factors refating to the port operation and discoent rates reflect: specific risks refating to the relevant
business.

The assumptions regarding the growth rares in revenue and cost of senvices rendered used In the current
yedr's assessments were comparable Lo last year, For lllustration purposes, a hypothetical 0.5% decrease in
the revenue growth rate, a 0.5% increase in costs of services rendered and a 0.5% increase in the discount
rate, with all other variables and assumptions held constant, would decrease the recoverable amount of the
Heng Keng CoU, by HK$1.9 billion, HK$0,9 billon and HES1.4 billlon respectively and of the Mainiand China
CGL, by HRS2.0 billion, HKS0.6 billion and HK32.1 biflion, respectively.

Actual results in the future may differ materially from the zensitivity analysis due to developments in the
global markets and changes in economic conditions which may cause fluctuations in growth and market

interast rates to vary and therefore it s important to note that the hypothetical amounts so generated do not
represent a progection of ikely future events and profits or losses

165

222/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

15

166

Associated companies

Graup 2022 201
HKS'000 HES000
Share of net assels 204,026 310,937
Laan ta an associated campany - nan-current = B46, G0
204,026 957,537

A Syear loan of RMB530,000,000, approximate to HK$593,600,000 (2021 RMB530,000,000, approximate to
HE$646,600,000) provided 1o an associated company is unsecured, interest bearing at a fixed rate of 4.0%
per annum and repayable in August 2023, The carrying amount of the lcan to an associated company
appraximates its fair value, The loan is current in rature as at 31 December 2022 and disclosed in Mote 20,

Details of the principal associated companies at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Place of Effective

Name establishment Principal activities interest hald
Shenehen Huazhou Doean China Provision of lugboat 23.84%

Development Co,, Ltd, sErvices in China

(farmerly knoawn as “Shenzhen

Yantlan Tugboat Compary Ltd.")
Huizhau International Cantainer Chira Development and operation . 41.31%

Terminals Limited"! al 4 container terrminal

(1 Audited by PricewaterhousaCoopers network firms

There Is no associated company as at 31 December 2022, which in the opinion of the directors of the Trustes-
Manager, is individually material to the Group.

There are no material contingent labilities relating to the Group's interests in the associated companies,

Set out below is the Group's share of the year's total comprehensive loss from its associated companies;

2022 2021

HKS'000 HES 000
Profits bess losses after tax (81.423) (81,5300
Othar comprehensive loss | 25,448} (B0}
Tatal comprehensive loss (106,911} [82.134)
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Joint ventures

Graup 022 20
HES000 HKS 000
Share of net assets 4,887,599 3.825.835
Loans ta joint ventures - mon-current - 122,200
Less: sccumulated impairment {930,000y (930,0:00)

3,957,599 3.018,035

Note:

A loan of HK$120,000,000 (2021: HK$120,000.000) provided to a joint venture is unsecured, interest Dearing
at Hong Kong imterbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR™) plus 2,1% per annum and repayable in March 2023, As at 31
December 2021, another loan provided to a joint venture of HKS2 200,000 was unsecured, interest free and
was settled during the year ended 31 December 2022, The earrying amounts of the loans to joeint ventures
approximate their fair values, The remaining loean is current in nature as at 31 December 2022 and disclosed in
Mote 20,

Details of principal joint wentures at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Mame establishment Principal activities intarest held
COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Kongd  Hong Kong Development and operation  S0.00%
Limited™ of a contalner terminal
Asla Container Terminals Limited™ Hong Kong Development and operation 40.00%
of a container terminal
Beijing Leading Edge Container China Provision of logistics services  50.00%
Services Company Limited
Mercury Sky Group Limited™ British Virgin kslands  Investment holding 50.00%
Shenchen Leading Edge Port China Provision of port 49.00%
Services Co, Ltd." AEENCY Services
Yantian East Port International China Development and operation  39.73%
Contalner Terminals Limited of a container terminal
[YEPICT Y
Yantian Port Intermational China Prowision of electronic port 28.21%
Information Company Limited community system

{11 Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers network firms

{41 Mot required to be awdited under the laws of the country of incorporatan

Thera is no joant venture as at 31 December 2022, which in the opinion of the directors of the Trustee-
Manager, is individually material to the Group.

Thiere areé no Material contingent Rabilives relating 1o the Group's INLerests in the jaint veniures,
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16 Joint ventures (Continued)

Set out below is the Group's share of the year's total comprehensive income from its joint ventures:

2022 2021
HKs000 HKs000
Prafits bess lasses after tax 74,730 115,580
Hher comprehensive (losslfincams [65,875) 1,813
Total comprehensve income E,455 117,393
17 Other non-current assets
Group 2022 2021
HKS000 HK3'000
Iwestments
Listed equity security 29,701 39,151
River Pons Economic Benefits (Mote) 280,109 ZE3,000
Prepayment for fixed assets 50,198 45,7549
Oher recevables and prepayments - 56,190
Derivative financial insiruments
Imtarest rate swaps under cash flow hedges 325,034 BS.567
66,042 509,667
Neovte!

The River Ports Fconomic Benefits represent the economic interest and benefits of the river ports in Nanhai
and Jlangmen, China (together the *River Ports®), including all dividends and any other distributions ar other
monies payable to a refated company or any of its subsidiary companies in its capatity a5 a shareholder of
the reledant holding company of the River Ports arising from the prafits attributable to the business of the
River Parts and all sale or disposal proceeds derived from such businesses, assets, rights andfor labilities
constituting anmy part of the business of the River Ports as agreed with a related company and any of its
subsidiary companies. The mavermnent s due to change in fair value,

18 Deferred tax

Group 2022 201
HKS 000 HKS000
Deferred tax assets (5.05% [11.978)
Deferred tax labilities 8,883,533 9,168,299
Net deferred rax liabilities BATE 474 9,256,321
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225/501



18

Deferred tax (Continued)

EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

AMNLIAL BEPCIRT 2022

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The movements in deferred tax (assetsyliabilities during the year are as follows:

Fairvalue Withholding

Unused Accelerated adjustments tax on
tax  depreciation arising from  unremitted
losies allowanced  acquititions earnings Others Tatal
HE$"000 HKS D00 HES'000 HES'D00  HKE000 HES 000
2022
At 1 [anuary 2032 {12.353) 19,730 B294.176 460431 [5.663) 9256321
Ta chargedicredited) to
income statement B615 (21,781) [355.578) {7.164) 4 [377,6E4)
Other temporary differences - 28 - - 1151) {163)
AL31 December 2052 (5,738] 257977 7538598 453,267 (56000 BATEATA
on
ALT [anuary 2021 (15,445) 47,004 B.652.669 343323 6,893 9516056
Tax chargeddcredited) to
inCome statement 7.108 {27,250 {358.4493) 117577 1,236 (259,822
Other temporary differences 1121 {26 - (465} &) {5133
At 31 December 2021 (12,359 519,730 B 294,176 460,431 [5,663) 535632
Nates:

(8} The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off and
when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

(b} Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profit is probable, The Group has unrecognized tax losses
of HKS87,642,000 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: HK$115381,000) to carry forward against
future taxable income. OF these, HK$63,225,000 can be carried forward indefinitely (31 December 2021;
HK$90,532,000L The remaining HK$24,417,000 (31 December 2021: HKS24 849 000) expires in the

following years:

In the first year

In the second year
In the third year
i1 the fourth year
In the fifth year

2022 2021
HKS000 Ll
1,007 223
10,245 .07
8215 11,364

1 10,197
3,839 “d
24,417 24,849

e} Deferred tax liabilities are calculated o full on temporary differances under the liabllities mathod
using the tax rate of the countries in which the Group operated. The temporary differences are for
accelerated depreciation allowances, fair value adjustments arising from acquisitions and withholding
taxes arising from unfemitted earnings,

[{41] Deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered or seitled mostly after maore than twehve

manths.
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19 Cash and bank balances

Graup 2022 201
HKS'000 HES000

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at kank and on hand 1,614,255 1620219
Shart-term bank deposits 8,7E0,913 9427 788
Cash and bank balances 10,395,168 11,048,007
Trust 2022 2021
HKS'000 HKST00

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 5,049 & 368

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

Group 2022 201
Percentage  Percentage

Hong Kong doilar 34% 43%
Renminbi 10% 10%
United States dollar 56% A7%
100%: 100%

Trust 2022 2021
Percentage Percentage

Hong Kong dollar 4% pli)
United States dollar 5% 3%
Singapore doblar a7T% 21%
100% 100

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate their fair values. The maximum sxposure to
credit risk is the carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances.

7o
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Trade and other receivables

Graup w022 20
HKS000 HKS B00
Trade recenvables 1,897,009 3,464,903
Less! less allowance provision (Note d) (47,339} {50, 786)
1,849,670 3414117
Other receivables and prepayments 393,935 341,978
Amounts due from associated companies (Note a) 11,8056 17,955
Amounis due fram jeint ventures (Note a) 149,223 147.218
Loan to an associated company (Mote b) 583,600 109,200
Loan to a joint venture (Mote c) 120,000 -
Derivative fnmancial instrumanls
Cross currency interest rate swaps under cash flow hedge - 2,010

3.118,233 4,033,078

Trust 022 2021
HES000 HES 000

Othar receivables and prepaymaents 356 366
Amounts due from subsidiary companies (Wote aj 658 Td
1,014 1,080

Trade and other recetvaliles are denominated in the following currencies:

Group 022 202
Percentage  Percentage

Hong Kong dollar 47%: 48%
Renminki 3% 41%
United States dollar 145 11%
1004 100%

Trust w0z 2021

_Percantage _Percentage

Singapore dodlar 100% 100%

Trade receivables are stated at the expected recoverable amount, net of any provision for estimated
impairment losses where it is deemed that a receivable may not be fully recoverable. The carrying amounts of
these assets approximate their Tair values,

Notes:

{a]  The amounts due from assocated compandes and joint ventures of the Group; and amounts due from
subsidiary cormnpanies af thie Trust are unsecured, Interest free and have no fioed terms of Fepayment.

(b}  The lpan (o an assocated company is unsecured, inmerest bearing at a fixed rage of 4.0% per annum and
repayable in one year. As at 31 December 2021, another loan to an assodiated company is unsecured,
Interest bearing at a fieed rate of 2.3% per annum,

m
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{c) The loan o & joint venture ik unsecured, interest bearing at HIBOR plus 2.1% per annum and repayable

in one year,

{d) At 31 December 2022, trade receivables of the Group amounting bo HKS$47,339000 (2021:
HE$50,7E6,000} were impaired and previded for. The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the wse of the ifetme expected credit

less pravision for all trade receivables,

Movements an the loss allowance provision for trade receivables are as follows:

2022 2021

HKS 000 HES Q00
Al bepnning of the year 50, 786 51,043
Additions 12 a50
‘Write back [ERRL {251)
Written off {335) {563}
Currency translation differences [i:1] {93)
At end of the year 47,339 50,786

The additions w and write back of loss allowance provision for trade receivables have been included In the

income statement,

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not cantain impaired assets.

The Mmaximum exposure 1o credit sk at the repeming date is the carmying value of each class of receivables

mentioned above,

Trade and ather payables

Group 022 2021
HEKS'000 HES 00D
Trade payables, other payables and accruals 5,706,185 5,403,773
Loans from non-controlling interests {Note a} 108,756 115,756
Lease Rabilities 12,33 12100
DRerivative fimancial instruments
Cross currancy interest rate swaps under cash fMow hedge (MNote 24) 12,847 -
Amounts due to related companies (Nate b) 107,473 100,958
Amounts due to assoclated companies (Note b} 3,016 2898
Amounts due ta [oint ventures (Mote b) 64,176 77,560
5,014,844 6,713,045
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Trade and other payables (Continued)

Truist 2022 201

HKSD00 HKS 000

Trade payables, other payables and accruals B,456 5,642
Amaounts due tod

a refated company (Note b) 32,851 16,477

- subsidiary companies (Wote bj 1,846 1,234

41,153 23,353

Trage and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group 022 2021
Percentage Percentage

Heng Keng dollar 8 23%
Remminbi 1086 15%
United States dodlar 3% 2%
100% 100%

Trust 2022 2021

Percentage  Percentage

Hong Kong dollar A% =
United States dollar 80% 71%
Singapore dollar 16% 24%

100% 100%

Al 31 Decemiser 2022, the carmying amounts of trade and other payables of the Group and of the Trust
approximate thelr falr values.

Neotes:

fal  The lgans from non-controdling interests of the Group are unsecured, interest free except for the
amount of RMBT0,000,000, approximate to HKS 78,400,000 (2021: approximate to HESE5,400,000) which
bears interest at fived rate of 2.0% per annum and repayable in one year.

[} Amaunis due to related companies, associaed companies and |aint ventures of the Group: and

amounts due to a related company and subsidiary companies of the Trust are unsecured, Interest free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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22  Bank and other debts

Current  Non-current

Group portion partion Total
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
Unsecured bank loans 5,070,000 10,370,000 15,440,000
Guaranteed notes = 11,700,000 11,700,000
Total principal amount of bank and other debis 5,070,000 22,070,000 27,140,000
Unamortised loan facility fees and discounts refated
1o debis (2,347} (98,088} [100,425)
At 31 December 2022 5,067,659 21,971,912 27,039,511
Unsecured bank Ioans 3,298,000 10,140,000 13,438,000
Guarantead notes 3,500,000 11,700,000 15,600,000
Tatal principal amount of bank and other debts 7.158,000 21,840,000 29,038,000
Unamortised loan facility fees and discounts retated
tos cebis [7.655) {110,038} [(117,693)
At 31 December 2021 7,190,345 21,729,962 28,920,307

The carrying amounts of bank laans of the Group approsimate their fair values as the bank loans bear foating
intenest rates and are repriced within one manth at the prevailing market interest rates. The bank loans will be
fully repayable from March 2033 to August 2027 (2021 repayable from September 2022 to September 2026).
In Movember 2019, the Group issued a 5-year US$500 million 2.875% guaranteed note due 2024,

In March and September 2021, the Group issued a S-year US$500 million 2,00% guaranteed note due 2026
and a S-year U55500 milliom 1.50% guaranteed note due 2026, respectively.

The effective interest rate of the Group's bank and other debts at 31 December 2022 is 3.1% per annum (20211
2.3% per annum),

Bank and other debis are denominated in the following currencies:

Group 2022 2021
Percentage  Percentage

Hong Kong doflar 20% 11%

United States dollar Bl A%

1005 100%

74
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Pension assets
Graup 2022 201
HKSD00 HKS 000
Defined benefit plans
Pension assets 123,213 303,782

The Group operatles a number of defined benelin and defined contribution plans, the assels of which are heid

independently of the Group's assets In trustee administered funds,

Defined benefit plans

The Group's defined benefit plans in Hong Kong are a cantributory final salary pension plan and a ngn-
contributery guaranteed return defined contribution plan, The Group's plans were valued by Towers Watson
Hong Komng Limited, qualified actuaries at 31 December 2022 and 31 Decemnber 2021 wsing the projected unit
credit method to account for the pension accounting costs in accordance with HEAS 19 (2011) "Employes

Benafits”,

The principal actuaral assumptions used for accounting purposes are as follows:

ZLE 2021

Percentage  Percentage

Discount rate 3,70-3.90% 1.20-1.50%
Future salary increases 3.50% 3,50%
Interest credited on plan accounts 5,00-6. 005 5.00-6,00%

The amounts recognised in the consolidated staterment of financial position are determined as follows:

2022 2021
HKS 000 HKE 000
Fair value of plan assets 1,291,827 1,699,440
Present value of defined benefit obligations 11,168,614) 11.395,658)
Net defined benefit assets 12313 303,782
175
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Pension assets (Continued)
{a} Defined benefit plans [Continued)

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit assets/fliabilities) and its components are as

fallows:
Daefined Fair walue  Noet defined
beneflts of plan benefit
obligations assels assets
HES'000 HKS'000 HES 000
2022
AL 1 January 11,395,658) 1,659,440 303,782
Net {charge)/credit to the income statement
Current service cost (46,377} 1619} [46,396)
Interest [cost)income {17,373} 21,545 4172
(63, 750) 20,926 [42,8324)
Net credit/{charge) to other comprehansive income
Remeasurements gain/loss):
Actuarial gaindloss) arising from;
Experience adjustment 4,607 - 4,607
Financial assumptions 158,689 - 158,689
Demographic assumption {138) - {138)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - (301,197) [301,197)
163,160 (3,197} [138,037)
Other
Comtributions paid by the employer - 292 292
Cantributians paid by the emplojyes [6AT2) b72 -
Benefits paid 118617 (118,817} -
Met transfer 15,189 [15,189) -
At 31 December (1,168,614} 1,291,827 123213
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AMMUAL REPORT 2033

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension assets (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Defined Fair value  Met defined

benefits of plan benefit
ohligations assets assets
HES (00 HES 00 HKS D00
Frlifd|
At 1 |anuary {1,513,663) 1,598,377 B5,714
Met [chargel/credit to the income statement
Current service cost [52,445) 383§ (52,829)
Interest (costjfincome 15, 744) 5574 {165)
(58, 190) 5,196 (52,9%94)
Met credit to other comprahenzive income
Remeasurements Ealr
Actuarial gain arising from:
Experience adjustment 5473 - 5473
Financial assumptions 77,582 - 77,582
Demaographic assumption 121 - 121
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 156,970 156,570
E3,17TE 156,970 240,146
Other
Contributions paid by the employer - 30916 3096
Contributians pald by the employes (B, 711) BN -
Benefits pald 08,565 {08, 565) -
Net transfer 1,165 (1,165) -
AL 31 December {1.395,658) 1,659,440 303,782
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Pension assets (Continued)
{a} Defined benefit plans [Continued)

Fair walue af the plan assets is analysed as folliws:

2022 2021
PH‘EEI'IHF Per:enu[e

'E[]Llﬂ'!f INSpruments

Comglomerates and manufacturing 2% 2%
Consumer markets 2% 2%
Energy and utilities 1% 1%
Financial institutions and units trust 43% 55%
Health and care % 3%
Insurance 10 1%
Feal estata 0% 0%
Information technology % T4
Othiers L 1%
B% 72%

Debt instruments
Government {other than US) T 5%
Financial institutions G EL
UG Treasury T% o
Others 1% 2%
34% 22%
Cash and others 6% 6%
100% 100%

Thi debt instrumants are analysed by issuer’s credit rating as fallows:

2022 2021

Percentage  Percentage

Aaarhis 16% 7%
Aaidde 1% 15%
AaiIAA 4% 6%
Aa3fma- % 8%
AlIA+ 15% 14%
ALIA 5% 9%
AdfA 1% 9%
Baal/BEA+ L] 9%
Baal/BEE 4% kL
Other lower grade 2% 254
M imeestment grade 12% 8%
100% 100%
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AMNMUAL REPORT 20237

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension assets (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Thee fair walue af the above equity instruments and debit instruments is determined based an quoted market
prices,

Contributions to fund the obligations are based upon the recommendations of independent gualified
actuaries for each of the pension plans of the Group to fully fund the relevant schemes on an ongoing basis,
Thie realization of the deficit & contingent upan the realisation of the actuanial assumptions made which i
dependent upon a number of factors including the market performance of plan assets, Funding requirements
of the major defined benefit plans of the Group are detalled below,

The Group operates two principal persion plans in Hong Kong. One plan, which has been closed to new
enUants since 1994, provicdes pension benefits based on the greater of the aggregate of the employee and
employer vested contributions plus a minimum interest thereon of 6% per annum, and pension benefits
derived by a formula based on the final salary and years of service. An Independent actuarial valuation,
undertaken for funding purposes under the provision of Hong Kong's Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance PORSOMY, at | January 2022 reported a funding level of 164% of the accrued actuarial liabilities
on an angoing basis, The valuation used the attained age valuation method and the main assumptions in
the valuation are am investment return of 4% per annum, salary Increases of 3.5% per annum and interest
credited to balamces of 6% per annum. The valuation was prepared by Tian Keat Aun, a Fellow of The Institute
and Faculty of Actuaries, and Stewart Chan, a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries, of Towers Watson Hong
Keng Limited. The second plan provides benefits egual to the emplayer vested contributions plus 3 minimum
interest thereon of 5% per annum. As at 31 December 2022, vested benefits under this plan are fully funded
In accordance with the ORSO funding requirements. During the year ended 31 December 2022, forfelted
contributions totallimg HK$1,1.27,000 {2021: HESSE1,000) were used to reduce the level of contributions of the
year ended 31 December 2022 and no forfeited contribution was available at 31 December 2022 (20212 nil) to
reeduce futurg years contributions.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to chamges in the significant principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 1.3% Increase by 1,3%
Salary increase 0.25% Increase by 0.2% Decrease by 0.2%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated,
‘When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected wnit credit method at
the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within
the statement of financial position, The metheds and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis did not change compared bo previous year,

Thee Group expects (o make contributions of HES18,401,000 (2021: HK$32,000.000) 1o the defined Benalil plans
during the nest year,

The weighted sverage duration of the definad benafit obligation is 5.0 years as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 6.0
years),

Defined cantribution plans

The Group's cost in respect of defined contribution plans for the year amounted to HK$78,031,000 [2021:
HE$75.435,000)

e
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Other non-current liabllities
Group 022 201
HKS 000 HKS300
Derivative financial Instruments;
Cash low hedpes
Crogs currency Interest rate swaps 12,847 115,654
Less: current portion of cross currency Interest rate swaps (Note 21) [12,847) -
Mon-current portian of derivative financial instruments - 115,654
Lease liabilities 16,674 5859
Others 106,785 119,463
123,459 240,976
Units in Issue
Group and Trust Number of
units HKS000
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 202% and 31 December 2022 8.711,101,022 64,553,839
All isswed units are fully paid and rank parl passu in all respecis,
Investment in a subsidiary company
Trust 2022 2021
HKS'000 HES000
Imvestment cost 10,000 10,000
Capital coniribution 45,868,723 47,171,833
Less! accumulated impairment (24,212,051}  (24,212,051)
21,666,672 22,965,782

Pursuant to an investment agreement betwean HPH Trust and a whally-owned subsidiary, HPHT Limited,
dated 4 August 2011, HPH Trust made capital contributions of HEK$67, 280,000,000 to HPHT Limited (“Capital
Contribution?) through capitalising the amounts due from the subsidiary, HPH Trust has no right to require
HPHT Limited to return any Capital Contribution. HPHT Limited may return te HPH Trust any Capital
Centribution at any time In whole or In part. Accordingly, the Capital Contribution Is accounted for as

investment in a subsidiary company.

Details of subsidiary companies of the Group are distlosed in Note 31,
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MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

27  Notes to consolldated statement of cash flows

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations is as follows:

2022 201
HES D00 HES'000
Operating profit 4,280,938 5.378.786
Depreciation and amorisation 3003976 3050872
Net gain on disposal of fived assets (140) [10,493)
Dividend incoma (19,034) (28,854)
Imterest income [172,443) (63,677
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,083,298 B8.326,634
Decrease in inventories 6,955 12,784
Decreasedincrease) in trade and other receivables 1,628,943 (BB2,4T6)
Movermnent in balances with associated companies and joint ventures (9,121 8417
{Decrease)fincrease in trade and other payables [E95,301) 1,136,655
Decroase in pension assers 42532 22078
Cash generated from operations 8,067,306 8,624,002
ib}  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:
Cross currancy
Interest rate
SWap contracts
and interest rate
Bank SWap contracts
Dividend loans Bank hedd to hedge
payaile repayable Izans against foreign
te non- nat  repayable currency risks and
controlling  exceeding more than  Guaranteed  fair value risks of Lease
interests 1 yoar 1 year nates bank lnans  liabilities Total
HEF000 HEST0D HE$'000 HK5' 000 HESD00  HKST000 HESD00
A1 January 2023 - 329469 10007454 15518184 28,077 17959 28966343
Cash Bows (Note) (RO06S5Y) (32000 5273500 (3,900,000 = (14381 (3545833
Faresgn exchange
adjusiments 2512 - - - - - 2512
Transfer between
categories 5067650 (5087659
Dividends to non-
controfing interests 2,004,440 - - - - - 2004440
Iricr marse i brase
liabilives - - - - - 24,765 4765
Other nan-cash
mavements - 3,331 17,074 23359 (340,264) 722 [295,778)
A1 31 December 222 - L0ATESS 10330360 11,641,543 (312187 29065 267564459

Note: The total cash outfiow for the leases in 2022 was HK353,577,000,
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2T  Notes to consolldated statement of cash Mows (Continued)

(b} Reconciliation of liahilities arising from financing activities is as follows: (Continued)

Cross currency
interest rate
swap contracts
and interest rate
swap CONLracts
Bank heeld to hedge
Dividend loans Bank against foreign
payable repayable leans currency risks and
to non- fot  repayabbe Tair value ritks of
controlling  exceeding morethan Guaranteed  guarantesd notes Lease
Interests 1 year 1 year nates and bank loans  labilities Total
HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HHEST00 HKST00  HEST00 HESTO0
ALY January 2021 - 390,570 17563628 TIE4545 297,524 30,077 25646344
Cash fows |Note] [1.208635) [399,000) a1%0,000) T7355ES - (12,747  |),867.997)
Foreign exthange
adjustments 3,250 - - - - - 3150
Tramsier hetween
categories - 3294667 (32%4663) - = = z
Dividends to non-
controling inferests 1205548 - - - - = 1205546
Decrease in baase
liabilities - - - - - 1360 {360)
QOther nan-tash
Maviments - 143 8455 18,053 [263.447) 583 [Z20,48G)
At 31 December 2021 - 3282650 10107458 15514184 28077 17,950 23,966,343
Note: The tatal cash outfiow for the leasas in 2027 was HESET, 479,000,
23  Commitmeants
[E1] The Group's capital commitments are as follows:
2022 2021
HKS 000 HKS 000
Fixeed assers and prﬂ]ﬂ'ﬁ under development
Contracted but not provided for 62,064 45,383
Eapﬂilﬂ Coniroution o a jeint veniure - 1.240,198

182
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MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Commitments (Continued)

The Group's share of capital commitments of the joint ventures is as follows:

2022 2021
HESD00 HHKS'000
Contracted but not provided for 2,590,767 42,365

The Group leases varlous offices premises and port facilitles under non-cancellable leases expliring within
eleven months to twelve months (2021: two menths to eleven months), The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the tarms af the leases are renegatiated.

The future minimum lease payments for leases not recogmised in the fimancial statements are as lfollows:

0L 2021
HESD00 HES000
Within aone year 2,180 1,668

AL 31 December 2022, the Group has leased certain office premises and porl facliities o third parties under
nor-cancellable cperating leases. Aggregate minimum lease recelvables are as follows:

2022 2021
HES D00 HKS 000
Within one year 48,831 66,468
Between one and (wo years 28,823 43,527
Between two and three years 14,6590 -
02,344 109,955

163
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

29  Related parties transactions
Significant transactions between the Group and related parties during the year that are carried out in the
normal course of business are disclosed below. Outstanding balances with associated companies, joint
ventures and group companies are disclosed in Nates 15, 16, 20 and 21,

i Incame from and expenses to related parties

2022 2021
HES D00 HKS$000
Income:
Container handling fees recehned fram jaint ventures, an associated
company and related companies (Note a) 12819 11,554
Management, service and support fee received from related
companies (Mote b) 43,799 43,029
Transpartation management sendces fee InCome from related
compankes (Note c} 101,329 182,376
Interest income from a joint wenture and an assodiated comparny
[Mowe d) 29.308 28,804
Expenses:
Container handling charges paid Lo joint ventures and related
companies (Note e) 12109 11,956
Lease rentals on premises and port facilities paid to a joint venture,
an associated company and related companies (Note e] 17,189 10211
Trustee-Manager management fees (Note f
- Base fee 25,809 25,060
-« Development fee 21,029 3552
- Afquisition les - 72
Global support sarvices fees to a retated company (Maote gj 154 £56 150,362
Informatian technolegy (7T7) support and maintenance service fees
praid ta a joint venture and related companies (Mate h) 48676 46,712
Notes:

{a}  Container handling fees received from joint ventures, an associabed company and related
companies were charged at terms purscant to the relevant agreemaents,

i)  Management, service and support fee received from related companies were charged at terms
mutually agreed,

ich  Revenue from related companies for the provision of rransportation Management services was
charged at prices and terms mutually agreed.

{d} A loan of HK$120,000,000 provided to a joint venture s interest bearing at HIBOR plus 2.1% per
annum (2021: HIBOR plus 2.1% per annum). Anather loans of RMBS30,000,000, approximate
to HK$593.600,000 (2021 RMBS30,000,000, approximate to HK$G646,600,000) provided to an
assocated company is unsecured and interest beanng at a fixed rate of 4.0% per annum, As at
31 Decemmber 2021, another loan of AMBS0,000,000, approximate to HKS$109,800,000 provided to

an associated company ks unsecured and interest bearing at a fised rate of 2.3% per annum,

184
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29  Related parties transactions (Continued)
i Inceme from and expenses to related parties (Continued)
Mates: (Contimued)

{e}  Container handling charges and lease rentals paid to joint ventures, an assodiated company and
related companies were charged at terms pursuant to relevant agreements.,

iy  The Trustee.Manager's management (ees were charged in aceardance with the Trust
Deed,

The base fee was charged at a fixed fee of US$2,500,000 {equivalent to HE$19,500,000) per
annum which is subject to increase each year from 2012 by such percentage representing the
percEntage increass in the Hong Kong Composite Consumer Pricé Index, The bate fee for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is payable in cash. As the December 2022 figure for the Hong
Kong Composite Consumer Price Index is yet to be published as at the date of preparation af
these finandial statements, the adjustment to the base fee, il required, will be accounted for in
the subsequent financial year,

Development fee relates to the development project by YEPICT, a |oint venture of HPH Trust, was
charged in accordance with the Trust Deed which states that the development fee is payable in
arrears for every six maonths after the commencernent of the development project in respect of
project costs imcurred over the pravious sid-manth pariod, Pursuant (o the Trust Deed,

(1) where the rotal project costs incurred in the development project s less than US$500
million, the Trustee-Manager is entitled 1o receive a fee of 2.5% of the tolal project costs
incwrred (pro-rated to HPH Trust's 35.73% effective interest in the subject development
project): and

(2 where the total project costs incurred in the development project is US$500 million ar
more, the Trustee-Manager is entitled to receive a fee of US$12.5 million plus 1.5% of
the tatal project costs incurred which exceeds US$500 million [pro-rated to HPH Trust's
39,73% effective interest in the subject development project),

Total project costs incurred since commencement of the project up to 31 December 2022 ware
less than US8500 million, Development lees were caliulated based on the 2.5% of the project
costs incurred for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,

Acquisition fee relates to the acquisition of equity interest of 49.0% in SupplyLINE Logistics
Limited by the subsidlary of HPH Trust in 2021. They were charged in accordance with the Trust
Deed where the Sponsor (as defined in the Trust Deed) does not have direct or indirect interests
of mare than 50.0% in the investment acquired. [t was colculated based on 1.0% of the Emterprise
Value (a5 defined in the Trust Deed) of the subject investment.

®  Global support services fees in respect of administration services, and licence for certain
intellectual property rights were charged al prices and terms mutually sgreed,

hy 1T support and maintenance services fees in respect of the support and malntenance of IT
systams pald to a joint venture and related companies were charged at prices and terms
mutually agreed,
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

23

{a)

ib)

186

Related parties transactions [Continued)
i} jJoint Operating Alliance of the Kwal Tsing container terminals

Pursuant ta the Hong Kong Seapot joint Operating Alliance Agreement entered into by Hongkong
International Terminals Limited, COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited, Asia Container Terminals
Limited and Modern Terminals Limited, with affect from 1 April 2019, the partles collaborate with each
other for the efficient management and operation of the 23 berths across Terminals 1, 2. 4, 5 6, 7,
& and 9 (together the "Combined Termmnal Facilities”) in Kwai Tsing. The revenue and costs from the
fmanagement and apefatian of the facilities af the Cambined Terminal Facilities are shared amang the
parthes at a pre-agreed ratio.

{liiy Key management compensation
Key management of the Group includes managing directors and key management of the deep-water

canainer ports of the Group. The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee
services |s shown Delow:

2022 2021
HKS'000 HKS 000
Salaries and employee benefits 25,273 25,094

Fimancial risk and capital management
Cash management and funding

The major financial instruments of the Group include lkquid funds, investments, trade and ather recelvables,
trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
nates to the financial statements. The risk management programme of the Group I$ designed to minimise the
financial risks of the Group. These risks indude credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity
risk,

The Group generally obtains long-term financing to meet funding requirements. Management of the Group
regularly and clasaly moniters its overall net debl pasition and reviaws s funding costs and maturity profile 1o
facilitate refinancing.

Capital management

The Group's strategy invalves adopting and maintaining an appropriate mix of debt and equity to ensure
aptimal returms to unitholders, while maintaining sufficient Nexibility to implement growih strategies,

The Group may consider diversifying its sources of debt financing by accessing the debt capital markess
through the issuance of bonds to optimise the debt maturity profile and to make adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditons.

The Group has complied with all externally imposed capital requirerments which include a leverage ratio.

At 31 Decembar 2022, total equity amounted to HK$46 276,746,000 [2021: HKS47,399.123,000), and
consolidated net debt, which represents cash less bank and other debts, of the Group was HE$16,744,832.000
(2027; HE$17,989,993,000),
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ANMUIAL REBCORT 20232

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30  Financial risk and capital management (Continued)
{c) Credit exposure

The Group's holdings of cash and cash equivalients, eross currency interest rate swaps contracts and interest
rate swaps contracts with financial Institutions expose the Group (o counterparty credit risk, The Group
controls |ts credit risk to non-performance by its counterparties through regular review and monitaring of
their credit ratings.

The recaivabiles trom custamers and other counterpamies also expose the Group o credit risk, The Growp
controls its oredit risk by assessing the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on Internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the management. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored,

The ECL on frade receivables is caloulated using a provision matrix whare a provision rate applies based on
Its historical pbserved default rates, as adjusted by forward-looking informatlon, On that basis. no material
additional ECL was recognised as at 31 December 2022 and 2021,

{d]  Interest rate exposure
The Group’s main imterest risk exposures relate (o cash and cash equivalents, leans from non-controlling
interests, bank and other debts. The Group manages its interest rate exposure with a focus on reducing the
Group's overall cost of debt and exposure to changes in interest rates.

The impact of 3 hypothetical 5 basis points increase in market interest rate at the end of the reporting period
would Increase the Group’s profit and unitholders’ equity by HKS1 2448 000 (202 1; HK$6,776.000),

The Group his entered into cross currency interest rate swap conftracts and interest rate swap contracts to
achieve an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with the Group's policy.

The effects of the interest rate swap coniracts and Cross CUITency interest rate swap contracts on the Group's
financial position and performance are as follows:

2022 2021

HE$'000 HKS'000
Carrying amount (asseis/(llabllties) N2187 {20,087}
Maotianal amaunt (Note) 7.800.000 7,800,000
Maturity date March 2023 to March 2023 to
March 2025 March 2025

Hedge ratio 11 11
Change i fair value of outstanding hedging instruments since 1 [anuary 135,819 5,348
Change in value of hedged fem used to determine hedge effectiveness {135.819) (5.348)
Pay average interest rate £.15% 2.15%
Receive average interest rate 2.46% 0.84%

Note:

The contractual notional amount of interest rage swaps held lar hedging which is based on LIBOR is
HKS7,200,000,000 (2021: HK$7,800,000,000),
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

30  Financial risk and capital management (Continued)

(e}  Foreign currency exposure
The Group has entered into orass currency nterest rate swap contracts 1o hedge its foreign currency exposure
in respect of bank borrowings denominated in United States dollars with principal amount equivalent 1o
HES$2,900 million (2021: HK$7,800 million) to HK dollar borrawings.

The effects of the cross currency interest rate swap contracts on the Group's financial position and
perfarmance ane as fallows:

022 20

HES000 HES'000

Carrying amount {liabilities) [12.847) {113,644)
Notional amount 3,900,000 7,800,000
Maturity date Mareh 2023 September 2022
to March 2023

Hedge ratho 11 11
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments since 1 January B4z 5494
Change in value of hedged item used (o determing hedge effectveness (B42) 15,494)
Average exchange rate HEK$? B4/USST HK$7T.83/U5%1

For overseas subsidiares, associated companies and joint ventures, which cansist of nan-Hong Kong dallar
assets, the Group generally monitors the development of the Group's cash Mows and debt market and. when
apprapriate, would expect to refinance these businesses wath local currency borrowings.

Currency rick as defined by HKFRS 7 arises on financial instruments denominated in a currency that is net
the functional currency and being of a monetary nature except far the currency risk between United States
dallar and Hong Kong dollas given the two currencies are under the linked axchange rate system, Differences
resulting from the transiation of financial statements of overseas subsidiaries into the Group's presentation
currency are therefore not taken into consideration for the purpose of the sensitivity analysis for currency risk.

The impact of a hypathetical 5% weakening of the HK dollar against all exchange rates at the end af the
regarting period, with all other variables held constant, on the Group's profit for the year is set out as below,

Hypothetical increase/
{decrease) in profit

2022 2021
HKS'000 HKSD00
Renminbi 36,340 B34
Singapore dollar {184) 213)
Others 17 5
36,173 63,927

188
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AMMHUAL BEPORT 2037

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk and capital management (Continued)
Liquidity expasure
The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting perind of the

Group's and the Trusts financial Rabilites, which are based on contractual undiscounted principal cash flows
and the earliest date on which the Group and the Trust can be required o pay:

Group Contractual maturities
Total Within

Carrying  undiscounted Within 2to5 After
amaunts cash flows 1 year years 5 years
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HES DO HES 000

2022
Trade and other payables 6,074,844 5,578,785 5.978,785 - -
Bank and other debts 27,039,571 47,140,000 5,070,000 42,070,000 -
Other non-current labilities 16,674 16,163 - 16,162 -
33,071,089 33,134,998 11,048,785 22,086,163 -

2
Trade and other payables 6,713,045 5,724,228 6,724 228 - -
Banmk and ather debis 28920307 20,038,000 7198000 21,840,000 -
Other non-current liabilities 121,513 144,346 91,304 52,952 -
35,754,865 35,906,574 14013622 21,892,952 -

The tabke for the Group abeve excludes interest accruing and payable on certain of these Habilities which is
estimated (0 be HKEE96,067,000 (2021: HKS538,741,000) in “within 1 year” maturity band, HK$1,494,649,000
(2021 HEK$819,601,000) in “within X to 5 years™ maturity band, and after assuming the effect of interest rates
with respect to variable rate financial labilities remaining constant and no change in aggregate principal
amount of finarcial iebilities other than repayment at scheduled maturity as reflected in the table,

Trust i Contractual maturities
Tatal
Carrying  undiscounted Within Within
amounts cash fMlows 1year 2to5 years
HKS000 HES'000 HES D00 HES 000
2022
Trade and other payables 41,153 41,153 41,153 -
2021
Trade and other payablas 23,353 23,353 23,353 -
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

30  Financial risk and capital management (Continued)
(g} Fimancial instruments by category

The Following table shows the classification category and earrying amount as al 31 December 2027 and 37
Decemiber 2021 under HKFRS 2 for the Groug's financial assets and financial Habiities:

2022 202
Note Classification HKS000 HK$ 000

Fimancial assets
Listed equity security 17 FaCl 28,70 39,151
River Parts Economic Benefits 17 Fac 280,109 263,000
Interest rate swaps 17 Falr value-hedges 325,034 B5,567
Cross currency intérast rate swaps 20 Fair valua-hadges - 2010
Cash and cash equivalens 19 Amorised cost 10,395,168 11,048,007
Trade and other recevables 20 Amortised cost 3,065,557 3880157

14,095 579 15317892

Fimancial liahilities

Bank and ather debls 12 Amortised cost 27,039,571 28,920,307
Trade and other payables 4| Amonised cost 5,969,600 5,700,345
Lease liabilities 21.24 Amoriised cost 25,065 17,959
Crose curreEncy Inlerest Fale swaps 24 Fair value-hedges 12,847 115,654

33,071,089 35,754,865

Reprasenting |

Financial assets measured at

[l el 309810 32215
Amaortised cost 13.460,735 14,908,164
Falr value-hedges 325, 034 BI5T7
Financial liabilities measured at

Amaortised cost 33056242 33,639,211
Fair value-hedges 12,847 115,654

190
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AMNMUAL REPORT 20237

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

30  Financial risk and capital management (Continued)

(h}  Fair value estimation
The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements Tor linancial assets/(llabilities). These fair value
MEasUrements are categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs (o valuation
technigues used. The diferent levels are defined as follows:
Lewel 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level & Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or Nabilivies,
either directly (l.e. as prices)or indirectly (... derived from prices); and

Level 3 Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {i.e. unobservable

inputsh
Leval 1 Laval 2 Lavel 3 Total
Note HES000 HES000 HE$000 HKS 000
At 31 December 2022
Listed equity security 17 29,701 - - 29,701
River Ports Economic Benefits 17 - - 280,109 280,109
Cash Mlow hedges
Interest rate swaps 17 - 325,034 - 325,034
Cross currency mierest rate Swaps 24 - [12.847) - (12.847)
29,701 312,187 280,109 621,997
At 31 Decernber 2021
Listed eguity security 17 39,151 = = 39,151
River Ports Economic Benefits 17 - - 283,000 283,000
Cazh Now hidges
Interast rate swaps 17 - B5,567 - 85,567
Cross currency mnterest rate swaps 20 - 2,010 - 2,010
Cross currency mierest rate swaps 24 - [115,654) - (115,654)
39,151 [28.077) 283,000 204,074

The fair value of the cross currency interest rate swaps and Interest rate swaps included in level 2 category
above are estimated using the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield
curves, The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded In active market (level 3) is determined by
discounted cash fiow analysis with reference 1o inputs such as dividend stream,

Changing unobservable inputs used in Level 3 valuation to reasonable alternative assumptions would not have
significant impact on the Groups profit or koss,

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements.

Al 31 December 2022, the fair value of bank and other debts (Note 22) was HK$26,084.8 miliion (31 Decembser
2021: HK$29,059.4 million). The carrying amounts of the remaining financial assets and financial liabilities
approximane their falr values.

it
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NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

il
{a)

192

List of subsidiary companies of the Group

Detais of principal subsidiary companies of the Group at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as foflows:

Particulars of
Place of issued share Effective
incorporation’ capital/registerad interest held
Name astablishmant Principal activities capital 2022 20
HPHT Limired™ Hang Kong Inveestmient haldang HES 10,000,000 100% 1000
Giantfiald Resources British Virgin lslands  Investrment halding 2 ardinary shares of 100%: 100%
Limited= U551 each
HIT Investments British Virgin lslands  Investment halding 200 ordinary A 100%  100%
Limiged™ shares of UA$T each
BOO nonwvoling
preferred "B shares
of US$1 each
Paarl Spirit Limited™ British Virgin Islands  Inwestment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%:
541
Hongkong International  Hong Kong Development and HES 20 1000%: 100
Terminals Limitad™ operation of container
terminals
Yantian International China Development and HEKS 2 400,000,000 56.41% S6.41%
Coniainer Termina's operaticn of container
Limited" terminals
Yantlan internaticnal China Development and HE$E, 055,960,000 51.64% S1.64%
Contalner Terminag's Operation of contalner
[Phase 110 Limdted™ terminals
Shenzhen Pingyan China Provision of various RAB 150,000,000 51.64% 50.64%
Multimodal Company IFARSHOrEon Serices
Limiged "
Shenzhen Yartian West  China Development and RMBZ.343,300,000 51.64% 51.64%
Part Terminals operaticn of container
Limiged terminals
Hutchison Parts Yantian  Hong Kong Investmient halding HES 10,000,000 79.45% 70458
Limidad "
Wattrus Limited”! British Virgin tslands  Inwestmient halding 32 °A" shares of S4.BEW D4BEH
55T each
593 "B" shares of
U551 each
Sigma Entergrises British Virgin lslands  Inwestment holding 2,005 “A° shares of T9.45% To.45%
Limitad LI55Y aach
B.A424 °B" shares of
LISET each
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CIRT 2023

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

List of subsidiary companies of the Group (Continued)

Details of principal subskdiary companles of the Group at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

{Continuad)
Particulars of
Place of issued share Effective
incorporatian/ capitaliregistered Interest held
Name establishment Principal activitles capial 2022 203
Hutchison Ports: British Virgin Islands  Inwestment holding 2040 ordinary shares 100% 100
Yantian Investmants of U5%1 each
Limite™
Birrong Limited™ Britizh Virgin lslands  Inwestment hobding 10,000 ardinzry 100% 1003
shares of U5SS1 each
Hutchisan Shenthen British Virgin 1slands  Investment holding 1 ardinary share of 1008 1008
East Investments usst
Limated™

1] Audited by PricewaterhauseCoopers network firms

(2] Mot required 1o be audited wunder the knes of the country of incorporatian

Appainiment of auditors

The Trust has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-5T in relation to its auditors.
Material nan-controlling interests

Yantian International Contalner Terminais Limited, Yantian international Container Terminals (Phase (i)
Limited, Shenzhen Yantlan West Port Terminals Limited, Wattrus Limited and Slgma Enterprises Limited are
the suh=idiary companies with non-controfling interests that are material to the Group.

Set out bilow is the summarised financial information for these subsidiary companies:

Summarised statement of financial position

2022 2021
it BER000:
Non-current assets 58,547,303 50,681,858
Current assets 8,550,754 8,088,284
Tatal assets E7,008,067 &3,670,142
Nan-currént liabilties B223 BAS BART XIS
Current liabilities 3,613,665 4,366,386
Tatal liabifities 9,836,530 10,833,609
193
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 List of subsidiary companies of the Group [Continued)
{b)  Material non-contradling interests (Continued)

Summarised iIncome Statement

022 2021

HKS'000 HKE'000

Revenus and odher income HE79 353 9749513

het profit for the year 3,162,437 3,938,984
Summarised statement of cash flows

2022 2021

HKS'000 HKS' 000

Wet change in cash and cash equivalents {153,336} 3,008, 205

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2,006,952 1,208,836

The information above is the amount before inter-company afiminations.

32  Approval af the financlal statements

The financial statements set cut on pages 138 to 194 were appraved by the Board of Directors of the Trustee-
Manager lor issue on T Fabruary 2023,

194
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4(@)

2021 2020
13,244,074 236,407 10,705,840 191,099
(4,474,689) (79,873)  (3,568,543) (63,698)
(257,204) (4,591)  (256,252) (4,574)
(3,050,872) (54,458)  (3,054,011) (54,514)
417,901 7,460 193,165 3,448
(500,424) (8,933)  (513,339) (9,163)
(7,865,288)  (140,395) (7,198,980)  (128,502)
5,378,786 96,011 3,506,860 62,597
(616,466) (11,004)  (766,274) (13,678)
(81,530) (1,455) (83,470) (1,490)
115,580 2,063 73,404 1,310
4,796,370 85,615 2,730,520 48,740
(1,269,217) (22,656)  (717,976) (12,816)
3,527,153 62,960 2,012,544 35,924
(1,780,002) (31,773)  (1,181,100) (21,083)
1,747,151 31,187 831,444 14,841
20.06 3.58 9.54 1.70
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2021 2020
3,527,153 62,960 2,012,544 35,924
240,146 4,287 143,405 2,560
5,088 91 (60,350) (1,077)
253,664 4,528 (175,680) (3,136)
15,783 282 19,309 345
(604) 1) 24,103 430
1,813 32 2,382 43
139,745 2,494 352,674 6,295
655,635 11,703 305,843 5,459
4,182,788 74,663 2,318,387 41,383
(1,841,740) (32,875)  (1,354,640) (24,180)
2,341,048 41,788 963,747 17,203
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2021 2020
10 21,646,925 386,398 22,838,954 407,675
11 654,524 11,683 478,216 8,536
12 34,579,438 617,243 35,843,729 639,811
13 10,787 193 11,056 197
14(a) 4,833,360 86,275 5,167,566 92,241
14(b) 11,270,044 201,170 11,270,044 201,170
15 957,537 17,092 1,032,598 18,432
16 3,018,035 53,872 2,593,147 46,288
17 509,667 9,098 428,144 7,642
23 303,782 5,423 85,714 1,530
18 11,978 214 19,329 345
77,796,077 1,388,660 79,768,497 1,423,868
19 11,048,007 197,207 7,766,588 138,634
20 4,033,078 71,990 3,033,587 54,150
86,564 1,545 99,347 1,773
15,167,649 270,743 10,899,522 194,556
21 6,713,045 119,828 5,517,651 98,490
22 7,190,345 128,348 3,990,570 71,232
421,976 7,532 278,640 4,974
14,325,366 255,708 9,786,861 174,695
842,283 15,035 1,112,661 19,861
78,638,360 1,403,695 80,881,158 1,443,729
22 21,729,962 387,880 25,328,173 452,108
18 9,268,299 165,439 9,535,985 170,217
24 240,976 4,301 413,065 7,373
31,239,237 557,620 35,277,223 629,698
47,399,123 846,074 45,603,935 814,030
25 68,553,839 1,223,686 68,553,839 1,223,686
(41,447,029)  (739,829) (42,551,797)  (759,550)
HPH 27,106,810 483,857 26,002,042 464,136
20,292,313 362,218 19,601,893 349,894
47,399,123 846,074 45,603,935 814,030
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26

19
20

21

25

2021 2020
22,969,782 410,011 24,246,758 432,805
4,868 87 3,674 66

1,080 19 1,159 21

5,948 106 4,833 86
23,353 417 22,260 397
(17,405) (311) (17,427) (311)
22,952,377 409,700 24,229,331 432,494
68,553,839 1,223,686 68,553,839 1,223,686
(45,601,462)  (813,986) (44,324,508)  (791,192)
22,952,377 409,700 24,229,331 432,494
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2021 2020

27(a) 8,624,092 153,940 6,608,816 117,967

(500,516) (8,934)  (738,356) (13,180)

(1,388,674) (24,788)  (1,285,691) (22,950)

6,734,902 120,218 4,584,769 81,838
(422,659) (7,544)

(408,300) (7,288) (99,900) (1,783)

(232,267) (4,146)  (463,652) (8,276)

13,482 241 24,890 444

28,854 515 33,492 598

147,223 2,628 142,765 2,548

58,983 1,053 84,883 1,515

276,650 4,938 1,600 29

42,000 750

(538,034) (9,604)  (233,922) (4,176)

7,800,000 139,230 3,870,750 69,093

(8,182,000)  (146,049) (5,159,270) (92,093)
(64,414) (1,150)

(12,747) (228) (12,697) 27)
(10,476) (187)

(9,800) (175)

(1,236,976) (22,080)  (810,132) (14,461)

(1,208,836) (21,578)  (1,461,276) (26,084)

(2,915, 449) (52,041)  (3,582,425) (63,946)

3,281,419 58,573 768,422 13,716

7,766,588 138,634 6,998,166 124,917

19 11,048,007 197,207 7,766,588 138,634
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68,553,839 9,390)  (303,452)  (278,472)  (19,052) 356,512 (42,297,943) 26,002,042 19,601,893 45,603,935
1,747,151 1,747,151 1,780,002 3,527,153

240,146 240,146 240,146

5,088 5,088 5,088

253,664 253,664 253,664

15,783 15,783 15,783

(1,975) (1,975) 1,371 (604)

910 903 1,813 1,813

79,378 79,378 60,367 139,745

78,313 5,991 253,664 15,783 240,146 593,897 61,738 655,635

78,313 5,991 253,664 15,783 240,146 1,747,151 2,341,048 1,841,740 4,182,788

696 696 54,226 54,922
(1,236,976) (1,236,976) (1,236,976)
(1,205,546) (1,205,546)

68,553,839 69,619  (297,461)  (24,808) (3,269) 596,658 (41,787,768) 27,106,810 20,292,313 47,399,123
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68,553,839 (212,690)  (243,102)  (102,792) (38,361) 213,107 (42,319,083) 25,850,918 19,712,405 45,563,323

831,444 831,444 1,181,100 2,012,544

143,405 143,405 143,405
(60,350) (60,350) (60,350)

(175,680) (175,680) (175,680)|

19,309 19,309 19,309

17,804 17,804 6,299 24,103
2,382 2,382 2,382
185,433 185,433 167,241 352,674
205,619 (60,350)  (175,680) 19,309 143,405 132,303 173,540 305,843

205,619 (60,350)  (175,680) 19,309 143,405 831,444 963,747 1,354,640 2,318,387

172 an)
(2,491) (2,491) 4,747 2,256
(810,132)  (810,132) (810,132)
(1,469,899) (1,469,899)
68,553,839 (9,390)  (303,452) (278,472)  (19,052) 356,512 (42,297,943) 26,002,042 19,601,893 45,603,935
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1,223,686 (168) (5,417) (4,971) (340) 6,364  (755,018) 464,136 349,894 814,030
31,187 31,187 31,773 62,960
4,287 4,287 4,287
91 91 91
4,528 4,528 4,528
282 282 282
(35) (35) 24 1)
16 16 32 32
1,417 1,417 1,078 2,494
1,398 107 4,528 282 4,287 10,601 1,102 11,703
1,398 107 4,528 282 4,287 31,187 41,788 32,875 74,663
12 12 968 980
(22,080)  (22,080) (22,080)
(21,519)  (21,519)
1,223,686 1,243 (5,310) (443) (58) 10,650  (745,912) 483,857 362,218 846,074
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1,223,686 (3,797) (4,339) (1,835) (685) 3,804  (755,396) 461,439 351,866 813,305
14,841 14,841 21,083 35,924
2,560 2,560 2,560
(1,077) (1,077) (1,077)
(3,136) (3,136) (3,136)
345 345 345
318 318 112 430
43 43 43
3,310 3,310 2,985 6,295
3,670 (1,077) (3,136) 345 2,560 2,362 3,098 5,459
3,670 (1,077) (3,136) 345 2,560 14,841 17,203 24,180 41,383
3 ?)
(44) (44) 85 40
(14,461) (14,461) (14,461)
(26,238)  (26,238)
1,223,686 (168) (5,417) (4,971) (340) 6,364  (755,018) 464,136 349,894 814,030
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2021 12 31
2021 68,553,839 (44,324,508) 24,229,331
(39,978) (39,978)
(1,236,976) (1,236,976)
2021 12 31 68,553,839 (45,601,462) 22,952,377
2020 68,553,839 (43,477,293) 25,076,546
(37,083) (37,083)
(810,132) (810,132)
2020 12 31 68,553,839 (44,324,508) 24,229,331
2021 1,223,686 (791,192) 432,494
(714) (714)
(22,080) (22,080)
2021 12 31 1,223,686 (813,986) 409,700
2020 1,223,686 (776,070) 447,616
(662) (662)
(14,461) (14,461)
2020 12 31 1,223,686 (791,192) 432,494
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CGU
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4
@
2021 2020
12,734,118 10,416,924
402,551 169,654
35,107 35,537
7,002 6,831
1,619 1,255
13,180,397 10,630,201
63,677 75,639
13,244,074 10,705,840
®)
HPH
HPH
HPH
2021 2020 2021 2020
3,715,152 3,266,758 21,213,393 21,941,598
9,528,922 7,439,082 56,582,684 57,826,899
13,244,074 10,705,840 77,796,077 79,768,497
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2021 2020

17 25,462 30,640
10,493 15,556
418 85,533

17,697
13,983 13,672
2,676 1,025
1,294,106 1,291,938
542 507
334,206 334,205
1,410,335 1,415,340
11,683 12,021
64,413 66,456
1,359,949 1,276,564
128,429 70,740
1,593

2020 12 31

279/501
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2021

275,488
288,590
3,139
989
48,260

2020

478,528
237,794
3,105
1,561
45,286
(3,647)

3,647

616,466

766,274

2021

1,529,039
(259,822)

2020

1,094,385
(376,409)

1,269,217

717,976

2021

4,762,320

2020

2,740,586

1,217,811
(170,860)
(8,281)

93,561

155,674
(4,403)
(14,430)

37

108

733,854
(169,214)
(25,010)
93,007
112,182
@
(32,587)
4,057
1,689

1,269,217

717,976
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2021 2020
2019 2019 12 31
5.00 435,555
2020 2020 30
4.30 374,577
2020 2020 12 31
7.70 670,755
2021 2021 30
6.50 566,221
1,236,976 810,132
2022 2021 2021 12 31
8.00 2020 7.70
696.9 2020 670.7 2022 25
2022 12 31
2021 12 31 HPH
1,747,151,000 2020 831,444,000
8,711,101,022 2020 8,711,101,022

2021 2020 12 31
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10

2021
15,616,352 6,743,300 2,503 476,799 22,838,954
962 11,299 12,261
" 17,533 111,160 21,308 150,001
(627,390) (720,927) (592) (73,109)  (1,422,018)
(162) (5,658) (813) (6,633)
57,936 13,028 3,39 74,360
15,065,231 6,152,202 1,098 428,394 21,646,925
2021 12 31
21,338,353 13,328,113 9,484 1,070,764 35,746,714
(6,273,122)  (7,175,911) (8,386) (642,370)  (14,099,789)
15,065,231 6,152,202 1,098 428,394 21,646,925
2020
16,027,154 7,243,590 13,006 505,784 23,789,534
5,013 806 2,087 7,906
" 60,202 181,937 42,867 285,006
(625,491) (717,786) (2,519) (81,565)  (1,427,361)
(529) (598) (7,984) (223) (9,334)
150,003 35,351 7,849 193,203
15,616,352 6,743,300 2,503 476,799 22,838,954
2020 12 31
21,251,873 13,279,433 10,608 1,065,111 35,607,025
(5,635,521)  (6,536,133) (8,105) (588,312) (12,768,071)
15,616,352 6,743,300 2,503 476,799 22,838,954
2.5
2021 12 31 2020
1,067,000 3,275,000
2020
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2021

14,912

126

2020

22,582
3,195
912

15,038

26,689

2021

10,890

793

2020

10,232
1,217
572

11,683

12,021

2021

478,216
324,582
(150,001)

1,727

2020

648,058
109,418
(285,006)

5,746

654,524

478,216

283/501
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2020
2020

7,477,950,000
283,028,000
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2021

35,843,729
(1,294,106)
29,815

2020

37,046,989
(1,291,938)
88,678

34,579,438

35,843,729

48,357,185
(13,777,747)

48,319,007
(12,475,278)

34,579,438

35,843,729

2021 12 31

284/501
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2021

11,056
(542)
273

2020

10,813
(507)
750

10,787

11,056

16,966
(6,179)

16,357
(5,301)

10,787

11,056

2021

5,167,566
(334,206)

2020

5,501,771
(334,205)

4,833,360

5,167,566

8,440,000
(3,606,640)

8,440,000
(3,272,434)

4,833,360

5,167,566

285/501
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CGU
2021 2020
11,270,044 11,270,044
11,270,044 11,270,044
2021 2020
11,270,044 11,270,044
304
11,270,044 11,270,044
2021
2020
2020 10
CGU
0.5 0.5 0.5
22 11 15 CGU
23 24
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15

2021 2020
310,937 425,698
646,600 606,900
957,537 1,032,598
530,000,000 646,600,000 2020 510,000,000
606,900,000 4.0 2023
2021 2020 12 31
23.84
41.31
(@)
)
2021 12 31
2021 2020
(81,530) (83,470)
(604) 24,103
(82,134) (59,367)

287/501
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HIBOR
2020 4,350,000

2021 2020 12 31

COSCO-HIT

veerict @

2021 12 31
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2021 2020
3,825,835 3,398,797
122,200 124,350
(930, 000) (930, 000)
3,018,035 2,593,147
120,000,000 2020 120,000,000
2.1 2,200,000

50.00

40.00

50.00

50.00

49.00

39.73

28.21

288/501
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2021

115,580
1,813

2020

73,404
2,382

117,393

75,786

2021

39,151
283,000
45,759
56,190

85,567

2020

32,063
285,000
37,236
73,845

509,667

428,144

2021

(11,978)
9,268,299

2020

(19,329)
9,535,985

9,256,321

9,516,656

289/501
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2020
2020
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(19,449) 547,006 8,652,669 343,323 (6,893) 9,516,656
7,108 (27,250)  (358,493) 117,577 1,236 (259,822)
12) (26) (469) (6) (513)
(12,353) 519,730 8,294,176 460,431 (5.663) 9,256,321
(29,616) 579,921 9,012,692 337,037 (6,872) 9,893,162
10,181 (32,874)  (360,023) 6,286 21 (376,409)
14) (41) (42) <)
(19,449) 547,006 8,652,669 343,323 (6,893) 9,516,656
2021 12 31 115,381,000 2020
135,329,000
90,532,000 2020 12 31 104,103,000
24,849,000 2020 12 31 31,226,000
2021 2020
223
3,017 4,878
11,364 5,267
10,197 10,318
48 10,763
24,849 31,226
12
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2021 2020
1,620,219 1,441,119
9,427,788 6,325,469

11,048,007 7,766,588

2021 2020

4,868 3,674

2021 2020

43 56
10 14
47 30
100 100

2021 2020

76 46

3 7
21 47
100 100
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2021 2020
a 3,464,903 2,623,127
(50,786) (51,043)
3,414,117 2,572,084
341,978 278,422
b 17,955 26,863
b 147,218 156,218
c 109,800
2,010
4,033,078 3,033,587
2021 2020
366 389
b 714 770
1,080 1,159
2021 2020
48 46
41 39
11 15
100 100
2021 2020
100 100

(@ 2020 2,585,212,000

292/501
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2021 12 31
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2.3

50,786,000 2020 51,043,000
HKFRS

2021 2020
51,043 51,261
650
(251) (234)
(563)
(93) 16
50,786 51,043
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21

2021 2020
6,403,773 5,131,248
115,756 148,936
12,100 14,294
24 23,817
100,958 109,407
2,898 2,908
77,560 87,041
6,713,045 5,517,651
2021 2020
5,642 5,956
16,477 12,320
b 1,234 3,984
23,353 22,260
2021 2020
83 65
15 33
2 2
100 100
2021 2020
5 18
71 55
24 27
100 100
2021 12 31

294/501



@
2020 83,300,000
2020 12 31
(b)
22
2021 12 31
2020 12 31
2020 2021 2025
2017 2022
2019 11 2024
2021
1.50 500
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70,000,000 85,400,000
2.0
30,380,000
2021 12 31
3,298,000 10,140,000 13,438,000
3,900,000 11,700,000 15,600,000
7,198,000 21,840,000 29,038,000
(7,655) (110,038) (117,693)
7,190,345 21,729,962 28,920,307
3,992,000 17,628,000 21,620,000
7,800,000 7,800,000
3,992,000 25,428,000 29,420,000
(1,430) (99,827) (101,257)
3,990,570 25,328,173 29,318,743
2022 2026
2.75 500
2.875 500
2026 2.00 500 2026
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2021 12 31 2.3 2020
2.0
2021 2020
11 15
89 85
100 100
23
2021 2020
303,782 85,714
@
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

HKAS 19 2011
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2021 2020
1.20 -1.50  0.30 - 0.60
3.50 3.50
5.00 -6.00 5.00 - 6.00
2021 2020
1,699,440 1,599,377
(1,395,658) (1,513,663)
303,782 85,714
(1,513,663) 1,599,377 85,714
(52,446) (383) (52,829)
(5.744) 5,579 (165)
(58,190) 5,196 (52,994)
5,473 5,473
77,582 77,582
121 121
156,970 156,970
83,176 156,970 240,146
30,916 30,916
(6,711) 6,711
98,565 (98,565)
1,165 (1,165)
(1,395, 658) 1,699,440 303,782
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2020

(1,447 ,445) 1,405,698 (41,747)
(50,533) 363 (50,170)
(21,058) 20,756 (302)
(71,591) 21,119 (50,472)
723 723
(93,751) (93,751)
152 152
236,823 236,823
(92,876) 236,823 143,947
33,986 33,986

(7,345) 7,345

98,823 (98,823)

6,771 (6,771)
12 31 (1,513,663) 1,599,377 85,714
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2021 2020

1 1

55 52

3 3

1 1

0 1

7 7

1 2

72 71

5 7

4 7

5 4

8 7

22 25

6 4

100 100

2021 2020

Aaa/AAA 17 17

Aal/AA+ 15 15
Aa2/AA

Aa3/AA- 8 8

Al/A+ 14 14

A2/A 9 9

A3/A- 9 9

Baal/BBB+ 9 9

Baa2/BBB 3 3

2 2

8 8

100 100
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1994
ORSO
2019 30 134
2021 12 31 ORSO
2021 12 31 981,000 2020
859,000 2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020
0.25 1.5 1.5
0.25 0.2 0.2
32,000,000 (2020 34,360,000 )
2021 12 31 6.0 2020 6.6
®)
75,435,000 2020

20,268,000

300/501
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2020

21

2020 12 31
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2021

12 31
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2021 2020
115,654 256,930
40,594
(23,817)
115,654 273,707
5,859 15,783
119,463 123,575
240,976 413,065
8,711,101,022 68,553,839
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2021 2020

10,000 10,000

47,171,833 48,448,809

(24,212,051) (24,212,051)

22,969,782 24,246,758

HPH HPHT 2011
HPH HPHT 67,280,000,000
HPH HPHT
HPHT HPH

31
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2021 2020
5,378,786 3,506,860
3,050,872 3,054,011

(10,493) (15,556)
(28,854) (33,492)
(63,677) (75,639)
8,326,634 6,436,184
12,784 3,038
(882,476) (10,158)
8,417 16,409
1,136,655 147,399
22,078 15,944
8,624,092 6,608,816
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(b)
2021 3,990,570 17,563,628 7,764,545 297,524 30,077 29,646,344
(1,208,836) (3,992,000) (4,190,000) 7,735,586 (12,747) (1,667,997)
3,290 3,290
3,294,669 (3,294,669)
1,205,546 1,205,546
(360) (360)
1,430 28,495 18,053  (269,447) 989  (220,480)
2021 12 31 3,294,669 10,107,454 15,518,184 28,077 17,959 28,966,343
2021 67,479,000
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2020 202,545 18,708,669 11,645,134 144,801 40,722 30,741,871
(1,461,276)  (202,560) 2,814,040 (3,900,000) (12,697) (2,762,493)

(8,623) 15 405 (8,203)

3,647 3,647

3,986,050 (3,986,050)

1,469,899 1,469,899

491 491

4,520 26,564 15,764 152,723 1,561 201,132

2020 12 31 3,990,570 17,563,628 7,764,545 297,524 30,077 29,646,344
2020 60,260,000
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2021 2020

45,883 37,113
1,241,198

2021 2020

42,365 5,670
11

2021 2020
1,669 357

2021 2020
104,841 69,973
102,554 65,646
101,079 65,793
52,286 59,277
18,268 12,400
379,028 273,089

306/501
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2.1

510,000,000
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120,000,000

606,900,000
4.0

15 16 20
2021 2020
11,554 26,012
b 43,029 43,080
182,376 38,105
28,804 25,239
11,956 12,256
10,211 16,451
f
25,060 24,593
3,552
72 270
g 150, 362 147,560
I

) 46,712 44,781
HIBOR 2.1 2020  HIBOR

530,000,000 646,600,000

90,000,000 109,800,000

2.3

307/501

21

2020
2020
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®©
™
2,500,000 19,500,000
2012 2021 12 31
2021 12
HPH YEPICT
(6H) 500
2.5
HPH 39.73
@ 500
12.5 500
1.5 HPH
39.73
2021 12 31 2021 12 31
500 2.5
49.0
9.7287 2021 2020
HPH
50.0
1.0
@
©) IT IT

308/501
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)

2021 2020

7,238

)

2021 2020

29,094 28,946

30

@

®)

309/501
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2021 12 31 47,399,123,000 2020 45,603,935,000

17,989,993,000
2020 21,653,412,000

©

ECL
2021 2020 12 31
ECL

@

4,924,000 2020 8,487,000
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11,700,000,000

HKFRS

LIBOR

7,800
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2021 2020
(30,087) (285,550)
7,800,000 11,700,000
2023 2021
2025 2025
11 11
5,348 150,553
(5,348) (150,553)
2.15 2.62
0.84 0.94
7,800,000,000 2020
2020 7,800
2021 2020
(113,644) (256,930)
7,800,000 7,800,000
2022 2022
2023 2023
11 11
5,494 (53,431)
(5,494) 53,431
7.83 7.83
1 1
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2021 2020
64,134 11,477
(212) (192)
5 15
63,927 11,300
6,713,045 6,724,228 6,724,228
28,920,307 29,038,000 7,198,000 21,840,000
121,513 144,346 91,394 52,952
35,754,865 35,906,574 14,013,622 21,892,952
5,517,651 5,517,651 5,517,651
29,318,743 29,420,000 3,992,000 25,428,000
289,490 197,395 128,437 68,958
35,125,884 35,135,046 9,638,088 25,496,958
538,741,000 2020 516,531,000
819,601,000 2020 765,902,000
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2021
23,353 23,353 23,353
2020
22,260 22,260 22,260
@
HKFRS 2021 12 31 2020
12 31
2021 2020
17 FVOCI 39,151 32,063
17 FVOCI 283,000 285,000
17 85,567
20 2,010
19 11,048,007 7,766,588
20 4,031,068 3,033,587
15,488,803 11,117,238
2021 2020
22 28,920,307 29,318,743
21 6,700,945 5,479,540
21,24 17,959 30,077
24 115,654 256,930
24 40,594
35,754,865 35,125,884
FvoCI 322,151 317,063
15,079,075 10,800,175
87,577

35,639,211 34,828,360
115,654 297,524
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™

2021 12 31
17 39,151 39,151
17 283,000 283,000
17 85,567 85,567
20 2,010 2,010
24 (115,654) (115, 654)
39,151 (28,077) 283,000 294,074
2020 12 31
17 32,063 32,063
17 285,000 285,000
24 (256,930) (256,930)
24 (40,594) (40,594)
32,063 (297,524) 285,000 19,539
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 12 31 22 29,059.4
2020 12 31 29,611.2
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2021 2020

10,000,000 100 100
100 100

7 200 100 100

< 7 800

100 100

20 100 100
2,400,000,000 56.41 56.41
6,056,960,000 51.64 51.64
150,000,000 51.64 51.64
2,343,300,000 51.64 51.64
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2021 2020
10,000,000 79.45 79.45
(€Y
@ e 32 94.88 94.88
7 593
< 7 2,005 79.45 79.45
(€)) 7 8,424
200 100 100
@
@ 10,000 100 100
100 100
@
1
2
712 715

®)
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2021 2020
60,681,858 62,140,996
8,988,284 6,337,514
69,670,142 68,478,510
6,467,223 7,032,383
4,366,386 3,419,464
10,833,609 10,451,847

2021 2020
9,249,513 7,217,320
3,938,984 2,676,749

2021 2020
3,008,205 (526,870)
1,208,836 1,461,276

2022
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HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDIHGS TRUST

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Far the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

MNote HKS'000 HKS$'000

Revenue and other income aja) 13,244,074 10,705,840
Cost of services rendered [4,474,685) {3,568 543)
Staff costs (257,204} (256,252}
Depreciation and amortisation [3,050,872) (3,054,011}
Other operating income 417,901 193,165
Qther operating expenses {500,424) (513,339}
Total operating expenses [7,865,288] (7,196,980}
Ciperating profit 5 5,378,786 3,506 860
Interest and other finance costs [ {616,465) (766,274}
Share of profits less losses after tax of associated companies (81,530 {83,470}
Share of profits less losses after tax of joint ventures 115,580 73404
Brofit hefore tax 4,796,370 2,730,520
Tas 7 11,269.217) (717,976}
Profit far the year 1,527,153 202544
Allocated as; Profit attnbutabée to non-controfling interests (1,780,002 (1,181,100]

Profit attributable to unitholders of HPH Trust 9 1,747,151 31,444

HE cents HE cents

Earnings per unit attributable to unitholders of HPH Trust 9 20.06 9.54

12

319/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

ANMLIAL REPGRET 031

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

021 2020
HES000 HES 000
Praofit for the year 3527153 2012544
Other comprehensive incomed{lossk
Itermes that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 240,146 143,405
Imvestmeants
Valustion gains/(losses) taken 10 reserves 5,088 [G0,350)
fiems that may be reclassified subsequently to profic or loss:
Cash flow hedges arising from cross currency interest rate swap contracts and
Interest rate swap contracts
Fair value galns/{losses) recognised directly bn reserves 253 664 (175, 680)
Costs of hedging
Changes in fair value of currency basis spread 15,763 19,3059
Share of other comprehensive (lessincome of associated companies {604} 24,103
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures 1,813 2,382
Currency transiation differences 139,745 352,674
Total ather comprehensive income for the year 655,635 305,843
Tatal eamprehensive income lar the year 4 182 7RE 2318387
Allocated as; Attributable 1o non-canrolling inferests (1.841,740) {1.354,640)
Attributabsle to unitholders of HPH Trust 2341048 GR3, 747
Mote:
Items shown within other comprehensive incomedloss) have no tax effect.
13
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HUTCHISOH PORT HOLD|HGS TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
At 31 December 2021
2021 2020
MNore HKSD00 HKES000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 10 21,646,925 21,838,954
Projects under development 1" 654,524 478,216
Leasehald land arnd land use rights 12 34,575,438 35,843,729
Railway usage rights 12 10,787 11,056
Customer relationships 14(a) 4,833,360 5,167,566
Goodwill 14{b) 11,270,044 11,270,044
Assoclated COrmpanies 15 957,537 1032598
Joint ventures 16 3.018,035 2583147
Cither non-current assais 17 509,667 428,144
Pension assets 23 303,782 B5, 714
Deferred tax assets 18 11,978 19329
F9.796,007 79,768,457
Currgnt assots
Cash and bank balances 19 11,048,007 7,766,588
Trade and other recevables 20 4,033,078 3,033,587
Irventories B, 564 90,347
15,167,649 10,800,523
Current llabilities
Trade and other payables 21 6,713,045 5517651
Bank and ather debts 2 7,190,345 3,990,570
Current tax liabilites 421,976 278,640
14,325,366 9,786,861
Net current assets 842,283 1,112,661
Toral assets less current labilities 78,638,360 BO.BE1,158
Nom-current llabllities
Bank and other debts 22 21,720,962 25328173
Deferred tax habilities 18 59,268,299 9,535,985
Other non-current liakilities 24 240,976 413,065
31,236,237 352771223
Net assels 47,399,123 45,603,935
EQuUITY
Unilts in issue 25 68553 839 64,553 839
Reserves (A1,447.025)  (42,551,797)
Met assets attributable to unithalders of HPH Trust 27,106,810 26,002,042
Mon-controlling Interests 202482313 19,601,393
Tatal equity 47,399,123 45 503,935
114
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ANMLIAL REPGRET 031

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
NoLe HESD00 HES 00
ASSETS
MNon-current asset
Irvestment in a subssdiary company 26 22.969,7E2 24,246,758
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 19 4,868 3674
Trade and other receivables 20 1,080 1,159
5,948 4833
Current liability
Trade and other payables 21 23,353 22,260
MNet current labilicies (17,4055 (V7,427
Total assets less current labilities 22952377 24,229,311
EQUITY
Units in issue 25 B8 553 8310 &H.553 830
Reserves (45,601 462) (44,324 508)
Total equity 22952377 24,229,331
15
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HUTCHISOH PORT HOLD|HGS TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
2021 2020
Note HKS000 HES000
Operating activities
Cazh generated from oporations 2Ha) 8.624,092 6608316
Irterest and other finance costs paid {500,516} [738,336)
Tax paid {1,368,674) {1,285,6%1)
MNet cash from operating activitles 5,734,902 4 584,769
Investing activities
Imvestment in a jaint venture (422,659) -
Laan ta an associated campany (408, 3040} (59, 900)
Purchase of foed astets and projects under developmant (232,267} (#63,652)
Proceeds on disposal of fied assets 13,482 24,890
Dividends recefved from Investments 28,854 33492
Devidends received from associated companies and [oint ventures 147,223 142,765
Imterest recelved 56,983 54,883
Repayment of loans by an associated company and a joint venture 276,650 1.600
Restricted deposit released - 42,000
Net cash used in investing activities [538,034) [233,923)
Financing activities
My borrowings 7.800,000 3870750
Repayment of Dorrowings (8,182,000 15, 159.270)
Upfront debt transaction costs and facllities fees of borrowings (B, 414} -
Principal elements of lease payments [12,747) [V2.697)
Repaymem of loan 1o non-contraling interests (10,476} -
Payment to acquire additional interest in a subsidiary company - (3,300)
Distributions to unitholders of HPH Trust {1,236,976) [B810,132)
Dwidends to non-cantrolling interests _ {1,208836)  (1,461,276)
Met cash used in financing activities {2.915,439%9) {3.582,425)
Met changes in cash and cash egquawvalents 3281419 Toga2d
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 7.766,588 5998, 166
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 11,048,007 7,766,588

16
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AHMLIAL REPORT 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Exchange Copsal Maribuzably Ko

Units ln andether Zevalustion Hedging hedging  Peasion Accumulsted i coriroling
lssuz  resenves MESEFYE  FRSSIE  FESEMVE  PESEMYE losses  unitholders interests Tecal
HEST0)  HES00D HESDO0  HKSTO0 HESEO0  HKSDD) HEST08 HESH8)  HESDO0 ol

Graup
ALY Jarvaary 121 CRSSAEN M0 GIOASD GTEATD DROSD  BSESTD WAINAMML  DROOD0D 19600893 5600035
Profi for the year - - - - - - L MINST N JARIS0 L0002 1507153
Qiher tomorehensve intomefiosit

Remaasunerment of dafined banafi

pars t = % 3 - M - s - e
Ivetimenis

Viualion L Laken 1 neserves - - S48 - - - - 508 = Sk
Lash flow hedges arsing from pross

CHTROCY (nbeney rate Sep contracts

and insenest rabe wa coatracts:

Fier vkt ping recoprised diecty

N FESEnES - XiEed - 153554 3604
Costs of hedging:

Chanpes in far valie of turency

biass spread . - = - 1EE - * 15083 - I5m
Share of gther comprehentve ks o

socated (OMpanies = e - = = - {1973 130 [0
$hare of other COmprehenthve ntoms

of joint vertures - & ] - - - - 141 - 13
Currency ramshation dfferences - hm - - - - - T HI3ET 13 MR
Tl cther compiehersir intome - TRIE 5591 FEERMA  1LTRI ML . §HL597 LTIl BSSAIE
Tetal comprebesie income - MHE L e I € LML 234 LMD ATE2TEE
Transactons with camers;

Relatioy to purchais of non-tonlroling

nigressy - % = = . - - % Mann  Ha
Distributions - - x N - = [ 5RM  (1%I - (|28
[roddendts - - - - - - - = (LMA54E] (1206545
A31 Deenber 201 SRESBEN  GDGI9 (VAR MRS  (LINR SORMBY  WITETTRR) JTI0AAND  MSI3N3 413991
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Exchange Contsal Merisatable New
Unitsln andether Revalustion Hedging hedging  Pengion Accumulated 0 controling
lisue  resenves TEREFVE  PESSIVE  FES2MVE  PESENVE losses  unitholéers  ierests Tacdd

HRET0R  HESDO0M HESDO0  HEE000  HESO00  HKS00 HEST00 HESO00 RSO0 HISTOR

Geoup
AL ey J20 ENAET SN QEME (IR GRIEY DAN0T  WRAN90ER  ZSESNUNE 1ANLeS %I
Penlt for the year - - - - - - B3 48k E3LAL  LBETI00 20MZ544
Dither comprehersies intomaliosst
Remezsurement ol defined becadit
plins = e - - - 1348 - HLAS - s
[rvestminis:
Villuation bosses Liken 10 (e - - [BO.350) . . - - (B30 - B0
QUPTBACY e rale Sadp CONIrads
and interes rale swap toniracy:

Fat value ldse recogresed ey

i resanas - - - (TR - - - iNmgEn) - [175EE
Ciosts of hedging:

Changey in far vaiue of currenty

hass spread - - - - 18 - - 19,39 - BEN
Share of other comprehansse incoma

of associated frepanies = 17EM - B - - - 1754 L¥. ] FLRIIE
Share of ofher comprehenive ncome

of jaent ventures - 2 * o L - . 138 3 e
Cerrengy tramslatcn dffererces - 185433 - - - - - 162433 WM e
Total ether compethenshe ncame - JEEN [BL350) (PTRGED 1930%  MIAE - TR ms X0
Total tomprehnshe noome - NGEWE [BO3S0) (ITRSED 1R300 14IACS B4 GRITY  IESABM0 LT
Transtarted inffmm] netene - m - - - - il - - -
Transpctonms with owmen:

Relazing i purchase of mon-oniroling

indsrests - frAan - - - - - {248 a L56
Distributions - - - - - - L RE - A ] CO AR
Dhidends . - - - . - - o
At §1 December 3030 EASSLET (000 OULASH (URATD DA0SN IS WIMTAID  MOORAAD  19801E ASHRES
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ANMLIAL REPGRET 031

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF
HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Units in  Accumulated  Attributable

lssue losses to unitholders
HKS'000 HES 300 HKS'000
Trust
At 1 January 2021 68,553,839 (44,324, 508) 24271933
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - (30,978) (20,978}
Transactions with owners:

Dstributions B {1,736,976) 11,236,976)
At 31 December 2021 68,553,839 (A5,601,462) 22,852,377
AL T January 2020 68,553,839 (43,477,293} 25,076,546
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - {37.083) (37,083)
Transactions with owners

Dustributions = B10,133) (810,132)
At 31 Decembeer 2020 68,553,839 (44,324, 508) 24,229,331

ne

326/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISON PORT HOLDIHGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General Information

Hutchisan Port Heldings Trust {Trust® er *HPH Trust'] is a business trust constituted by a deed of trust dated
25 February 2071 (as amended) (the “Trust Deed”) and registered with the Monetary Authority of Singapore,
HPH Trust & principally regulated by the Business Trusts Act 2004 of Singapore and Securities and Futures
Act 2001 of Singapore. Under the Trust Deed, Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pie, Limited (the
“Trustee-Manager”), has declared that it will hold all its assets (including businesses] acquired on trust for the
unitholders as the Trustee-Manager of HPH Trust. The registered address of the Trustee-Manager is at 50
Raffles Place, #3201 Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048623, HPH Trust was listed on the Main Board of
Singapore Exchange Securitles Trading Limited (the “SGX-5T7) on 18 March 2011,

HPH Trust is established with the principal investment mandate of imvesting in, developing, operating and
managing deep-water container ports in the Guangdong Province of the China, Hong Kong and Macaw, HPFH
Triest may akso imvest in other types of port assets mcluding rived pors, which are complementary to the deep-
water container ports ewned by HPH Trust, as well as undertake cenain port ancillary services including, but
not limited to, trucking, feedering, frelght-forwarding. supply chain management. warehousing and distribution
services,

2 Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
{"HKF&S") issued by the Hong Kong institute of Ceriified Public Accountants ("HKICPA", The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investments and derivative
financial instruments which are stated at falr value, as explained in the significant accounting policies set out in
Note 2.

There is no material difference in preparing the financial statements using HKFRS and International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). Mo material adjustments are required to restate the financlal statements
prepared under HKFRS to comply with IFRS.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HEFRS requires management to exercise
its judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies of the Group. It also requires the use of
certaln critical accounting estimates and assumplions. The areas invohing a higher degree of judgements
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 3.

Adoption of standards and amendments 1o existing standards

The Group has adopted all of the new and revised standards and amendments issued by the HKICPA that are
relevant to the Group's operations and mandatory far annual period beginning 1 January 2021, The effect of
the adaption of these niew and revised standards and amendments was not material to the Growp's resubts or
financial positian,

The interéest Rate Benchmark Reform amendments to HEFRSs were issued by HEICPA in bwo phases. The
Phase 1 amendments deal with preceplacement isswes (issues affecting financial reperting in the period
before the replacement of an existng interest rate Benchmark), The Phase 1 amendments provide temporary
exceptions to specific hedge accounting reguirements, 1o avold entities having to discontinue hedging
relationships solely due to the uncertainty arising from the reform of interest rate benchmarks, These
amendments apply to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, and were addressed in
Amendments to HKFRS 7, HKFRS 3 and HEAS 39 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform®, which the Group adopted
in 2020,

The Phase 2 amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting dwring the reform of interast
rate benchmarks, including the effects of changes to contraciual cash flows or hedging relationships arising
from the replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate (replacenment mswes),
The Phase 2 amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on o after 1 January 2021 and are to be
applied retrospectively. Restatement of prior periods is nat required.

10
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ANMLIAL REPORET 031

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basls of preparation and significant accounting palicies (Continued)

andards (Continued)
The Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 amendments include the following practical expadients:

. A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes te cash flows that are directly required
by the reform of interest rale benchmarks, to be treated as changes (o a floating rate, equivalent to a
Mevement in a market rate of interest.

* Permit changes required by reform of interest rate benchmarks to be made to hedge designation and
hedge decumentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued.

. Provide tempaorary reliel to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an alernative nearly risk-free interest rate instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk componant.

The Phase 2 amendments had no impact on the Group's financial statements. The Graup intends to use the
practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable,

£ 4k o -

The Group has early adopted Amendments to HEKFRS 16 Leases on COVID-19 related rent concessions lor the
annual peried beginning ! January 2021, The amendment exempis lessees fram having to consider individual
lease contracts to determine whether rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic are lease modifications and allews lessees to account for such rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications. It applies vo COVID-1% related rent concessions that reduce fease payments due
on or before 30 June 2022, The amendment does not affect lessors, The effect of the early adoption of this
armendmaent was not material 1o the Graup's results ar financial pesition,

Standards and amendmentswhich are not yet effective

At the date of autherisation of the financial statements, the following standards and amendmems were in
issue and relevant to the Growp but not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Groug;

Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Reviced)" Busingss Cambinations and Business Combinations
|Basis for Concusions)

Amendments to HEAS 18" Property, Plant and Eguipment

Amendmaents to HEAS 3771 Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Cantingent Assets

Annual Improvernents to HKFASs 2018-2020 Cycle"! Improvements to HKFRSs

Amendments (o HKAS 19 Classification of Liabilities a5 Current ar NMon-curment and

Classification of Liabllities as Current or Non-current -
Deferral of Effective Date

Amendments (o HEAS 1 (Rewised)! Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to HEFRS Practice Statement 2 KMaking Materlality judgements

Amendments (o HKAS 89 Accounting Pollcies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

Amendments 1o HKAS 129 Income Taxes

Amendments to HEFRS 10 and HKAS 28+ Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

Its Associate ar Jainl Venture

(1]  Effecive for arnual perdods beginning 1 January 2022
{31 Effective for annual pericds beginning 1 January 2003
(3] Mow effectiee dote to be detesmined

m
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIHGS TRUST

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

1)

i

Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

Standards and amendments which are not yet effective (Continued|

The Group Is assessing the full impact of these mew or revised HKFRS, Cenain of them may give rise to change
in presentation, disclosure and measurements of certaln [tems In the financlal statements. They are not
expected bo have material impact to the Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 inclede all its direct
and indirect subsidiary companies and also incorporate the interest in associated companies, joint operations
and joint ventures on the basis set outl in MNotes 2(c) and 2(d) below. Results af Subﬁidim‘y‘ companies,
assogiated companies and joint ventures acquired o disposed of during the year are included as from their
effective dates of acquisition to 31 December 2021 or up to the dates of disposal as the case may be. The
acqulsition of subsidiary companies is accounted for using the acguisition method.

Subsidiary companies

A subsidiary company is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group s exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from &5 ivolvement with the entity and has the ability
1o affect those returns through its power owver the entity. Subsidiary companies are fully consclidated from the
date on which contral is transferred to the Group. They are deconsclidated from the date that control ceases,
In the unconsolidated financial statements of the holding company, investments in subsidiary companies are
carried at cost less provision for impairment in value.

The acquisition method of accounting is wsed to account for business combinations by the Group, The
consideration transferred lor the acquisition of subgsidiary companies are the fair values of the assets
wransferred, the llabllities Incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
also includes the fair value of any asset or lability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their Fair values at the soquisition date,
On the acquisition by acquisition basis, the Group recognises a non-controlling interest in the acquiree gither
at fakr value or at non-contralling Interest's proportienace share of the acquirees net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the scquisition-gdate fair value of any previous equity interest in the sequires over thie falr value of the
identifiable net assets acquired |s recorded as goodwill If this |s less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargaln purchase, the difference Is recognised directly in the Income
statement.

Associated companies

An associated company is an entity, other than a subsidiary company ar a jaint venture, in which the Group
has a long-term equity interest and owver which the Greup is in a position to exercise significant influence over
its management, which intludes partcipation in the financial and operating policy decisions,

The results and asse1s and liabilities of associzted companies are incorporated in these financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as hald for sale, in which case
it s accounted for under HKFRS 5 “Nan-current assets held for sale and discontinued aperations™, The total
carrying amaunt of such imvestments is reduced ta recognise any identified impairment loss in the value af
individual investments,
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ANMLIAL REPDIST 2031

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
{dl  Joint arrangements

A jpint arrangemant is an arrangement af which twe or mose parties have jsint control and over which none of
tha participating parties has unlilateral control

Imvestments in joint arrangements are classified either as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has, Joint operations arise where the investors have rights to
the assets and abligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. A [oint operator accounts for its share of the
assets, liabilitles, revenue and expenses, |alnt ventures arise where the Investars have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

The results and net assets of joint ventures are incorporated in these financial statements using the squity
method of agcounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, In which case it is accounted
for under HKFRS 5 “Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations®, The total carrying
amount of such investments is reduced to recognise any identified impairment loss in the value of individual
invesiments,

{e}  Flxed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment loss. Properties comprise buildings
and ciil works. Bulldings and civil works are depreciated on the basis of an expected life of 50 years, or the
remainder thereaf, or over the remaining penod of the lease of the underlying leasehold land and land wse
rights, whichewver is lesser. The period of the lease incluges the period for which a right of renewal is attached.
Dther assats comprise motor vehichkes, computer equipment and other fived assets,

Depreciation of fixed assels other than propertes s provided at rates calcukated o write off their cos1s 1o
their residual values over their estimated useful lives on a straight kine basis as follows:

Container handling equipmant 10 - 20 years
Barges 15 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Other fized assets 5 - 25 years

The gain of loss on desposal of retirement of a flixed ssset 1S the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the income statement,

{f Projects under development

Projects under development are carried at cos1 and inchude project development expenditure and capitalised
interest on related loans incurred up to the date of completion. On completion, projects under develapment
are transferred o fixed assets.

(g} Leasehold land and land use rights

The acguisition costs and upfront payments made for leasehold land and land use rights are presented on the
statement of financial position as leasehold land and land use rights. The prepaid lease payments are right-of-
use assets, The balance are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basls over the period of the
leasesrights,

{(h} Customer relationships

Customer relationships, which are acquired in a business combination, are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Customer relationships are carried at cost €35 accumulated amortisation, Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the expected life of the customer relationships, ranging from
approximately 23 tn 33 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
(i Goodwill

Goodwlll is Initally measured 3t cost being excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Goodwill on acquisition of & foreign operation is treated as an asset of the loreign operation,

Goodwill is subject 1o impairment test annually and when there are indications that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. If the cost of acquisition is less tham the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired company, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

For the purpose of Enpainment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allecated to each of the Group's cash-gernerating
units ("CGLM} expected (o benefit from synergies arising from the business combination.

An impairment loss i recognised when the carrying amount of a CGU, inchuding the goodvall, axceeds the
recoverable amount of the CGLU, The recoverable amount of a COU is the higher of the CGURSs fair value bess
cost 1o sell and value-inruse.

The total impairment loss of a CGU s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated ta the
CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
CGL,

An impairment boss on goodwill is recognised as an expense and ks not reversed in a subsequent period,

The profit or loss on disposal is caloulated by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal including the
attributable amount of goodwill Butl does nat include any attributable goodwill previously eliminated against
resandes,

i1} Railway usage rights

Raitway usage rights are carried at cost less accumulated amaortisation. Amartisation i calculated using the
straight-line basis over the period of operation of approximately 45 years.

(k)  Current and deforred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises ourrent and deferred 1ax, Tax s recognised in the Income statement,
excepl to the extent that it relates to ltems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Thi current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or Substantively enacted ot the and
of the reporting period in the countries where the group companies pperate and generate taxable income,
Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

Defarred tax is provided (n full, using the liabilities method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bazes of assets and liabilities and their carrying amouwnts in the financial statements, Deferred tax asseis
are recognised to the extent that it is probahble that future taxable profit will be available against which the
wemporary differences can be utilised,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there (s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the 1axable entity or different taxable entities where there s an
inention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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ANMLIAL REPGRET 031

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basls of preparation and significant accounting palicies (Continued)
in Investments

ImestmeEnts m[her than iméasrments in tuhlu‘:‘!ar'y El:'!I'I'Ip?II"HES_ assofiated EQMpAnies or jﬂll"lt wentures) arg
nan-derivative equity financial investments which ane measured at fair value, Management s eligible 1o make
an irrevecable election, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, on equity investments other than those held
for trading, to present changes in fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive
income {"FVOCI), The Group has elected to measure as FYOCH, to which any fair value gains or losses
accumulated in the revaluation reserve account will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss following the
derecognition of such Investment. Dividends from Investments continued to be recognised as other operating
income in the income statement when the right to receive payment is established. impairment losses [and
riversal of impairmaent losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

{m) Flnancial assets at amortised cost

Financial aszets at amortised cost are dabt instruments that are held for coBection of contractual cash flows
whare these cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, They are initially recognised at fair
value plus ransaction costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition of the financial 3ssels at amortised
cost and are subsequently measured at amortised cost bess Impalrment. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised In the income statement based on expected credit loss ("ECL") model,
Interest incorme wusing the effective interest method is recognised in the income statement,

{n}  Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivabdles are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision Tor impairment. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts ane recognised in the incame statement Based on lifetime ECL.

{e) Inventories

Imventares consist mainly of replacemant parts and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
Cost is calculated on the weighted average basis,

{p} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with maturity less than three months,
and bank averdrafts, excluding secured bank balances, f any,

{gl Borrowings and borrowing costs

The borrowings are initially messured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of ransactlon costs) and the setilement or
redemption of bonrowings is recognised over the period of the borrowings wsing the effective interest method.

Borrewing costs directly atiributable 1o the acqulsition, construction or production of gualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time (o get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. All other barrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period | which they are
incurred.

{r}  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amartised cost
uszing the effective interest method,
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDIHGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
ish Pravisions

Prenssions are recognised wihen i1 is probable that an outflow of econamic benefits will be required to ssttle
a presemt obligation as a result of past events and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

(t}  Asset impalrment

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the ECL madel o assess impairment of financial assets classfied at amortised cost and
debt instruments measured at FVOCL, The impairment methodalogy ta be applied depends on whether these
has been a significant increase In credit risk,

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HEFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expected losses for amounts due fram customers to be recognised from Initial réecognition of the trade
receivables,

As debt instruments at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, the impairment provision applied
i% 1o recognise 12-manth ECL

Imgairment ol alher assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually and when there is indication that
they may be impaired, Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed far impairment
o determing whether there is any Indication that the carning values of these assets may nol be recoverable
and have suffered an impairment foss, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
Is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if amy. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Such impairment loss is recegnised in
Iincome statement except where the asset (s carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the
revaluation surplus for that asset in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease and is recognised in
other comprehensive Incama.

[u) Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivative financial instruments are utllised by the Group in the management of is forelgn currency and
interest rate exposures. The Group's policy is not to utilise derivative financial instruments for trading ar
spaculative purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date,
and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent reparting dates, Changes in fair value are recognised based
an whether certain qualifying criteria under HKFRS 9 are satisflied in order to apply hedge accounting, and if
50, the nature of the items being hedged.

The Group documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is expected 1o offset changes in
cash Nlows of hedged items, The group documents its risk management objectove and strategy for undertaking
varipus hedpe transactions at the inception of each hedge relationship.

Derivatives designated as hadging instruments to hedge the fair value of recognised assels or Labilities may
qualify as fair value hedges. The Group mainky enters inlo interest rate Swap contracts to swap certain fixed
interest rate borrowings into floating interest rate borrowings, Changes in the fair value of these derivative
contracts, together with the changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities attributable to the
hedged risk are recognised in the income statement. At the same time, the camrying amount of the hedged
asset or lability in the statement of financial position ks adjusted for the changes in fair value.

333/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

ANMLIAL REPORET 031

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basls of preparation and significant accounting policles {Continued)
{ul  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities (Continued)

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments (o hadge agalnst the cash flows artributable to recognised
assets or liabllitles may gualify as cash flow hedges, The Group mainly enters Into (I} cross currency Interest
rate swap contracts to swap certain fixed interest rate United States dollar debts to fized interest rate Hong
Keng dollar debts: (i) cross currency interest rate swap contracls to swap certain flbﬂtll‘l,g Imterest rate Uinited
States daollar debts o fixed interest rate Hong Kong dollar debis: and (i) interest rate swap contracts 1o swap
certain floating interest rate United States doliar debts to figsed interest rate United States dollar debis 1o
hedge against the foreign currency and interest rate risk. The Group excludes forelgn currency basis spread
of these cross currency swaps in the hedge designation. The change in fair value of the foreign currency
basis spread (Lo the extent it relates to the hedged itemn) is recognised in other ::nmprehmsm income and
i atcumulated in 8 separate Costs of hedging reserve under equity, Changes In the g value relating 1o the
effective portion of derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments qualifying as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve. The gain
or boss relating to the ineffective porthon i recognised in the incame statement. Armounts accumulated are
remmovied from hedging reserve and costs of hedging reserve and recognised in the income statement in the
periods when the hedged dervative contract matures,

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 will be accounted for with the changes n
Tair value being recognised in the income statement

(v}  Pension plans
Pension plans are classified into defined banefit and defined contribution plams.

Pemsion costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using the projected wumit credit method, Under this
method, the cost of providing pensions is charged to Income statement 5o as to spread the regular cost over
the future service lives of employees In accordance with the advice of the actuaries who carry out a valuation
of the plans. The pension obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period based on high
quality corporate bonds with currendy and term similar to the estimated term of benefit ohligations,

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive income in the
year in which they oocur and reflected immediately in pension reserve. Remeasurements comprise actuarial
gaing and bosses, the return on plan assels (excluding amounts Included in net interest on the net defined
benefit llabilitg/asset) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in neg
interest on the net defined benefit Nabilityrasset),

The contributions to the defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement in the year incurred,
Pemsion costs are charged agalnst the income statement within stall costs, The pension plans are generally
funded by the relevant Group companies taking into account the recommendations of independent qualified
actuaries and by payments from employees for contributany plans.

{w] Foreign exchange

The consolidated financial statemeants are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the functional
currency of HPH Trust.

Transactions in forelgn currencies are converted at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates,
Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDIHGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
{w) Foreign exchange [Continued)

The financal statements of fareign operations (Le, subsidiary companies, assooated companes, oint venfures
or branches whose activities are based or conducted in @ country or currency other than those of the Trust)
are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the year end rates of exchange for the statement of financial
position iterns and the average rates ol exchange for the year for the income staterment items. Exchange
differences are recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of exchange
reserve, Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such overseas imvestments, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of exchange reserve,

Exchange differences arising from translation of inter-cormpany loan balances Between Group entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of exchange reserve when
such loans form part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign entity. On the disposal of a foreign operation
{i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal invohing loss of control ever
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal imohing loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a dispgsal involving toss of significant Influence over an assoclated company
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange gains or losses accumulaied In exchange reserve in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are transferred out of the exchange
reserve and are recognised in the income statement.

In ackditign, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not resull in the Group losing contral
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is re-attributed to non-
cortralling interests and is not recagnised in the income statement. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associated companies or joint ventures that do nat result in the Group losing significant influence
oF jaint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is transferred out of the
exchange reserve and is recognised in the income statement.

All other exchange differences are recognised in the mcoma statement.
(x)  Distributions vo the Trust's unitholders

Distributions to the Trust's unithokders are recorded in equity in the period in which they are approved for
paymant,

iy] Leases

An arrangament, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, s or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right o cantrol the use of an identified asset for a period of
tire in exchange for consideration, Swch determination is made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whether the arrangements take the legal form of a lease.

(i} Assats eased to the Group

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use assel and corresponding liability a1 the date of which
the leased asset i available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cast is charged 1o the income statement over the lease period so as ©
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remainirg balance of the liability for each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the assets useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis,
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ANMLIAL REPGRET 031

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basls of preparation and significant accounting palicies (Continued)

{y}  Leases (Continued)

{z)

(i} Assers leased (o the Group ([Contineed)

Assets keased to the Group and the corresponding liabllities are initially measured on a present value
basis. Lease labilities include the net present value of the following lease payments

. fived payments (inchuding in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives recelvable;
- variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, If the lease term raflects the Group, as a lesses,
exercizing an option to terminate the lease,

The lease payments are discounted wsing the interest rate implicit in the leaze, if that rate can
b determined, or the incremental borrowing rate of the respective entities, Hlﬂ."llﬂlil'l.l!! assets arg
measured at cost comprising the fodlowing:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease llability;

- any lease paymenis made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

- any Initial direct costs; and
. restoration Costs,

Payments associated with shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in the income statement. Short-term leases are beases with a lease term of 12
months of less. Low-value assets comprise equipment and small items of office furaiture,

{H)  Assets leased out by the Group

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it ransfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
1o ownership of an underlying asset, A lease is classified as an operating lease If It does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental (o ownership of an underlying asset, Income received
under operating leases net of any incentives provided to the leasing company are credited 1o the
Income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenues are recognised when or as the contrel of the good or service is transferred to the customer,
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the cantract, control of the good ar service
may b bransfizrred over Lme or at a point in time,

Contrel of the good or service |s transferred over time if the Greup's performance provides all of the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer,

If contral of the asset transfers aver time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that perfermance obligation, Otherwise, revenue is
recognised ata podnt in time when the customer obtains control of the asset

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on direct
measurements af the value transferred by the Group 10 the customer.
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDIHGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
fzh Revenue and other income recognition (Continued)

Transactian price of A contract shall be allocated to Individual performance abligation (ar distinet good or
service). The objective when allocating the transaction price Is for an entity to allocate the transacton price
to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the entity
oxpects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promased goods or services Lo the customer,

Revenue is recognised over ime;

(i} for ports and related services, transportation and logistics solutions along with the progress when
sarvice is rendered; and

i for management and service fee income, and system development and support fees along with the
progress wihen service is rendered,

Interest incoma 1S recognised avir time on a time proportion Basis using the efective interest method,
[aa) Government Grant

Subsidy from the government is recognised at their fair values where there is a reasonable assurance that
the subsidy will be recetved and the Company will comply with all aitached conditions. The amounts are
recognised within “other operating inceme” in the statement of comprehensive ingome,

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Maote 2 includes a summary of the significant accounting policies used In the preparation of the financial
statements. The preparation of financial statements often requires the wse of judgements to select specific
accounting methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives. Furthiermore, significant estimates and
assumptions concerning the future may be required in selecting and applying those methods and podicies in
the financial statements, The Group bases its estimates and judgements on historical experignce and vanows
other assumptions that it believes are reasonable under the clrcumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates and judgements under different assumptions or conditions.

Thie followsng is a review of the more significant s<sumplions snd estimates as well a5 the pecounting policies
and metheds used in the preparation of the financial statements.

fa}  Long lived assets

The Group has made substantial investments in tangible long-lved JS5ets in its container Lermingl operating
business. Changes in technobogy or the intended use of these assets may cause the estimated period of use or
value of these assets to change.

The Group considers its assets impairment accounting policy to be a policy that reguires one of the most
extensive applications of judgements and estimates by management,

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that the
carrying value af these assets may not be recoverable and have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the assets are estimated in order to determine the extant of
the impairment foss, If any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asser's fair value fess costs o sell and
value-inruse. Such impairment loss is recognised in the Income statement except where the asset s carried at
valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the ravaluation surplus for that asset, in which case it is
treated a5 a revaluation decrease and is recognised in other comprehensive income,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
{a)  Long lived assets [Continued)

Management's judgements are required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may Indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset im the Group; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by managemeant to determing the level, if any, of impairment, including the discouwnt
razes or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's financial condition and results of operations. If
there s @ significant adverse change in the projected perfarmance and resulting future cash Mow projections, it
may be necessary 1o take an impainment charge (o the ingome statement,

(b} Goodwill

Far the purposes of impairment tasts, the recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-
in-use calculations, The value-in-use calculations primarily use cash flow projections based on financial
projections approved by management. There are a number of assumptions and estimates involwed for the
praparation of cash flow projections. The key assumptions adopted in the value-inuse calculations are based
on management's best estimates and past experience. Changes o key assumptions can affect significantly the
results of the impairment 1ests,

Keay assumptions are made with respact to the expected growth in revenues and cost of services renderad,
timing ol future capital expenditures, terminal growth rates and selection ol discount rate, which
approximately refiect the risks involved, The growth in revenues will be affected by the grawth in bath the
volume of containers handled and tariff. The volume of containers handied will be impacted by economic
and global market conditions, structural changes within the shipping line industry and influenced by the
performance and growth of regional and international trading economies. If key export markets for local
exporters experlence an economic downturn or recession, export volumes may decrease. The growth of
tanill depends on the Group's owerall competitiveness, which is determined by a number of factors, such as
geagraphical reach and connectivity, operating efficiency, berth availability, mega vessel handling capability,
technology offerings, transportation and logistics network and anciliary services and facilities.

A significant portion of cost of services rendered 15 labour cost which will be impacted by labour supply
and inflaticn, In addition, the intreduction of ever larger vessels by shipping lines will require upgrading of
equipment and naw work practices to increase productivity 5o as to remakn competitive,

(€l Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired Ina business combination are recognised at falr value at the acquisitien date,
Customer relationships are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is caloulated using the
straightline method over the expected life of the customer relationships.

The Growp considers its impairment accounting policy to be & policy that requires one of the most extensive
applications of judgements and estimates by management. Intangible assets with definite useful lives that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed to determine whether there is any indicatian that the carnying
value of these assets may not be recoverable and have suffered an impalrment lass. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amounts of the intangible assets are estimated in order 1o determine the extent of
the impalrment |oss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assers fair value less costs 1o sell
and value-in-use. Such Impairment loss Is recognised in the income statement. Management's judgements
ara requifed in the area of intangible asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; and (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the Group.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
{d] Depreciation

Depreciation of operating assers constitutes a substantial operating cost for the Group. The cost of fixed
assets Is charged as depreclation expense over the estimated useful lives of the respeciive assets using the
straight-ine method. The Group periodically reviews changes in technology and industry conditions, asset
retirement activity and residual values to determine adjustments to estimated remaining vseful lives and
depreciation rates,

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change in
depredable fves and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

(e}  Acerual of net revenue

Revenue is accrued at period end with reference to the throughput handled and the terms of agreements for
container handling service. Consequently, réecagnition of revenue is based on the volume of services rendared
as wiell a5 the latest tarill agreed with customers or best estimated by management, This estimate is based
an the latest 1ariff and other industry considerations as appropriace, If the actual revenue differs from the
estimated accrual, this will have an impact on revenue in future periods.

il Pansion costs

The Group operates several defined benefit plans. Pension costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using
the projected unit credit method in accordance with HEAS 19 (2011), Employee Benefits, Under this method,
the cost of providing pansions is charged to consolidated income statement so as to spread the regular cost
onger the future service lives of employees in accordance with the advice al the acuaries wha carry out a
valuation of the plans. The pension assets/oblipations are measured al the present values of the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
peried based on high quality corporate bonds with currencies and terms similar to the estimated terms of
benafit abligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive income in the
year in which they occur and reflacted immediately In pension reserve, Remeasurements comprise actuarial
gains and kosses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit Hability/asset) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
intefest on the net defined benefit Rabilityfasset),

Management appointed actuaries to carry out a full valuation of these pension plans to determine the
pension assets/obligations that are required to be disclosed and accounted for in the financial statements in
accordance with the HEFRS requirements.

The actuaries use assumptions and estimates in determining the fair value of the defined benefit plans and
evaluate and update these assumptions an an annual basis. Judgements are required to determine the
principal actuarial assumptions to detarmine the present value of defined benefit obligations and service
costs, Changes o the principal acwarial assumplions can significantly affecy the present value of plan
abligations and service costs in future periods.

(g} Tax

The Group Is subject 1o income taxes in different jurisdictions. Significant judgements are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business, The Group recognises labilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based an estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were previously recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
(g} Tax(Continued)

Deferred tax is provided in full, wsing the labdlity methed, on temparcary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values In the financial statements, Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses carried forward to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence. Recagnition
primarily invelves |udgements regarding the future financial performance of the particular legal entity or tax
group in which the deferred [ax asset has been recognised, A variety of gther factors are also evaluated in
conskdering whether there is convincing ewidence that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary differences, group relief,
tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax losses con be utilised. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets and related financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end of the reporting penod
and (o the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficent taxable profits will be available
within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the carry forward tax losses, the asset balance will be
reduced and charged to the income statemant.

4 Revenue and other income and segment Information

{a) Revenua and other incoma

2021 2020
HES000 HKS' 000
Revenue

Rendering of port and related services 12734118 10,416,924
Rendering of ransportation and legistics selutions 402,551 169,654
Management and service feg income 35,107 35,537
System development and support fees 7.002 6,831
Qthers 1,619 1,255
13,180,397 10,630,200

Other income
Interest income LELTH) 75,638

13,244,074 10,705,840

(b} Segment information

The chiel eperating decision maker Ras béen determined to be the executive committée of HPH Trust
{the “Executive Commitiee™). The Executive Committee reviews the internal reporting in order to assess
performandce and allocate resources. Management has determined the gperating segments based on these
reports.

HPH Trust is principally engaged in investing in, developing. operating and managing deep-water container
pons and port ancillary services and therefore management cansiders that HPH Trust operates in one single
business segment at two geographical locations,
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a4 Revenue and other income and segment information (Continued)
(k)  Segment information (Continued)

Revenue is recopnsed over me and disclosures by geographical location are shown helow:

Revenue and ather Income Non-curreént assaers
2021 2020 2021 2020
HESO00  HKS'000 HEST00 HKS000
Hong Keng 3715152 1.266,T58 21,213,393 21,941,598
Mainland China 9,528,922 7430082 56,582,684 57,626,899

13,244,074 10,705,340 77,796,077 79,768,497

5 Cperating profit
Operating profit Is stated after crediting and charging the following:

2021 2020

Crediting
Dividend income fram Rinver Ports Economic Bernefits (Mote 17) 25 452 30,640
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets 10,493 15,556
Wage. salary and other subsidies (Note) 418 85,533
Net exchange gain 17,697 -
Charging
Auditor's remuneration

- audit sarvices 13983 13,672

- non-audit services 2,676 1,025
Amaortisation

= leasehold land and land use rights 1,294,106 1,291,938

- raiway usage rights 542 507

- eustomer relationships 334,206 234,205
Depreciation of lxed assets 1410335 1415340
Depreciation of rlghl'ahuﬂ' assets within ined assels 11,683 12021
Short-term lease cosis for

- office premises and port facilities 64,413 66,456
Staff costs (including amount charged within cost of services rendered)

- Wages, salaries and other benefits 1,359,945 1,276,564

- Pansion costs 128,429 70,740
Net exchange loss - 1,593
Mot

Mainky benefits received from government under COVID-15 related employment support scheme recognised
inather eperating income foe the year ended 31 Decernber 2020,
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Interest and other finance costs

2021 2020
HKESD00 HES 000
Bank koans and overdralls 275488 478,528
Guaranteed noles ZBE.5%0 237,74
Loans from non-controlling interests 3139 3,105
Lease Habilities 989 1.561
Mher linance costs 48,260 45,286
Fair value gain on interest rate swaps - {3.647)
Less: falr value adjustment to bank and other debts under fair value hedge - 3,647
B16.466 ThE,2T4
Tax
021 2020
HES000 HES 000
Current tax 1,529,039 1,094,385
Deferred tax (Mote 18) {259,822} [376,40%)
1,268,217 7976

The tax charge on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise wsing the
weighted average tax rate of the Group as follows:

2021 2020
HKS000 HES 000

Prafit before tax excluding share of profits less losses after tax of joint
ventures and associated companies 4,762,320 2.740,586
Tax calculated at weighted werage tax rate of 25,6% (2020 26.8%) 1217811 733,852
Taw exemption in China (170,860) [169,214)
Imcome not subject 1o tax (8.281) [25,010)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 93,561 93,007
Withholding tax on unremitied earnings 155674 112,182
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses [4.403) [k}
Crverprovision in prior year 14,4300 [32,587)
Tax lossas not recognised 37 4,057
Others 108 1,689
Tatal tax 1.269.217 717,976
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8 Distributions

2021 2020
HES000 HES'000
For the period from 1 july 2019 10 31 December 2019
Distribution of 500 HK cems per uni - 435555
For the period from 1 January 2020 to 30 jJune 2020
Distribition of 4.30 HK cents per unil = 34577
For the period from 1 July 2020 1o 31 December 2020
Distribution of 7,70 HEK cents per unit 670,755 -
For the period from 1 Januany 2021 to 30 June 2021
Distribution of 5.50 HK cents per unit 566,221 -
1,236,976 810,132

On 9 February 2022, the Board of Directors of the Trustee-Manager approved the distribution of B.00 HE
cents per unit for the financial result from 1 July 2021 o 31 December 2021 (2020 7.70 HK cents per unit)
amiounting to HE$E96.9 million (2020; HK$670.7 million) and payable on 25 March 2022, This distribution is
not reflected In these financial statements and will be recognised in equity In the financial year ending 31
December 2022,

9 Earnings per umit

The calcufation of earnings per wunit is based on profit attributable to unitholders of HPH Trust of
HEET, 747,157,000 far the year ended 31 December 2027 (2020 HEXEE31,444,000) and an B.711,101,022 units n
issue (2020 B.711.101,022 unds in issue).

Dilubed earnings per unit is the same as the basic earnings per unit for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020,
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Flxed assets
Cantainer
handling oOther fiked
Properties equipment Barges assets Total

Graup HES 000 HEST00 HES D00 HESDO0 HES000
2021
Opening net book amount 15,616,352 £,743,300 2,503 476,799 22,838,954
Additlons 962 11,293 - - 12,261
Tramsfer from propects under

development [(MNate 11) 17,533 111,160 - 21,308 150,001
Depreciation [627,390) (720,927} 5492) [73,109) {1.422,018)
Disposals 162 (S.65E) 1813) i (6,633)
Currency translation

differences 57,936 13,028 - 3,396 74,360
Closing net book amaount 15,065,231 6,152,202 1,098 428,384 21,646,925
At 31 December 2021
Cost 21,238,353 13328113 9,484 1,070,764 35.746,714
Accumulated depreciation 16.273,122) [FA75911) {B.386) (B42.370)  (14,099,789)
Met book amount 15,065,231 6,152,202 1,08 428,394 21,646,925
2020
Cpening net book amount 16,027,154 7.243590 13,006 505,784 23,789,534
Additions 5013 806 - 2,087 7,906
Transfar from propects undes

devalopment (Nate 11) 60,202 181,937 - 42867 285,008
Depreclation (625,491} (P17 788} [2.519) (81,565) {1.427.367)
Dipasals {520) {598} {7,584) {223) {9,334)
Currency translation

differences 150,003 35351 - 7844 193,203
Ciosing net book amount 15,616,352 0,743,300 2.503 476,799 22,838,954
At 31 December 2020
Cost 21,251,873 13,279,433 10,608 1065111 35,607,025
Accumulated deprecianion 3,635,521} [6,536,133) {8,105) (S88,312)  (12,768,071)
Net book amount 15,616,352 6,743,300 2,503 476,799 22,838,954

Note:

The Group has the right to control the use of certain assets included in properces. container handling
equipment and other fixed assets for a period of time through lease arrangements, Lease arrangements
with terms of 2 months to 2.5 years are negotisated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of terms
and conditions, During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions to the right-of-use aszets under other
TimeE ASS81s e il ﬂZD‘Jﬂ' HKs'IINT,EIm} and l.'ll_';pl'lf.ﬂ.'l". e the llght-ﬂf-liﬂ! ARSI UndEr Conlmner I'lal"ll'lll'lﬂI
equipment due to termination of lease terms were HK$3,2 75,000 (2020 nil).
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10

1"

12

138

Fixed assets (Continued)
Note; (Continued)

The carrying amounts of Aght-of-use assets included in fixed assets are as follows;

2021 2020

HK$000 HESD00

Properties 14,92 22582
Container handling aquipment - 3195
Other fixed assets 126 912
15038 26,689

Depreciation charge for nght-of-use assets recognised in the consolidated income statement is as follows:

2021 2020

HKS 000 HKS300
Properties 10,890 10,232
Container handling equipment - 1.217
Other fived assets 793 572

11,683 12,021

Projects under development
Group 2021 2020

HKS000 HKS 000
At beginning of the year 478,216 648,058
Additions 324,582 109418
Transfer to fixed assets (Mote 10) (150,001} [2B5,006)
Currency translation differences 1,727 5,716
At end of the year 654,524 478216

Projects under developmen: malnly represent the cost of construction of port faciliies in Hong Kong and

Maintand China.

Leaseheld land and land use rights

Group

2021
HKS000

2020
HKS000

Net book value
At beginning of the year
Amortisation

Currency translathon differences

At end of the year

Cost
Accumulated amartsation

35843720 37,046,989
{1.204106)  (1,207,938)

20,815 E8,6TH
34,579,438 35,843,729

48357185 43,319,007
N3FTI74T) (12475:278)
34570438 35843729

The net book value of land use rights, which are accounted for as right-of-use assets, was HES7,194,832,000
at 31 December 2027 (2020; HKS7,477.950,000) The corresponding amartisation charge for the Year was

HEK$283,11 8,000 (2020 HEK$283,028.000).
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13 Rallway usage rights
Group 2021 2020
HKSD00 HKS 000
Net book value
AL beginning of the year 11,056 10,813
Amaortisation {542) {507)
Currancy translation differences 273 750
At erwd of the year 10,787 11,056
Cost 16,266 16,357
Accumulated amartisation 15,179) 15,301)
10,787 11,056
14 Intangible assets
{a) Customer relatlonships
Group 2021 2020
HES 000 HKS 000
Met book value
At beginning of the year 5,167,560 250,771
Amartisation [334,206) [334,205)
At end of the year 4833360 5.167 566
Cost B.440,000 B.440,000
Accumuiated amortisation (3.606,640) {3.272.434)
4,833,360 5.167 566
(b} Goodwwill

The Group has ane business segment and two geographical CGU to which goodwill is allocated as follows:

Graup 021 2020

HES000 HES' 000

Hong Kang - -

Maintand China 11,270,044 11,270,044

11,270,044 11,270,044

021 2020

HESTOD HKS'000

At beginning of the year 11,270,044 11,270,044

Impairment of goodwill (accumulated: HK$30.4 billion) - -

At endd of the year 11,270,044 11,270,044
139
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15

140

Intanglble assets {Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

As Im the prior year, managament perfarmed an impairment assessment based on value-in-use caloulations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgeis approved by management covering 3 5-year period
and a further outicok for 5 years, which is considered appropriate in view of the long-term nature of the
terminal business. Management determined that no further impairment of goodwill is required in 2021, The
impairment methodeology assumed terminal values and discount rates of 2%-3% (2020; 2%-3%) and B%-10%
(2020; 8%-10%) per annum, respectively, Terminal values are determinad by considering both internal and
external factors relating to the port operation and discount rates reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
business.

The assumplions regarding the growth rates in revenue and cost of services rendared used in the current
year's assessment of the Mainland China CGU were comparable to last year, For llustration purposes, a
hypothetical 0.5% decrease in the revenue growth rate, a 0.5% increase in costs of services rendered and a
0.5% increase in the discount rate, with all other variables and assumptions held constant, would decrease the
recoverable amount of the Hong Kong CGL, by HKS2.2 billion, HKS1,1 billion and HE$1.5 billion respectively
and of the Mainland China CGU, by HK$2.3 billion, HK30.8 billion and HK$2.4 billion, respectively,

Actual results in the future may differ materially from the sensitivity analysis due to developments in the
global markets and changes in economic conditions which may cause fluctuatiens in growth and market
interest rates to vary and therefore it s important to note that the hypothetical amounts so generated do not
represent a projection of likely future events and profits or losses.

Associated companies

Group 2021 2020
HEST00  HK¥0OD

Share of net assets 310,937 425,698

Lean to an associated company 6ith, 600 G065, 900

957,537 1,032.5%

A Syear loan of AMB530,000,000, approximate to HK$646,600,000 (2020; RMBS10.000.000. appreximate to
HE$606,930,000) provided to an assoclated company Is unsecured, inberest bearing at a fixed rate of 4.0%
per annum and repayable in August 2023. The carrying amount of the loan te an associated company
approzimates its fair value.
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Assoclated companles (Continued)

Details of the principal associated companies at 31 Decenber 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Place of Effective
Mame establishment Frincipal activities interest held
Shenzhen Yantian Tugboat Chima Frovision of tugboat services 23844
Company Ltd. in China
Huizhou International Contalner China Development and operation A1.31%
Termimals Limited™! of a container terminal

{11 Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers nepwork firms

There Is no associated company as at 31 December 2021, which in the opinion of the directors of the Trustee-
Manager, is individually material bo the Group.

There are no material contimgent labilities relating 1o the Groug's interests in the associated companies.,

Set out below [s the Group's share of the year's total comprehensive loss from its assoclated companies:

2021 2020

HES 0 HES 000

Profis less losses after tax (81,530) [B3.470)

Other comprehensive (losspincome (604) 24103

Tatal comprehensive kss (82,134} {59,367)
Ieint ventures

Group 2021 2020

HHKS 000 HKED00

Share of nat assets 3825835 3.398,75%7

Loans to jaint ventures 122,200 124,350

Less: accumulated impalrment (930,000) [930,000)

3,018,035 2,583,147

Naote:

A loan of HES120,000,000 (2020; HK$120,000,000) provided 1o a joint venture s interest bearing at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBORT plus 2.1% per annum. Another loan provided to a joint venture of
HKS$2, 200,000 (2020 HE$4,350,000) is interest frea, Both of the loans provided to joint ventures are unsecured
and not expected to be repayable within one year, The carrying amounts of the leans 1o [oint ventures
approximate their lair values,

141

348/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDIHGS TRUET

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16  Jolnt ventures [Continued)

Details of principal joint ventures at 31 Decenber 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Place of
incorparations Effective
Name establishment Principal activities interest held
COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Kongl  Hong Kong Development and operation  50.00%
Limitedi™ af a container termimal
Azia Container Terminals Limited™ Haong Kong Development and operation  40000%
all 4 container verminal
Beijing Leading Edge Container Chima Provision of iogistics services  50.00%
Services Company Linited
Mercury Sky Group Limited= British Virgin Islands  inwestment halding S0000%
Shinzhen Leading Edge Port China Prowision af port 49.00%
serviges Co, Lud™ agency Services
Yantian East Port International China Development and operation  39.73%
Container Terminals Limited of a container terminal
["YEPECTT)™
Yantian Port Internatianal China Provision of electronic port 28.21%
Information Company Limited COmmUnity system

(11 Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers network firms
{21 Mot required to be awdited under the laws of the éountry of incorparation
(3 Mewly ertabiished during the year ended 31 December 2021

Thare [ no joint venture as at 31 December 2021, which in the apinlen of the directors of the Trustee-
Manager, is individually material te the Group.

There are no material contingent labilities relating to the Group's interests in the joint ventures.

Set out below is the Group's share of the year's total comprehensive mcome from its joint ventures:

021 2020

HKS000 HESD0D

Profits less lossas after tax 115,580 73,404
Other comprehensive income 1,813 2,382
Total comprehenshe neome 117,393 75,786
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Other non-current assets
Group 2021 z0z0
HKES'D00 HKS 000
Irvesiments
Listed equiry Security 32,151 32063
River Parts Ecomomic Benefits (Mote] 283,000 235,000
Prepayment far fed aisets 45,759 37,235
iher receivables and prepayments 56,190 73845
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps under cash Mow hedges 85,567 -
509,667 428,134
Wote:

The River Parts Economic Banafits represent the aconomic interest and benefits of the river ports in Nanhai
and Jiangmen, China (tagether the “River Pors), including all dividends and any ather distributions or other
monies payable to a refated company or any of its subsidiary companies in its capacity as a shareholder of
the relevant hobding compary of the River Ports arising from the profits attributable to the business of the
River Ports and all sale or disposal proceeds derived from such businesses, assats, rights andsor liabifities
constituting any part of the business of the River Ports as agreed with a related company and any of its
sulasidiary companies, The movement is due 1o change in lair value,

Deferred tax
Group 2021 2000
HES 00 HKS000
Deferred tax assets [11,97E) (19,325)
Deferred tax liabilities G 268,299 5,535,985
Met deferred tax liabilitios 5,256,321 9,516,656
143
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Deferred tax (Continued)

Tha movernents in deferred tax (assetsiliabilities during the year are as follows:

Fair value  Withholding

Unused  Accelerated  adjustments tax on
tax  depreciation  arising from  unremicted
losses allowances  acquisitions earnings Others Total
HKS000 HHS'D00 HKS 000 HES'000  HKSDO0O HK5'000
Pl
ALY January 2021 {15,449 547,006 652,669 34333 (6,533 2,516,656
Tax chargedfcredited) to
intame statement FAl: (&7, 250) [358,453) AT 1,236 1259,822)
Oitfver temporary differences 12 [26) = (485 1B} 313
At 31 Decemnber 2021 112,353) 519,730 E 294,176 460,431 [5,663) 9256331
2020
At 1 January 2020 {28,616) 579,921 5,012,602 337,097 6T 9803162
Tax chargedicradited) 1o
Ingame Staterment 10,181 (3,ET4) [360,023) 6,286 21 376 409)
Other tamporary differences 14] [d1) - - (42} 57
A1 31 December 2020 115.449) 547,006 B.652.669 343,323 [6,5%3) 9516656

Notes:

{a) The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and
when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal autharity.

ibl  Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profit is probable. The Group has unrecognised Lax losses
of HK$115,381,000 at 31 December 2021 (31 December 20020 HK$135.329,000) to carry forward against
future taxable income, OF these, HE$90,532,000 can be carried forward indefinitely (31 December 2020
HE$104,103,000) The remaining HK$24,845,000 (31 December 2020: HK$31,226,000) expires in the

following vears:
2021 2020
HES 000 HKS 0
In the first year 223 -
In the second year amz 4378
In the third year 11,364 5267
In the fowrth year 10,187 10318
Im the fifth year 48 10,763
24,849 31,226

{cl Deferred tax labilities are calculated In full on temporary differences under the Habilites method
usimg the tax rate of the countries in which the Group operated. The temporary differences are for
accelerated depreciation allowances, fair value adjustments arising from acquisitions and withholding

1A%e5 ASing from unremitied earnings.

[fal} Deferred tax assets and labilities are expected to be recovered or settled mostly after more than twelve

months.
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Cash and bank balances

Group ik 2020
. HKSD00 Ll
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and an hand 1,620,219 1,441,119
Short-term bank deposits 9427 788 6,325,469
Cash and bank balances 11,048,007 7,766,388
Trust Firgl 2020
HESTO0 HES000
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 4,868 3,674
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:
Graup 021 2020
Percentage  Percentage
Hong Kong dollar 435 565
Renminbi 10% 14%
United States dollar -l_?"lh 3|:m_
100% 1 00%
Triist o2 2020
Percentage  Percentage
Hong Kong dollar Thh AB
United States dodlar I %
Singapore dallar 21% A7
100% 100%

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate their fair valugs. The maximum exposure 1o

credit risk is Lhe carrying sfnognls of the cash and bank balances,

Trade and other receivables

Group 2021 2020
HKS D00 HES' 000
Trade recemvables (Note a) 3464903 2623127
Less: loss allowance provisian (50, TRE) [57.0:43)
3414117 2,572,084
Other recetvables and prepaymenis 341,978 278,422
Amount due frem an associated company {Nate ) 17,955 26,863
Amounts due fram jsint ventures (Mote b) 147,218 156,218
Loan to an associated company [Mate ¢) 109,800 =
Derivative financial instruments
Cross currency interest rate swaps under cash flow hedge 2010 =
4,033,078 3,033,587
145
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20  Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trust 02 2020
Other recervables and prepayments 3686 389
Amounts due from subsidiary companies (Note b) T4 T

1,080 1,159

Trade and other receivables are denaminated in the fallowing currencies:

Group 2021 2020
Percentage Percentage

Hong Kong dollar 48% 46%
Renmimbd A1% 39%
United States daollar 11% 15%
100%: 100%

Trust 2021 2020

Percentage  Percentage

Singapore doflar 100%: 100%

Trade receivables are stated at the expected recoverable amount, net of any provision for estimated
impairment losses where it is deemed that a receivable may not be fully recoverable, The carrying amounts of
these assets approximate their fair values,

Wit

(a8} At January 2020, trade receivables of the Group amounted to HK$2,585,212,000,

(b The amounts due from a related company, an assodated company and jaint ventures of the Group; and
amounts due from subsidiary companies of the Trust are unsecured, interest free and have no fised
terms of repaymeant,

icl The loan to an associated company is unsecured, interest bearing at a fixed rate of 2.3% per annum and
repayable in ane year.

id) At 31 December 2021, trade receivables of the Group amounting (o HX$50,786,000 (2020
HKS51,043,000) were impaired and provided far. The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
far expected credit losses prescnibed by HEFRS 9, which permits the wse of the lifetime expected credit
loss pravision for all rade receivables.

Movements on the loss allowance provision for trade recelvables are as follows:

2021 2020
. HKS'000 HKS000
At beginning of the year 51,043 51,261
Additlons 650 -
Write back {251) (234}
‘Written off (563) -
Currency trandlatian differences 193) 16
At end of the year 50,786 51,043
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20 Trade and other recelvables (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(@ (Coninued)

The additions to and write back of loss allowance provision for trade receivables have been included in
the income statement.

The other classes within trade and other recelvables do not contain impaired asseis,
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receabbes mentioned above,

23 Trade and other payahles

Group 2021 2020
: HKSDOD  HKS'000
Trade payables, other payables and accruals 6,403,773 5,131,248
Loans from non-controlling interests [Mote a) 115,756 148,936
Lease Rabilities 12,100 14,2094
Derivative financlal instruments

Interest rate swaps under cash flow hedge (Note 24) - 23817
Amaounts due to related companies (Mote b) 100,958 109,407
Amounts due (o associated companies (Note b} 2,898 2,208
Amounis due to joint ventures (Note b} 77,560 B7,041

6,713,045 5,517,651

Trust 2021 2020

HKS kD HES 00

Trade payables, other payables and accruals 5642 5,956
Amounts due to:

- a re‘ated company [Nate b) 16477 1230

- subsidiany companies (Note b) 1,234 3,984

23,353 22,260

Trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group o 2020
Percentage  Percentage
Hong Kong dollar B3% 65%
Renmminbi 15% 33%
United States doflar 2% 2%
100% 1 00%
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146

Trade and other payables (Continued)

Trust 2021 2020
Percentage Percentage

Howig Kosg dollar 5% 18%
United States doblar % 55%
Singapore doflar 24% 2TH
100% 1 00%

Ar 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of trade and other payables of the Group and of the Trust
approximate their falr values.

Notes:

@)  The lpans from non-controlling interests of the Group are unsecured, interest free except for the
amount of RMB70,000,000, approximate to HEKSBS5.400,000 (2020 approximate to HK$83,300,000) which
bears interest at fixed rate of 2.0% per annum and repayable in one year. As at 31 December 2020,
anather loan of HK$30,380,000 which bear interest at Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate, and have no fixed
terms of repayment was settled during the year ended 31 December 2021,

bl Amounts due to related companies, associated companies and joint ventures of the Group; and
amounts due to a related company and subsidiary companies of the Trust are unsecurad, interest free
and have no fived terms of repayment.

Bank and other debts
Current Non-current
Group portion portion Total
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
Unsecured bank loans 3,208,000 10,740,000 13,438,000
Guaranteed notes 3,900,000 11,700,000 15,600,000
Tatal principal amount of bank and other debts 7. 198,000 21,840,000 29,038,000
Unamortised loan facilitles fees and discounts related
o debis {7.655) (110,038) [117,6%3)
Ar 31 Decemnber 2021 7,190,345 21,729,562 28,520,307
Unzecured bank loans 3,902,000 17,628,000 21,620,000
Guaranteed notes = 7.500,000 7.600,000
Total principal ameount of bank and ather delbts 3,992,000 25,428,000 29.420,000
Unamortised loan facilities fees and discounts related
to clebis {1,430) (99,827} {101,257)
AL 31 Degember 2020 3,990,570 25328173 29,318,743

The carrying amounts of bank loans of the Group approximate their falr values as the bank loans bear fioating
interest rates and are repriced within one month at the prevailing market interest rates. The leans will be fully
repayable from September 2022 to September 2026 (2020: repayable from March 2021 to March 2025),
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22 Bank and other debts (Continued)

In September 2017, the Group Issued a Seyear USE500 million 2.75% guaranteed note due 2022, Cross
currency interest rate swaps are utilised by the Group in the management of its faregn currency exXpasures,
The Group's policy 15 not to utilise derivative linancial instruments for trading or speculative purposes, The
Group has entered Into cross currency interest rate swap agreemants with banks to swap the fised interest
rate United States dollar guaranteed notes to fixed interest rate Hong Kong dollar debts.

im Nevember 2019, the Group issued a S-year US$500 milllon 2.875% guaranteed note due 2024,

Im March and September 2021, the Group issued a S-year US$500 million 2.00% guaranteed note due 2026
and a S-year US$500 million 1.50% guaranteed note due 2026, respectively.

Thie ffective Interest rate af the Groups bank and ather dabts at 31 December 2021 15 2.3% per annum (2020;
2,0% per annum),

Bank and other debts are denominated in the following currencies:

Group 021 2020
Percentage Percentage

Heng Keng dellar 11% 15%
United States dollar 9% 85%
100% 1 00

23 Pension assets

Group 2021 2020
HES D00 HES B0

Defined benelit plans
Pension assets 303,782 85,714

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution plans, the assets of which are heid
independently of the Group’s assets in trustee administared funds.

{ay  Defined benefit plans

The Group’s defined benefit plans in Hong Kong are a contributory final salary pension plan and a non-
contributory guarantead return defined contribution plan. The Group's plans were valued by Towers Watson
Heng Kong Limited, qualified actuaries at 31 December 2021 and 31 Cecember 2020 using the projected unit
credit method vo account for the pension ACCounting costs in accordance with HEAS 19 (2011) “Employee
Benafits™.

The principal actuanal assumplions used for accounting purpases are as follows:

w2 2020

Percentage  Percentage

Discount rate 1.20-1,50% 0.20-0.60%

Future salary increases 3.50% 3.50%

Interest credited on plan accounts 5.00-6,00% 5,006, 00
149
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23 Penslon assets (Continued)
fa)  Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Thie amaunts recagnised in the consalidated statement of financial position are determined as follows:

2021 2020
HKS000 HEKS 000
Fair value of plan assets 1,659,440 1,559377
Present value of defined benelin obligations {1,395,658) {1,513,663)
et defined benefit assets 303,782 B5.714
The mowvements In the present value of the defined benefit assetst{llabilities} and |is components are as
Tollows:
Met defined
Defined Fair value benefit
benefits of plan {llabilltiesy
obligations AsSets assets
HES'000 HKS000 HES000
2021
AL January {1,313,663) 1,599,377 B5,714
Met [charge)/credit to the income starement
Current service cost [52,446) {383} [52,829)
Interest (costiincome 5744) 5579 __1165)
[58,1%0) 5,196 {52,994}
Net credit to other compreheansive income
Remeasurements gain:
Actuarial gain arising from
Experience adjustment 5473 - 5473
Financial assumptions 77,582 - 77.582
Demographic assumpgtion 121 - 121
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 156,970 156,970
83176 156,970 240,146
Other
Contributions paid by the employer - 30,96 304918
Comtributions paid by the employes (6,711} 6,711 -
Benefits paid 98,565 [9E,565) -
Met transfer 1,165 [1,165) -
At 31 December {1,3595,658) 1,609,440 303,782
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23  Penslon assets (Continued)

{a)  Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Met defined
Defined Fair value benefit
benefits of plan {liabilities)’
obligations assets assers
HES000 HES 00 HES000
2020
AL January {1,847 A45) 1,405 698 [47,747)
Met (chargel/credit to the Income statement
Current service (costprecharge (50,533) 363 (50,1770
Interist [east)income [21,058) 20,756 {30)
[71,591) 21,119 (50,472)
Met [charge)/credit to other comprehensive income
Remeasurements (lossygain:
Actuaria (loss)igain arising from:
Experience ad|ustment 723 - T3
Financial assumptions (23,751) - [93,751)
Demographic assumption 152 - 153
Return on plan assets excluding Interest income - 236,823 236,823
(92, 876) 236,823 143,947
Other
Conrributions paid by the employer - 33986 33,986
Contributions paid by the employee {7, 345) 7345 -
Benefits paid 08,823 (98,823) =
Met transfer 6,771 (6,771) -
At 31 December 11,513,663} 1,598,377 85,714
151
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23 Penslon assets (Continued)
fa)  Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Fair value af the plan assets is analysed as follows:

2021 2020
Percentage  Percentage

Equity Instrumerts

Conglomerates and manidactiurnng 2% 2%
Comsumer markets 2% 2%
Emergy and utilities 1% 1%
Financial instiutions and units trust 55% 52%
Health and care ELY EL
Insurance L 1%
Heal estate 0% 1%
Information technology ™ TH
Others 1% 2%
7% 1%

Debt nstruments
Gowvernment (other than U5) 5% T
Financial institutions A% TH
Us Treasuwry 5% 4%
Others B T
22%: 25%
Cash and others 6% 4%
i [T 100%

The debt instruments are analysed by issuer's credit rating as follows:

2021 2020
Percentage  Percentage

Aaalias L T7%
AaTiAA 15% 15%
AaZias 6% 6%
AadiAd. g% B%
CARLES 14% 1%
ALIA I 9%
AdEA- % 0%
Baal/BEE+ 9% =i
Baa2/BBE A% 3%
Dihar lower grade 2% 2%
Ne investment grade B B%

1005 100%
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23  Pension assets (Continued)
{a)  Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The fair value af the ahove equity instruments and debt instruments is determined based on quoted market
prices,

Contributions to fund the obligations are based upon the recommaendations of independent gualified
actuaries for each of the pension plans of the Greup to fully fund the relevant schemes an an engoing basis,
The reallsation of the deficlt 5 contingent wpon the realisation of the actuarial assumptions made which Is
dependent upon a number of factors including the market performance of plan assets. Funding requirements
of the major defined benefit plans of the Group are detailed below,

The Group operates two principal pension plans in Hong Kong, One plan, which has been closed to new
entrants since 1994, provides pension benefits based on the greater of the aggregate of the employee and
employer vested contributions plus a minimum interest thereon of 6% per annum, and pension benefits
derived by a formula based on the final salary and years of sarvice. An independent actuarial valuation,
undertaken for funding purposeés under the provision of Hong Kong's Docupational Retirement Schames
Ordingnce ("ORS07L at 30 June 2019 reported a funding level of 134% of the accrued actuarial liabilities on
an ongoing basls, The valuation used the aitained age valuation method and the makn assumptions in the
valuation are an Investment return of 5% per annum, salary increases of 4% per annum and interest credited
to balances of 6% per annum. The valuation was prepared by Tian Keat Aun, a Fellow of The Institute and
Faculty of Actuaries, and Willlam Chow, a Fellow of the Soclery of Actuaries, of Towers Watson Horg Kong
Limited, The second plan provides bemefits equal to the employer vested contributions plus a minimum
interest thereon of 5% per annum. As at 31 December 2021, vested benefits under this plan are fully funded
in accordance with the ORSO funding requirements. During the year ended 31 December 2021, forfeited
contributions totalling HKS981,000 (2020: HKSES5,000) were wsed to reduce the level of cantributions af the
year ended 31 Dacember 2021 and no farfeited contribution was available at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil) 1o
reduce future year's contributions.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 1.5% Increase by 1.5%
Salary increase 0.25% Inerease by 0L2% Decrease by 0.2%

The abowe sensitivity analyses are based on a dhange in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely ta occur, and changes in some af the assumptions may be correlated.
When caloulating the sensitivity of the delined benefit obligation (o significant actuarial assumplions, the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation caloulated with the projected wnit credit method at
the end of the reperting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension abllity recognised within
the statement of financial position, The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis did not change compared [0 prévious year.

The Group expedts to make contributions of HK$32,000,000 {2020: HK$34,360,000) to the defined benafit plans
during the next wear.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefil obligation is 6.0 years a5 al 31 Decernber 2021 (2020: 6.6
yEars),

(b} Defined contribution plans

The Group's cost in respect of defined contribution plans for the year amounted 1o HK$75,435000 [2020:
HE$20,268,000),

153

360/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDIHGS TRUST

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25

other non-current llabllities

Group 2021 2020
HKS000 HES000
Derivative financial instrumienis!
Cash flow hedges
Cross currency Interest rate swaps 115,654 256,930
Interest rate swops - 40,594
Less: current portion of interest rate swaps (Note 21) - (23.817)
HNon-current portion of derivative financial instruments 115,654 273,707
Lease liabifities 5,859 15783
Mhers 119,463 123575
240,976 413,065
Units in issue
Group and Trust Number of HEKS000
unlits
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 B, 711,101,022 68,553,830
Al issued units are fully paid and rank parl passu in all respects,
Inwestment in a subsidiary company
Trust 2021 2020
HK$000 HES'000
Investment cost 10,000 10,000
Capital contribution 47,171,833 43 448,802
Less: accumulated impairment (24,212,051) {24,212,051)

22,569,782 24 246,758

Pursuant o an investment agreement between HPH Trust and a wholly-owned subsidiary, HPHT Limited,
dated 4 August 2011, HPH Trust made capltal contributions of HE$67,280,000,000 to HPHT Limited (*Capital
Contribution”) through capitalising the amounts due from the subsidiary, HPH Trust has no right 1o require
HPHT Limited to return any Capital Contribution. HPHT Limited may retum to HPH Trust any Capital
Contribution at any time in whole ar in part. Accordingly, the Capital Contribution is accounted for as
imvEstment in a subsidiary compary,

Details of subsidiary compantes of the Group are disclosed (n MNote 31,
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27 MNotes to consolidated stacement of cash flows

{a)  Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations is as follows:

2021 2020
HES D00 HES000
Crperating profit 5,378,786 3,506,860
Depreciation and amartsation 3050872 3,054,011
Wet galn on disposal of lixed assers (10,493) (15,556)
Dwidend income (28 B54) [33.493)
Interest income T [75,639)
Cperating profit before working capital changes 8326634 6,436,184
Decrease In inventories 12,784 3,038
Increase in trade and other receivables [BE2.4T6) [10,15E)
Maovement in balances with associated companies and joint ventures 8417 1&, 400
Increase in trade and other payables 1,136,655 147,394
Increase in pension assets 22078 15,544
Cash generated from aperations 8.6.24,082 6,608,816
(b} ReconcHiation of labilities arising from Mnancing activities is as follows:
Crass currency
nterest rate
sWaps contract
and interest rate
A contralts
Bank held to hadge
Dividend loans Bank against foreign
payable repayable loans currency risks and
0 non- not  repayable fair value risks of
controlling  exceeding more than Guaranteed Guaranteed noles Lease
Interests 1 year 1year nates and Bank loans  liabilities Total
HES'000 HKS'000 HES 000 HES'000 HESODG  HKS'00D HES000
ALY January 2021 = 3890570 17563628 7,764,545 297524 WATT 29,646,344
Carsh flows (Monz) (1,208.836) [3992000) (81900000 7735585 - H2747)  (1,667997)
Foresgn exchangs
adpustrments 3,250 - - - - - 3,290
Transfer between
catagaries - 3169 [3294669) - = ' -
Dividends to non-
controfing interests 1,205,545 - - . = 1,205,546
Decrease in kease
lishilities = = = = - {360) {3600
Cther non-cash
rermants - 1430 18455 18,053 (265,447} 983 F20.4580)
A1 31 December
21 - 320d4B69 1007454 15518184 28077 170958 28,966,343
Note: The total cash outflow for the leases in 2021 was HKSG7,479,000.
155
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27 Notes to conselidated statement of cash flows (Continued)

(k)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows: (Continued)

Cross currency
interest rate
Twaps contract
and Interest rate

sWag contracts
Bank held ta hedge
Dividend laang Bank agairt foreign
payahle repayable loans CurFency risks and
o non- not repayable fair value risks of
controfling  exceeding  morethan  Guaranteed  Guaranteed notes Lease
interests 1 year 1 year nates and Bank loans  liabilities Tetal
HES'000 HES000 HHES000 HES000 HES000  HKS000 HEF000
AR 1 Januany 2020 - 202545 1R T0EARY 17645134 144501 a0,732 30,741 8N
Cash Rows (Mote) (461,278  [202560) ZB14040  (3.900,000) = (LEST) (762493)
Fareign exchange
adjusiments (8823 15 405 - - - (8,203
Fair value
adjustments - - - 3547 - - 1647
Trarsier between
categories - 3982050 (3986050 - - - -
Dividends to nion-
controfding interests 1,465,899 . B - - = 1469099
Increase in laase
liahilitias - . - - - 49 491
Ogher noncash
Mavements : - 4520 26564 15,764 152,732 1561 .':'E:I_I}i
Az 31 December
203 - 3800570 17563428 7764545 207524 0077 ME4h 344
Note: The total cash autfiow for the laases in 2020 was HESE0, 260,000,
23 Commitments
fa) The Group's capital commitments are as follows:
a1 2020
HKS000 HEST0D
Fixed assets and projects under development
Contracted but not provided for 45,883 37113
Capital contribution to a joint venture 1,241,198 ~
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2B Commitments {Continued)
(b}  The Group's share of capital commitments of the joint ventures is as follows:
021 2020
HES D00 HES000
Contracted but not provided for 42,365 5670
{c) The Group leases various offices premises and port facllities under non-cancellable leases expiring within two
months to eleven manths (2020 two months to eleven monthsk The leases have varying terms, escalaticn
clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, thi berms of the leases Jre renegotiated,
The fuure minimum lease payments for leases not recognised in the financial statements are as follows:
021 2020
HESTDOR0 HES000
Within cne year 1,665 357
(d} At 31 December 2021, the Group has leased certain office premises and port facilities to third parties under
non-cancefable operating leases. Aggregate minimum lease receivables are as follows:
2021 2020
 HES000 HES 000
Withir cne year 104,841 59,973
Between one and two years 102,554 65,646
Between two and three years 100,079 65,763
Between three to four years 52 286 59,277
Between four (o five years 18,268 12,400
379,028 273,080
157
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23  Related partles transactions
Significant transactions between the Group and related parties during the year that are carried out in the
normal course of busingss are disclosed below, Outstanding balances with dssociated companies, joint
ventures and group campanies are disclased in Notes 15, 16, 20 and 21,

(i} Income from and expenses to related parties

2021 2020
L
Ime e
Container handling fees received from joint ventures, an associated
company and related companies [Mote a) 11,554 26,012
Management, service and support fee received from
related companies (Note b) 43,029 43,080
Transportation mansgement senvices fee income from related
companies (Mote ¢ 182,376 38,105
Interest income from a joint venture and an associated comparky
[Naote d] 28,804 25238
Expences:
Contatner handling charges pakd to joint wventures and related
companies (Mote &) 11,956 124256
Lease rentals on premises and port facilities pasd 1o a joint venture,
an associated company ared related companies (Mote &) 10211 16,451
Trustee-Manager management fees (Mote f)
- Base fee 25,060 24,593
- Develppment fee 3,552 -
- ACquisition fee T2 1o
Global support services fees to a related company (Mote gj 150,362 147,560
Information technolegy (1T7) support and maintenance service fees
paid to a joint venture and related companies (Nate h) 46,712 44,7E1
Motes

{4)  Container handling fees recolved from joint ventures, an atsociled company and rolated
companies were charged a1 terms pursuant 1o the relevant agreements,

{b}  Management, service and support fee received from related companies were charged at terms
mutually agreed.

{cb Hevenue from related companies for the provision of transporiation management Services was
charged at prices and terms mutually agreed.

{d) A lean of HK$120,000,000 provided to 3 joint venture is intérest bearing at HIBOR plus 2.1% per
arnum (2000; HIBOR plus 2,1% per annump, Ancther loans of RMBS30,000,000, approximate 10
HK$646,600,000 (2020; RMBES 10,000,000, approximate 10 HK$606,900.000) and RMES0,000,000,
approximate to HE$109,800,000 (2020 nid) provided to an associated company are unsecured
and interest bearing at a fixed rate of 4.0% and 2.3% per annum, respectively.

(e} Container handling charges and lease rentals paid to [oint ventures, an associated company and
related companies were charged al terms pursuant 1o relevant agreements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income from and expenses to related parties (Continued)

Notes: (Cantinued)

f}

]

The Trustee-Manager's management fees were charged in accordance with the Trust Deed.

The base fee was charged at a fixed fee of U5$2,500,000 fequivalent to HK$19,500,000) per
annum which is subject 1o increase each year from 2012 by such percentage representing the
percentage increase in the Hong Kong Composite Consumer Price index. The base fee Tor the
year ended 31 December 2021 s payabie in cash. As the December 2021 figure for the Hong
Kong Composite Consumer Price Index is yet to be published as at the date of preparation of
these financial statements, the sdjustment to the base fee, if required, will be accaunted for in

the subsequent financkal year,

Developmeant fee relates to the development project by YEPICT, a joint venture of HPH Trust, was
l:ﬁil-'ﬂ!‘d in accordance with the Trust Deed which states that the development fee i payable in
arrears for every six months after the commencement of the development project in respect of
projact costs incurred over the prevous six-month period, Pursuant to the Trust Deed,

(n

(2

where the total project costs incurred in the development project is less than
US$500 millien, the Trustee-Manager is entitied to receive a fee of 5% of the total
project costs incurred (pro-rated to HPH Trust's 39.73% effective interest in the subject
development project); and

where the total project costs incurred in the development praject is US$500 million or
more, the Trustee-Manager 1s entitled (o recedve 3 fee of US$12.5 milion plus 1.5% of
the total project costs Incurred which exceeds US3500 million (pro-rated to HPH Trust's
39.73% effective interest in the subject development project).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the project costs incurred from the commencement
of the project to 31 December 2021 was less than US$500 million, the development fee was
calculated based on the 2.5% of the project costs incurred for the aforesald period.

Acquisition fees relate to the acquisition of equity imerest of 49.0% in SupplyLINE Logistics
Limited and 9.7287% i Hutchison nland Conlainer Depots Limited by the subisidiaiies of HPH
Trust in 2021 and 2020, respectively, They were charged in accordance with the Trust Deed
where the Sponsor (as defined in the Trust Deed) does not have direct or indirect interests of
mare than 50.0% in the imvestments acquired. It was calculated based on 1.0% of the Enterprise
Value (as defined in the Trust Deed) of the subject investments,

Global support services fees in respect of administration services, and Heence for certain
inteflectual property rights were charged at prices and terms mutually agreed.

IT support and maintenance services fees in respect of the support and maintenance of 1T
systems paid to a joint venture and related companies were charged at prices and tenms

mutually agreed,

Other transactions with related parties

The Group acquired ficed assets from a related company which were charged at prices and terms

mutually agreed as below:

2021 2020
HEF000 HKF000

Purehases of Moed 355615 fram o related company - 7,238
159
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Related parties transactions (Continued)
i) Key management compensation
Key mapagement of the Group includes managing directars and key management of the deep-water

coniainer ports of the Group. The compensation pald or payable 1o key management for employee
services is shown below:

2021 2000
= L . L
Salaries and employes benefits 9,094 28,946

30 Fimancial risk and capital management
{a) Cash managemaent and funding

The major financial Instruments of the Group Include liquid funds, Investments. trade and other recelvables,
trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of these finandial Instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes to the financial staternents. The risk management programme of the Group s designed to minimise the
financial risks of the Group. These risks indude credit rsk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and liguidity
sk,

The Group generally obtains long-term financing to meet funding reguirements. Management of the Group
rogularly and closaly monitors its everall net debt position and reviews s funding costs and maturity profile 1o
facilitate refinancing.

(b} Capital management

The Group's strategy involves adopting and maintaining an appropeiate mix of debt and equity 1o ensure
optimal returms 1o unithalders, while maintaining sufficient flexibiliy to iImplement growth strategies,

The Group may consider diversifying its sources of debt financing by accessing the debt capital markets
through the issuance of bonds to aptimise the debt maturity profile and to make adjustments to the capital
structure in light af changes in economic conditions,

The Group has complied with all externally imposed caplial reguiremenis which include a leverage ratio.

At 31 December F02Y, total equity amounted o HKE4AT 399,123,000 (2020 HKE45603,935,000), and
consclidated net debt, which represents cash less bank and other debis, of the Group was HK$17,385,993,000
(2020; HK$21,653,412,000),

{cj Credit exposure

The Groups holdings of cash and cash eguivalents, cross currency intenest rateé swaps contracts and interest
rare swaps contracks with financlal institutions expose the Group to counterparty credit risk. The Group
controls its credit risk to non-performance by its counterparties through regular review and monitoring of
their credit ratings.

The receivables from customers and other counterparties also expose the Growp 1o credit risk, The Group
controls its credit risk by assessing the credit quality af the customer, taking Into account its financizl position,
past experience and aother factors. Individual risk Emits are set based on intermal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the management, The utilisation of credit imits is regularly manitored,

The ECL on trade recelvables is caloulated using a provision matrix where a provision rate applies based on

its historical observed default rates, as adjusted by forward-looking information. On that basis, no material
additional ECL was recognised as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,

%0
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{d}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk and capital management (Continued)

Interest rate exposure

The Group's main interest risk exposures relate to cash and cash equivalents, laans from non-cantrolling
Interests, bank and other debts. The Group manages its Interest rate exposure with a focus on reducing the
Group's overall cost of debt and exposure to changes in interest rates.

The impact of a hypothetical 5 basis paints increase in market interest rate a1 the end of the reporting pericd
would reduce the Group's profic and unithalders' equity by HKS4,924,000 (2020: HK$E.487.000).

The Group his entered into cross currency Interest rate swap contracts and Interest rate swap contracts to
achseve an appropriate mix of fived and floating rate exposure consistent with the Group's policy.

The effects of the interest rate swap contracts and Cross CUrrency iNGErest rate swap contracts on the Group's
financial position and performance are as follows:

2 2020

HKS'000 HKS 000
Carrying amount {llabilities) (30,087 [285,550)
Notional amaunt (SNote) 7.8500,000 11,700,000
Maturity date March 2023 to March 2021 to
March 2025 March 2025

Hedge ratio 11 101
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments since 1 [anuany 53448 150,553
Changé in value of hedged nerm used Lo determine hedge effectiminess [5,348) [150,553)
Pay average interest rate 2.15% 2.63%
Receive average Interest rate Bdw 0.94%

Naote:

The contractual motional amount of intérest rate swaps held for hedging which 15 based on LIBOR is
HES?, 300,000,000 (2020: HK$11,700,000,000].
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(e}

162

Fimancial risk and capital management (Continued)

Foreign currency exposure

The Group has entered nio cross currency Interest rate swap coniracts to hedge its forsign currency PEposUre
in respect of bank borrowings denominated In Unlted States deollars with principal amount equivalent to
HE$7,800 millkon (2020 HK$T,800 million) to HE dollar borrowings.

The effects of the cross currency interest rate swap contracts on the Group’s financial position and
perfarmance are as foflows:

2021 2020

HHEE'000 HES'000

Carrying amount (liabilities) 1113.644) [256,930)
Notional amaount 7.800.000 7.E800,000
Maturity date September 2022 September 2022
to Mardh 2023 to March 2023

Hedge ratio LH [H
Change In falr value of outstanding hedging Instruments since 1 January 5,404 (53,431)
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge effectiveness 15.494) 5341

Average exchange rate HEK$T.BILISET HEST B3/USSY
Fer overseas subsidiaries, assaciated companies and joint wentures, which consist of nen-Hong Kong dollar
assets, the Group generally maonitars the development of the Group's cash flows and debt market and, when
appropriate, would expect to refinance these businesses with local currency borrowings.

Currency risk as defined by HKFRS 7 arises on financial instruments denominated in a currency that is not the
functional currency and being of a monetary nature, Differences resulling from the translation of fmancial
statements of overseas subsidiaries into the Group's presentation Eurrency are thergfore not taken into
consideration for the purpose of the sensitivity analysis for currency risk.

The impact of a hypathetical 5% weakening of the HK dollar against all exchange rates at the end of the
roporting period, with all other variables held constant, on the Group's peofit far the year is et out 25 below.

Hypothetical increases

{decrease) in profit
021 2020
HKS000 HESO00
Rernminbi 64,134 11,477
Singapore dollar {212) {1492}
Cthers I A—
63,927 11,300
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Flnancial risk and capital management (Continued)
Liguidity exposure
The followsng tables detail the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting perind of the

Group's and the Trust's financizl liabilites, which are based on contractual undiscounted principal cash flows
and the earliest date on which the Group and the Trust can be required to pay:

Group Contractual maturities
Tatal
Carrying undiscounted Within Within Altar
amounts cash flows Tyear  2to5years 5 years
HES'000 HE$'000 HES'000 HE$'000 HES'D00
2021
Trade and other payables 6,713,045 6,724,228 6,724,228 - -
Bank and other debts 28,920,307 28,038,000 7,158,000 21,840,000 -
Other nen-current liatslities 121.513 144,346 91,394 52.952 -
35,754 BES 35,906,574 14013622 71,892,652 .
2020
Trade and other payahles 5.517.651 5.517.651 5.517.651 - -
Bank and ather debts 29,318,743 29,420,000 3,992 000 25,428,000 -
Dther nen-current liabilities 289,490 197,395 128,437 68,958

35,125,884 35135046 9,638.088 23,496,958 -

The table for the Group above excludes Interest accruing and payable on certain of these Habilities which is
estimated to be HE$538,741,000 {2020: HKS516.531,000) m “within 1 year® maturity band, HK$819,601,000
({2020; HK$765,902,000) in “within Z 1o 5 years” maturity band, and after assuming the effect of interest rates
with respect 1o variable rate financial Rabilities remaining constant and no change in aggregate principal
amogunt ef financial liabilities other tham repayment at scheduled maturity as reflected in the table.

Trust Contractual maturities
Total
Carrying  undiscounted Within Within
amounts cash flows 1 year 2to 5 years
HiFM0 HHFO00  HKS'00O HES'000

2021
Trade and other payabiles 23,353 23,353 23,353 -
2020
Trade and other pavables 22,260 22.260 22 260 =
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30 Fimancial risk and capital management (Continued)
{gl  Fimancial instruments by category

The following tahle shows the classificarion category and carrying amount as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 under HKFRS 9 for the Group’s financial assets and financial llabitities;

2021 2020
Note Classification HKS000 HKS 000
Financial assets
Listed equity security 17 FOCI 9,151 32.063
River Parts Economic Benafits 17 R 283,000 285,000
Interest rate swaps 17 Fair value-hedges B5,567
Cross currency interest race swaps 20 Fair value-hedges 00 -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 Amortised cost 11,048,007 1.766, 588
Trace and other recenables 20 Amarised cost 4,031,068 3033587

15,488,803 11,117,238

2021 2020
Mote Classification HK3 000 HES'000
Fimancial liabilities
Bank and other debts 22 Amortised cost 28,520,307 29,318,743
Trade and other parables 21 Amortised cost 6,700,945 5.4759,540
Lease liabilithes 21.24 Amortised cost 17,959 30,077
Cross currency interest rate swaps 24 Fair value-hadges 115,654 256,930
INTErESl rate Swaps 4 Fair valuc-hcdgﬁ . 40,594
35,754 865 35,125,884
Representing |
Fimancial assets measured at
Fvaci 322,151 317,063
Amortised cost 15,075,075 10,800,175
Fair value-hedges B?.577 -
Fimancial liabilities measured at
Amaortised cost 35,639,211 34,828 360
Fair value-hadges 115,654 287,524
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Financial risk and capital management (Continued)

{hl  Fair value estimation
The table below analyses recurnng falr value measurements for financial assetsi(liabilities), These fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels in the fair value hlerarchy based on the Inputs to valuation
techniques usad, The different levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilties:

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or Habilities,
either directly {i.e. as prices} or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and

Leweel 3: Inputs for the assets o labditias that anre not based on observable markat data (Le. unobservable

inpurs).
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
MNote HKS'D00 HES'000 HKS'000 HES0O0
AL 31 December 2021
Listed equity security 17 38151 - - 39,151
River Parts Ecenomic Benefits 17 - - 283,000 283.000
Cash Nlow hedges
Interest rate Swaps 17 - 85,567 - 85,567
Cross currency mterest rate swaps 20 - 2010 - 2,010
Cross currency mterest rate swaps 24 - (115, 654) - {115,654)
39,151 (28.077) 283,000 294,074
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
MNote HES'000 HEE'000 HES'000 HES D00
At 31 December 2020
Listed equity security 17 32,063 - - 32,063
River Ports Ecanomic Benefits 17 - - 285,000 285.000
Cash flow hedges
Cross currency mterest rate swaps 24 - (256,930) - (256,930)
Interest rate Swaps 24 - (40,594) - (40,594)
32063 {297.524) 235,000 19,5309

The fair wvalue of the cross currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swaps included in level 2 category
abowve are estimated using the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yiald
curves, The tair value ol Tinancial instruments that are not traded in active market (level 3) is determined by
discounted cash flow analysis with reference to inputs such as dividend stream,

Changing unobservable inputs used in Level 3 valuation to reasonable alternative assumptions would not have
significant impact on the Group's profit or loss,

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no transfers between the Lewel 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measuramants.

Al 31 December 2021, the fair value of bank and other debis (Mote 22) was HKEZ5,059.42 millien (31 December
2020: HKS29,611.2 million). The carrying amaunts of the remaining financial asses and financial liabilites
approximate their fair values.
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31 LUst of subsidiary companies of the Group
{a)  Details of principal subsidiary companies of the Group at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
Particulars of
Place of issued share Effective
incorporation/ capitalfregistered interest held
Wame establishmant Principal activities capital 2021 2020
HPHT Limited!" Hang Kong Investment holding HE$10,000.000 100%  100%
Giantfield Resources Britich Virgin |slands  Investmaent holding 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Lirmiged= LI5%1 each
HIT Investments British Virgin 1sfands  Investment holding 200 ordinary “A" 100% 100%
Limitad= shares of U581 each
EDD nosvoting
preferred "B shares
of US$1 each
Pearl Spirit Limited™ British Virgin Islands  Investment hoiding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
LIS%1
Hongkong Imernational  Hong Kong Development and HE$20 100%  100%
Terminals Limitad™ operation of container
terminats
Yantian International  China Develogment and HE$2,400,000.000 S641%  55.41%
Container Terminals operation of contaimer
Limitad™ terminals
Yantian International China Development and HK46,056, 960,000 S1.64%  51.64%
Container Terminals operation of container
{Phase (1) Limited"! terminats
Shenchen Pirgyan China Prowision of various RMB150,000,000 51.64%  51.64%
Multimadal Company LrAnEpOraticn services
Limited™
Shenzhen Yantian China Development and RMB2,343 300,000  51.64% 51.64%
Wiest Port Terminals aperation of contamer
Limbtad ™! tErminats
Hutchison Parts Hong Kong Investment halding HE$10,000,000 To45% 79.45%
Yantian Limited™
Wattrus Limited" British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 32 A" shares of 94.88%W 94.85%
LIS$1 each
593 "B" shares of
LIS%Y each
Sigma Enterprises British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 2005°A"shares of  T7O45% 79,455
Lirmited™ LIS§1 each
E.424 "B" shares of
LISEY each
Hutchison Parts British Virgin lslands  Investment holding 200 ordinary shares 100% 1005
Yantian investments of Us$1 each
Lirniged @
1456
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 List of subsidiary companies of the Group [Continued)

{a) Details of principal subsidiary companies of the Group at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

(Continued)
Particulars of
Place af Issued share Effective
Incarporation/ capitaliregistered interest held
Name establishment Principal activities capital 2021 2020
Birrang Limited= British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 10,000 ardinary 100% 100%
shares of U551
sach
Hutchison Shenthen British Virgin Islands  investment halding 1 ardinary share of 100% 100
Eart Investrents U541
Limited™

(11 Audited by Pricewaterhouseloapers network firms

{11 Mot required to be aisdited under the B of the country of incorparation

Appointment of auditors

Thie Trust has camplied with Rubes 712 and 715 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-5T in relation to its auditors.
{b)  Material non-controlling interests

Yantian International Container Terminals Limited, Yantian International Comtainer Terminals (Phaze 1)

Lemited, Shenzhen Yantian West Port Terminals Limited, Wattrus Limited and Sigma Enterprises Limited are

the subsidiary companies with nor-controlling Interests that are material 1o the Group,

Set out below |s the summarised financial information for these subsidiary companies:

summarised statemant of financial positan

2021 2020

HKS000 HES 000

Non-current assets 60,681,858 82, 140,9%6

Current assets 8.988,284 6,337,514

Tatal assets 69670143 AR 478,510

Non-current liabilities GAGT 223 7.032,383

Current labilities 4,366,386 3,419,464

Total labilities 10,833,600 10,451,847
Summarised inceme statement

2021 2020

HESTO0 HES 000

Revenue and ather income 9,249,513 7.217,320

Net profie for the year 3.938,984 2676,749
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ch |

(k)

166

List of subsidiary companles of the Group (Continued)
Material non-controfling interests (Cantinued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

2021 2020

HKS000 HKS 000

Met change In cash and cash equivalents 3,008,205 [526,870)
Dividends paid to non-contrelling interasts 1,208 836 1,461,276

The information abowve is the amount before inter-company efiminations.

Approval of the financial statermnents

The financial statements set out on pages 112 to 168 were approved by the Board of Directors of the Trustee-
Manager for issue on 9 February 2022,
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HPH

21,666,672 100.2
(33,902) 0.2
(1,188) 0.0
21,631,582 100.0

33,902 0.1

7,298,729 15.8

53,609,377 115.9

46,276,746 100.0

HPH HPH HPHT
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2022 12 31
21,672.7 386,858
41.1 734
21,631.6 386,124
8,711,101,022
3.11 56
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38 59 131

23 103

193

Independent Auditor®s Report

2023 26
17.85

381/501



EDINETOOOO

OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31
2022 12 31
2022 2021
3 46,975 839 28,686 512
(1,686) (30) (1,715) (31)
(174) o) @171) ®)
(5,343) (95) (5.189) (93)
4 3 0 4 0
(7.200) (129) (7,071) (126)
39,775 710 21,615 386
(6) ) ) 0
4 39,769 710 21,610 386
(6,624) (118) (3,728) (67)
33,145 592 17,882 319
7 18,000 321 14,000 250

382/501



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31
2022 2021

418 7 57 1
418 7 57 1
10 13,153 235 11,275 201
11 32,855 586 16,480 294
46,008 821 27,755 495
12 5,181 92 5,017 90
13 178 3 59 1
6,544 117 3,600 64
11,903 212 8,676 155
34,105 609 19,079 341
34,523 616 19,136 342

13 242 4
34,281 612 19,136 342
14 100 2 100 2
34,181 610 19,036 340
34,281 612 19,136 342
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2022 2021
23,712 423 17,719 316
® © ®) ©)
(3,655) (65) (3,027) (54)
20,051 358 14,687 262
(18,000) (321) (14,000) (250)
(173) 3) (175) ®)
(18,173) (324) (14,175) (253)
1,878 34 512 9
11,275 201 10,763 192
13,153 235 11,275 201
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100 19,036 19,136
33,145 33,145

(18,000) (18,000)

100 34,181 34,281
2 340 342
592 592

(321) (321)

2 610 612
100 15,154 15,254
17,882 17,882

(14,000) (14,000)

100 19,036 19,136
2 270 272
319 319

(250) (250)

2 340 342
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2022 2021
46,838 28,684
137 2
46,975 28,686

2022 2021
(©)) )
174 171
1,686 1,715
5,014 4,849

2022 2021
6 5

2022 2021
6,647 3,584
(23) 144
6,624 3,728
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2022 2021
39,769 21,610
17 2021 17
6,761 3,674
(99) (101)
8 11
(23)
(23) 144
6,624 3,728
2022 2021
1.8 2021 1.4
18,000 14,000
2022
535,000
2022 2021
57 231
535
174) @)
3)
12 31 418 57
2022 179,000 2021 180,000
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2022 12 31
124 34 158
(124) (34 (158)
2021 12 31
124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)
2022 2021
3,538 5,275
9,615 6,000
13,153 11,275
2022 2021
78 68
4 6
18 26
100 100
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2022 2021
HPH 32,851 16,476
4 4
32,855 16,480
12
13
2022 2021
178 59
242
420 59
14
2021 2022 12 31 10,000,000 100,001
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2022

39,775
174

(26)

2021

21,615
171

39,923

(16,375)
164

21,786

(4,156)
89

23,712

17,719

2022

59
535
173)

(©)

@

2021

237

(175)

®)

®

420
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)
HPH a
b
) HPH 2011 25
2020
2,500,000 19,500,000
2012
2022 12
HPH
(€))
2.5
39.73
@
12.5
1.5
2022 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
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25,809 25,060
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2014 28
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2021 49.0

HPH
50.0
1.0

(b)

)

2022 2021

6,448 6,314
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKHGE MAMAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Far the year ended 31 December 2022

Mote 2022 2021

HIF 00 HEF00G

Revenue and other Income 3 46,975 23,686
Sraff costs {1,686) {1,715)
Depraciation 1174) (171}
Other operating expenses {5,343) (3,189)
Other non-operating income 4 3 4
Total operating expenses {F.200) {7071}
Operating profit 33775 21615
Finance costs 5 i) (5
Profit bafore tax 4 39,769 2610
Tax L] {8,624) {3,728)
Profit and total comprahensive income lor the year 33,145 17,882
Dividend 7 18,000 14,000
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2022

Note 2022 2021
HKﬂﬂﬂ_ HHJ-'DEI_U_
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Fixed assets b - -
Right-of-use assets B 418 57
418 57
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents hle] 13.153 11.275
Trade and other receivables n 32855 16,480
46,008 27,755
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 5181 507
Lease liabilities 13 178 59
Current Lax liabilities . __@.__Sj-!___ 3,600
11,903 BETH
Net current assets 34105 19,079
Total assets less current liabilities 34,523 19,136
Non-current liability
Lease liabllitles 13 2d2 -
Net assets 34,281 19,136
EQUITY
Share capital 14 100 100
Retalnec profies 34181 13035
Total equity 34281 19.136
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIKHGE MAMAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Operating activities
Met cash from aperations
Irterest and other finance costs paid
Fay padd

Met cash from operating activities

Financing acthvitles

Dividend paid

Principal elements of lease paymenis
Cash used in Mnancing activities

Mat changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivaients at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

401/501

15{a)
15{b)

13k}

2022 2021
HKS000 HKS000
2372 17,719
(B (5
[ELEEY (3.027)
20,051 14,687
(18.0:00) {14.000)
1173) 1175
(18,173) 114,175
1,878 512
11,275 10,763
13,153 11,275




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Share Retained
capital profits Tatal
HHE$'000 HES 000 HK$'000
2022
Balance at 1 January 2022 100 15,036 19,936
Praofit and total comprehensive income for the year - 33,145 33,345
Transactions with owners;

Dividend (Mate 7) - {18,000) {18,000)
Balance at 31 December 2022 100 34,181 34,281
2021
Balance at 1 january 2021 100 15,154 15,254
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 17.682 17,882
Transactions with owners:

Deviderd [Nate 7) = {14,000) {14.000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 100 19.036 19,136
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HUTCHISOMW PORT HOLDIKGS MAMAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General Infarmation

Hutchisen Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited ithe “Campany”] is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Republic of Singapore on 7 January 2011 under the Companies Act 1967 of Singapore. The Company's
immaediate halding company (s CK Hutchison Glahal Investments Limited, its uitimate halding company is CK
Hutchison Holdings Limived, which s incorporated in Cayman Islands and s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company acts as the Trustee-Manager of Hutchison Port Holdings Trust CHPH Trust™) and has dual
responsibilitios in salepuarding the interests el unithalders and managing the business af HPH Trust,

The registered office address of the Company 15 at 1 Harbourfront Avenue, #14-07, Keppel Bay Tower,
Singapore (GBE32

2 Basis of preparatien and significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
{*FRS"L The financial statements have been prepared ender the historical cost convention except as disclosed
in the accounting polickes S&0 out in note 2,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise lis
judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies of the Company. It also requires the wse of
CerLan critical accounting estimates and assumplions, However, there are no areas invahving a higher d!ﬂ.ﬂ!!
of judgements or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial
statements.

Adoption of standards and amendments o existing standards
The Company has adopted all of the new and revised standards, amendments and inerpretations issued by
the Accounting Standards Council that are relevant to the Company's operations and mandatory for annual

period beginning 1 January 2022, The effect of the adoption of these new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations was not material to the Company's results or financial position,

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following standards and amendments were in
issue and relevant to the Company but not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Compary:

Aamendments to FRS 1™ Classification of Liabilities as Current or Mon-current and
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Mon-current — Dafarral
ol Effective Date

Amendments to FRS 1 [Revisedf! Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to FRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materality Judgements

Amendments to FRS 87 Accounting Polickes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Amsendmants ta FRS 1201 Ineame Taxes

Amendments to FRS 1169 Lease Liabdlity In a 5ale and Leaseback

Amendmants to FRS 19 MNaon-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to FRS 110 and FRS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assels bebween an Investor and s

Assoclate or Joint Yenture

(1) Effective for annual periods beginning 1 [anuary 2023
(2] Effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2024
{3 New effective date to be determined

10
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AMMUAL REPORT 2033

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
Standards and amendments which are not yet effective (Continued)

The Company is assessing the full Impact of these new or revised FRS. Certain of them may give rise 1o change
in presentation, disclosure and measurements of certain items in the financial statements. They are nat
expected to have material impact to the Company.

(a) Fived assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciaton and accumulated impairment losses,

Depreciation of fixed assets is provided at rates calculated to write off their costs to their residual values over
their estimated useful Inves on a straight line basis as follows:

Furniture and fixtures Owver the lease term of office premise
Computer equipment S years

The gain of loss on disposal or retirement of a Nixed asset s the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amoaunt of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the ingome statement,

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at the end of sach
reporting period,

An asser's carrying amount is wiltten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount ks greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

(bl  Asset impairment
|mpairment of financial assets
The Company applies the expected credit boss ("ECL") model to assess impairment of financial assets classified
at amortised eost, debl Instruments measured st falr value thraugh other comprehensive income. The

impairment methedology to be applied depends on whether there has been g significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by FRS 109, which requires
lifetime Expected 10s2es for amounts due rom customens 1o be recognised from initial recognition of the trade
receivables,

As debt instruments at amaortised cost are considered to have low cradit risk, the impairment provision applied
is to recognise 12-month ECL

Impairment of other a5sets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment to determire whether
thara is any indication that the carrying values of these assets may not be recoverable and have suffared an
impairment loss. I any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assel is estimated in order 1o
determine the extent of the impairment loss, If any, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Such impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss except where the

asset s carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that assat, in
whith case it is reated as a revaluation decrease and recognised in other comprehensive income.

{e) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other raceivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method, less provision for Impairment. Appropriate dlowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the income statement based on lifetime ECL.,

n
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
{d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and demand deposits with maturity less than three months.
(e} Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are mitially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method,

(1] Provisions
Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be reguired to settle

a present obligation as a result of past events and a reliabde estimate can be made of the amount of 1he
obligation.

(g} Foreign exchange
(i} Functional and presentation curréncy

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar whereas the functional currency of the
Company is n Linited States doBar. Any exchange differences arising from translation are recagnised in
other comprehensive incarme and accumulited under the heading of exchange resenve,

{li}  Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and Nabilities are ranslated at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of
reparting perlod. Exchange differences are recognised in the profit or loss.

(h}  Current tax

The currént tax charge @5 calculated on the basis of the wax ws enacted or substantively enacted a1 the end
of reporting period in the country where the Company operates and generates taxable income, Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected 1o ba paid 10 the ax authorities,

[} Revenue recagnition
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the gond or service is transferred to the customer,
Pepending an the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the good or service
may be transferred gver time or at a poaint in time,

Control of the good or service is transferred over time if the Company's performance provides all of the
benefits received and consumed simultaneausly by the customer.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwize, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer abtains control of the asset

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obiligation i3 messured based on direct
measurements of the value transferred by the Company to the customer.

12

405/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

ANMUIAL REBCORT 20232

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basiz of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Rewenue recognition (Continued)
Transaction price of a contract shall be allocated to individual performance obligation [or distinet good or
service), The objective when allocating the ransaction price is for an entity o aliocate the ransaction price
to each performance obligathon in an amount that depicts the amount of conskderation to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the custamer,
Management and serviee fee Income s recagnised over time Mong with the pragress when senice s rendered,

i Leases
An arrangament, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contalns a lease if the Company
degermines that the arrangement conveys a right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration, Such determination is made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement. regardless of whether the arrangemeants take the legal form of a lease,
Assets leased to the Compary
Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use assel and corresponding labllity at the date of which the
leasad asset s avallable for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period 50 a5 to produce a
constant periodic rate of intarest on the remaining balance of the liability for sach period. The right-of-use
asset |5 depreciated aver the sharter of the assers useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basks,

Assets leased to the Company and the corresponding liabilities are initially measured on a present value basks.
Lease liabdlities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance ficed payments), less any lease Incentives recedvabla,
- variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company, as a lessee,
exercising an aption to terminate tha lease,

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, IT that rate can be determined,
or the incremental borrowing rate of the respective entities. Hight-m‘-u:e assels are measured at cost
comprising the following:
- the amaunt of the initial measurement of lease liability;
- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentive received;
- any Initlal direct costs; and
- rEstoration costs,
Payments assctiated with short-term |¢ases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on & straight-line
basis as an expense in the income statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less. Low-value assets comprise equipment and small itermns of office furnitura,

{k]  Dividend

Dividend distribution is recorded as a liability on the date of declaration.

13
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Revenue and other income

2022 2021
HESD00 HK5000
Revenue
Managemeant and service fee income 46,838 28,684
Other income
Interest income 137 2
45,975 28,686
s Profit before tax
Prafit before tax is stated after chargingfcrediting) the Tollowing:
2022 2021
HES000 HKS000
Wage. salary and other subsidies 3 [4)
Depreciation af right-of-use assets (Note B) 174 M
S1aff costs 1,686 1,715
Directors’ fees 5,014 4,845
5 Flnance costs
2022 021
HES'000 HKES000
Lease liabilites ] 5
] Tax
2022 2021
HES000 HK$'000
Current fax;
Current tax on profits for the year GE47 3,584
(Cnwerifunderprovision in prios year [23) 144
G624 3,728
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AMMUAL REBPORT 20322

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Tax (Continued)

The tax charge on the Company’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arlse using
the Singapore standard rate of income tax as follows:

2022 2021
HES 000 HESDOH0
Profit before tax 39,769 21,610
Tax calculated at Singapore standard rate of income tax of 175 (2021 17%) 6,761 3674
Tax exemption {949 101)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8 11
Income not subject to tax 123) -
(Overunderprovision in prior year [ i] 144
6,624 3,728
Dividend
w2z 2021
HKS'000 HHK$'000
interim dividend paid of HE$1.B (2021: HK$1.4) per share 18000 14,000

Right-of-use assets

The Compary entered into a new lease agreement for office premises in 2022, For this lease, the Company is

required 1o make fixed monthly payments. The Company recogrised MK$535,000 of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities at Inception of the lease.

2022 2021
HES'000 HHKS'000
Az at 1 |anuary 57 23
Recognition of right-of use assets 533 -
Depreciatian (174) (171
Excharge differance - [El]
As at 31 December 418 57
The total cash outflow for the lease im 2022 was HKS 179,000 {2027: HES180,000)
15
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIHGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

9 Fixed assers

Oooooooooooobooooooad

Furniture Camputer
and fixtures  equipment Total
HK$000 HES'B00 HHE$'000
022
AL January 2022 and 31 December 2022
Cost 124 34 158
Accumulated depreciation [124) (34} [158)
et book value - - -
021
AL 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021
Cost 124 34 158
Accumulated depreciation (124) (3 [158)
Not book value - -
10  Cash and cash equivalents
2022 w0
HES'B00 HHES000
Cash at bank 3538 5273
Short-term bank deposits 9615 6,000
13,153 11,275
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
2022 021
Percentage  Percentage
Horig Kong doflar Th GH%
United States dollar 43 6%
Singapore dollar 184 26%
100 1005

14
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ANKNLIAL REPORT 2023

n

12

13

14

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and other receivables

2022 2021

HES000 HKS'D00

Trade receiwvables fram HPH Trust 32 E51 16,476
Other receivables 4 4
A1E55 16,480

Trade and other receivables are mainly denominated in United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar and the

carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the repoarting date s the carnying value of trade and other recevabiles,

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are mainly denominated in United States dollar and the carrying amounts

approximate their fair values.

Lease liabilities

The following detall the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Company's
lease Eabilities, which are based en contractual discounted principal cash flows and the earliest date on which

the Company can be required (o pay:

2022 2021
HES 000 HES'D0D
Within 1 year 178 59
Within 2 to 5 years 242 -
420 59
Share capital
MNumber of
Shares HES
At 31 Decernbir 2021 and 2022 10,000,000 100,001
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIHGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

15
{a)

i)

14

Motes to statemient of cash Nows

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from operations:

Oooooooooooobooooooad

2022 2021
HHES 000 HKS'000
Operating prafit 39,775 21,615
Depreciation (Nole 8) 174 m
Foreign exchange gain [26] -
Operating prafit before working capital changes 39923 21,786
Increase in trade and other recelvables (16,375) (4,156)
Increase in trade and other payables 164 &9
et cash from operations 23712 17,719

Reconclllation of llabilities arising from financing activitles is as follows:

Lease labilities

2022 2021
HKS000 HKS000
As at 1 January 50 237
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into a new lease during the year
[Mate B) L35 o
Principal ebements of lease payments 173) (175)
Interest elements of lease payments (B) (1]
Interest expenses on lease Lahdlities (Note 5) B 5
Currency translation difference (1) (3
As at 31 December 420 5
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AMMNLIAL REPORT 2022

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related parties transactions

Significant transactions between the Company and related parties during the year that are carried out in the
normal course of business are discosed below;

i income from and expense to related parties

2022 2021
HE$'000 HES'000
Incame;
Management fees received from HPH Trust (Note a)
- Base fee 25809 25,060
- Development fee 21,029 3,552
- Acquisition fee - 72
46,838 28684
Expense:
Lease payments [Mote b) 179 180
Motes:

{3} Management fees were charged in accordance with the trust deed dated 25 February 2011,
the first supplemental deed dated 28 April 2014 and the second supplemental deed dated
8 Jure 2020 for HPH Trust (collectively, “Trust Decd”), The base Tee was charged at a fixed fee
of LIS$2500,000 [El}u'ﬁlal‘ent to approximately HK$19,500,000) per annum which ks subject to
increase each year from 2012 by such percentage representing the percentage increase in the
Heng Kong Composite Consumer Price Index, The base fee for the year ended 31 December
2022 Is pavable in cash, As the December 2022 figure for the Hong Kong Composite Consumer
Price Index Is yet to be published as at the date of preparation of these financlal statemenis, the
ad|ustment to the base fee, If required, will be accounted for in the subsequent financial year.

Development fee relates (o the dMMfl"l'lﬂ'll ?"ﬂjet[ by Yantian East Port International Container
Terminals Limited, a joint venture of HPH Trust, was charged In accordance with the Trust
Deed which states that the development fee is payable in arrears for every six months after
the commencement of the development project in respect of project costs incurred over the
privious six-manth period. Pursuant to the Trust Deed,

{1)  where the total project costs incurred in the development project Is less than US$500
millign, the Company Is entitled to recelve a fee of 2.5% of the total project costs incurred
{pro-rated to HPH Trusts 33.73% effective interest in the subject development project);
and

{21  where the total project casts incurred in the development project s US$500 million or
maore, the Company is antitled to receive a fee of U5$12.5 million plus 1.5% of the total
project costs incurred which exceeds USS500 million {pro-rated to HPH Trust's 39.73%
effectivie interest in the subject development project),

Total project cosis incurred since commencement of the project up to 31 December 2022 were
less than US$S00 million, Developmernt fees were calculated based on the 2.5% of the project
costs incurred for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,

Acquisition fee relates to the acquisition of equity interest of 49.0% in SupplyLINE Logistics
Limited by the subskdiary of HPH Trust in 2021. it was charged in accordance with the Trust Deed
where the Sponsor (as defined in the Trust Deed) does not have direct or indirect interests of
mare than 50.0% in the investment acquited, It was calculated based on 1.0% of the Enterprise
Value (as defined in the Trusi Deed) of the subject investment.

{by  The Company leases office premises from a related company and was charged at terms pursuant
to the relevant agreement

i)
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HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE, LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

16  Related parties vransactions (Continued)
{1l Key management compensations

Key management includes directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Fnancial Officer. The
compensation paid or payabde to key management for employes services is shown besiow:

2022 2021
HK$ 000 HK$000
‘Salaries and directors’ fees B,448 6,314

17 Financial risk and capital management

{a) Cash management and funding
The major financlal instruments of the Company include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and lease liabilities. Details of these financial instrumaents are disclosed
in the respective notes to the financial statements. The risk management programme of the Company Is
designed to minimise the financial risks of the Company, These risks include credit risk and foreign curmency
risk.

The management of the Company regularly and clasely monitors its overall net cash position and reviews its
funding costs and matwrity profile,

{b) Capital management

The Company's strategy is to ensure optimal returns te shareholders, while maintaining sufficient flexibility 1o
implement growth sirategses,

{c)  Credit exposure
Thiz Compary's holdings of cash and cash equivalents snd trade and othor recelvables expose the Campany
o counterparty credit risk. The Company contrals its credit risk 1o non-performance by It5 counterparties
through regular review and maonitoring their credit ratings.

{d})  Foreign currency exposurs

Currendy risk arises on financlal instruments denominated in a currency that is ot the functional currency and
being of a monetary nature.

The Company does not have significant foreign currency exposure as Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United
States dollar,
18  Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements set out on pages 6 to 20 were approved by the Board of Directors of the Compary for
isswe an 7 February 2023

20
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2021 12 31
2021 12 31
2021 2020
3 28,686 512 24,955 445
(1,715) (31) (2,290) (41)
(171) (©) (165) A
(5,189) (93) (5,053) (90)
4 4 0 66 1
(7,071) (126) (7.,442) (133)
21,615 386 17,513 313
(5) 0) (11) (0)
4 21,610 386 17,502 312
(3,728) (67) (2,756) (49)
17,882 319 14,746 263
7 14,000 250 14,000 250
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2021 12 31
2021 2020
57 1 231
57 1 231
10 11,275 201 10,763 192
11 16,480 294 12,324 220
27,755 495 23,087 412
12 5,017 90 4,928 88
13 59 1 177 3
3,600 64 2,899 52
8,676 155 8,004 143
19,079 341 15,083 269
19,136 342 15,314 273
13 60 1
19,136 342 15,254 272
14 100 2 100 2
19,036 340 15,154 270
19,136 342 15,254 272
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2021 2020
17,719 316 18,695 334
® © (11) ©)
(3,027) (54) (2,495) (45)
14,687 262 16,189 289
(14,000) (250) (14,000) (250)
(175) 3) (165) ®)
(14,175) (253) (14,165) (253)
512 9 2,024 36
10,763 192 8,739 156
11,275 201 10,763 192
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100 15,154 15,254
17,882 17,882
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100 19,036 19,136
2 270 272
319 319

(250) (250)

2 340 342
100 14,408 14,508
14,746 14,746

(14,000) (14,000)

100 15,154 15,254
2 257 259
263 263

(250) (250)

2 270 272

417/501



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1967 2011
CK
CK
HPH
HPH
048623 50
32-01
FRS
FRS
2021
2021

FRS 116

2022 30

418/501



@

FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS

FRS

FRS
FRS
FRS

FRS
FRS

@
@
®

103

16

37

12
110

2022

2023

@

@
2018-2020¢

@

&)
&)

FRS 28

€Y

D

&)
@

EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FRS

FRS

419/501



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

®)
ECL
FRS 109
12 ECL
©
ECL
@
©

™

420/501



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

()

)

Q)

@™

421/501



(

(

)

)

12

EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

422/501



12 31

EDINETOOOO

OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020
28,684 24,863
2 92
28,686 24,955
2021 2020
* (66)
171 165
1,715 2,290
4,849 4,758
2020
2021 2020
5 11
2021 2020
3,584 2,899
144 (143)
3,728 2,756
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2021 2020

21,610 17,502

17 2020 17

3,674 2,975

(101) (186)

11 151

1)

(20)

144 (143)

3,728 2,756

2021 2020
1.4 2020 1.4
14,000 14,000
2019
513,000
2021 2020

231 399

@171) (165)

(©) 3)

12 31 57 231
2021 180,000 2020 176,000
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2021 12 31
124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)
2020 12 31
124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)
2021 2020
5,275 4,763
6,000 6,000
11,275 10,763
2021 2020
68 70
6 4
26 26
100 100
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2021 2020
59 177
60
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

Far the year ended 31 December 2021
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Note 2021 2020

HKS'000 HKS 000

Revenue and other income 3 28,686 24,955
Staff costs {1.715) {2.290)
Depreciation (17n [165)
Other operating expenses {5.189) {5,053)
Cther non-operating income 4 4 &b
Total operating expenses {7.071) {7.441)
Operating profit 21,615 17,513
Finance costs 5 i5) L]
Profit before tax 4 21,610 17,502
Tax [ {3,728) {2.756)
Profit and total comprehensive inceme for the year 17.882 14,746
Dividend T 14,000 14,000
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ANMLIAL REPOET 2021

Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2021

MNote 2021 2020
HK5000 HESTF
ASSETS
MNon-current assats
Fixed a55¢15 9 - .
Right-of-use assets 8 57 231
57 231
Current assets
Cash ard cash equivalents 10 11,275 10,763
Trade and other receivables 1 16,480 12344
27,755 23,087
Current liabilivies
Trade and other payables 12 5017 4928
Lease liabilities 13 59 177
Current tax labilives 3,600 2899
8,676 8,004
Net currént assels 19,079 15,083
Total assets less current liabilities 19,136 15314
Non-current liability
Lease llabilities 132 - &0
Net assets 159,136 15,254
EQUITY
Share capital 14 100 100
Retained profits __ 19,036 15,154
Total equity 19,136 15,2544
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Note 2021 2020
HKS$'000 HKS'000
Operating activities
Met cash generated from operations 15(a) 17719 18,695
Irterest and other finance costs paid 15(k) {5 {11}
Tax pald (3,027 [2.495)
MNet cash from operating activitles 14,687 16,189
Financing activities
Dividend paid 7 14,000 114,000)
Principal alements of leaase paymenis 15(h} {175) (165])
Cash used in financing activities [14.175) {14,165}
Met changes In cash and cash equivalents 512 2,024
Cash and cash equivalients at beginning of the year 10,763 8,739
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 11.275 10,763

433/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

AHMLIAL REPGRT 2631

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share Retained

caplital profits Tatal
HES000 HES' 000 HES000
2021
Balance at 1 january 2021 100 15,154 15,254
Prefit and total comprehensive income for the year - 17,882 17,8582
Transacbons with owners:

Dividend (Mote 7) - (14,0000 {14,000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 104 19,036 19,136
2020
Balance at 1 January 2020 100 14,408 14,508
Praofit and total cemprehensive income for the year - 14,746 14,746
Transactions with owners:

Dividend (Note T} - (14,000} {14,000)
Balance at 31 December 2020 100 15,154 15,254
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HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

0

General Information

Hulchison Port Holdings Management Pte, Limited {the *Company®] is a limited Fability company incorparated
in the Republic of Singapore on 7 janwary 2011 under the Companies Act 1967 of Singapore, The Company's
immediate holding company Is CK Hutchison Global Imsestments Limited, its ultimate halding compary is CK
Hutchison Holdings Limited, which |s Incorporated in Cayman Islands and s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company acts as the Trustee-Manager of Hutchison Port Heldings Trust ["HPH Trust™) and has dual
responsibliities in safeguarding the Interesss of unitholders and managing the business of HPH Trust,

The registered office address of the Company is at 50 Raffies Place, #3201 Singapore Land Tower, Singapore
(4B623.

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

The fimancial statemaents have been prepared in accordance with Singapare Financial Reparting Standards

("FRS")L The financlal statements have been prepared under the historcal cost convention except as disclosed
In the accounting policies set out in note 2,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise s
judgement in the process ef applying the accounting pelicies of the Company. it also requires the use of
certan critical acpounting estimates and assumplions, However, there are no areas invelving a higher degree
of judgements or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial
statements.

The Company has adopted afl of the new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations issued by
the Accounting Standards Council that are relevant to the Company's operations and mandatory for annual
periad beginning 1 january 2021, The effect of the adoption of these new and revised standards, amendments
and interprelatians was not material 1o the Company’s results or Mnancial position.

g ion of A -

Thie Company has early adopted Amendments 1o FRS 116 Leases on COVID-1 9 related rem concessions Tor the
annual period beginning 1 January 2021, The amendment exempes lessees from having to consider individual
lease contracts to determine whether rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic are lease modifications and allows lessees to account for such rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications. It applies o COVID-19 related rent concessions that reduce fease payments due
an o before 30 June 2022, The smendment does not affect lessors, The effect of the early adoption of this
amendment was not material to the Company's results or fimancial pasition,
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ANMLIAL REPORET 031

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Basls of preparation and significant accounting policles {Continued)
Stand 4 il ffoct

AL the date of authorisation of the financial statements. the fellowing standards and amendments Were in
Issue and relevant to the Company but not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company:

Amendments to FRS 103 (Revised)" Business Combinations and Business Combinations [Basis for
Conclusions)

Amendments to FRS 16" Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendments to FRS 37" Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

Annual Improvements (o FRSs 2018 - 2000 Improvements (o FRSS

Amendments to FRS 19 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Mon-current and

Classification of Liabilities as Current or MNon-current -
Deferral of Efective Date

Amendments to FRS 1 (Revised)® Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to FRS Practice Statement 29 Making Materiality Judgemaents

Amendments (o FRS 89 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

Amendments to FRS 127 Income Taxes

Amendments to FRS 110 and FRS 280 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Assoclate ar Joint Venture

{11 Effecive for annual periods beginning 1 January 2022
{2}  Effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2023
131 Mew effective date to be determined

The Company is assessing the full Impact of these new or revised FRYS. Certain of them may give rise to change
in presentation, disclosure and measurements of certain items in the financial statements. They are not
expected to have material impact to the Company.

{al  Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

Depreciation of fixed assets & provided at rates caloulated (o write off thelr costs to their residual values over
their estimated wseful lives on a straight line basis as follows:

Furniture and fixtures Over the lease term of office premise
Computer equipment 5 years

The gain ar loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset Is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

The asse1s’' resicual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, a1 the end of each
reporting period,

An asset's carmying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount i greater than ns estimated recoverable amount,

n
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HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
(k)  Asset impairment
Imgalrment of financial assels

The Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model to assess impairment of financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprebensive income. The
impalrment methodology 10 be applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk,

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified appreach permitted by FRS 108, which requires
lifetime expected losses for amouwnts due fram customers to be recognised from initial recognition of the trade
recenvables,

As debt instruments at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, the impairment provision applied
is to recognise 12-month ECL.

Impaiement of other assats

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortsation are reviewsed for impairment to determine whether
there & any indication that the carrying values of these assets may not be recoverable and have suffered an
impalrment loss. Il any such indication exists. the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in arder to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Such impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss except where the

asset s carried at valuation and the impalrment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that asset, in
which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease and recognised in other comprehensive income.

{c)  Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for Impairment, Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recagnised in the income statement based an ifetime ECL.
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and demand deposits with maturty less than three moanths,
{e} Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measurad at amortised cost
using the affectve interest mathod,

il Provisions
Pravisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of ecanamic benelits will be required to settle

a present obligation as a result of past events and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

L1
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ANMLI&L REPGET 203

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Basls of preparation and significant accounting palicies (Continued)

(g}  Foreign exchange
iy Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar whereas the functional currency of the
Company |s in United States dollar, Any exchange differences arising from translation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accurmulated wunder the heading of exchange resene,

{ily Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction
dates, Monetary assets and labilities are transiated at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences are recognised In the profit or foss,

{h}  Current tax

The current tax charge is calcwated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or sunstantively enacted at the end
of reporting period kn the country where the Company operates and generates taxable Income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken In tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject 1o interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected 1o be pakd to the tax suthorities.

(i Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the good ar service is transferred to the customer,
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract. control of the good or senvice
may be transferred over time or at a paint in time,

Control of the good or service is transferred over time il the Company's performance provides all of the
benefits received and consumed simultansowsly by the custamer,

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue |5 recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognased at a paint in time when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on direct
measurements of the value transferred by the Company to the customer,

Transaction price of a contract shall be allocated to Individual performance obligation (or distinct good or
service), The objective when allocating the transaction price is for an entity 1o allocate the transaction price
to each performance obligatbon In an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the entity
expects w0 be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer.,

Managemient and service fee incame is recognized over time alang with the progress when service is rendered,

13

438/501



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

1]

4

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases

An arrangement. cOMPrising a ransaction or a series of ransactéons, is or contains a lease If the Company
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to contrel the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Such determination is made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whather the arrangements take the legal form of 2 lease,

U]

i

Assers heased to the Comparny

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use asset and correspending [Eability at the date of which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company, Each lease payment is allocated between the labiliny
and Gnance cost. The Mnance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period S0 &5 1o
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of tha liability for each period,
The right-of-use asset s depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a

straight-line basis,

Assers leased o the Company and the correspanding fabilities are initially measured an a present value
basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incenthves recevable;
variable lease payments that are based an an index or a rate; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company, as a
lessee, exercising an option to terminate the lease,

The lease paymenis are discounted using the interest rate |mplicit in the lease, if that rate can
be determined, or the Incremental borrowing rate of the respective entities. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cast comprising the following:

any Initial direct costs; and

restoration costs.

the amount of the initial measurement of lease llabilitg

any lease payments made at ar before the commencement date, less any lease incentive

Payments associated with shor-tenm feases and leases of low-value A5sels are recognised on a straight-
lime basis as an expense in the ncome slatement, Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
menths or less. Low-value assets comprise equipment and small itemns of office furniture.

Assets leased out by the Cemparny

A |ease is classified as a fimance lease if it transfers substantialty all the risks and rewards incidental
ta ownership of an underlying asset. A lease ks classified as an operating lease if it dees not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset, Income recemved
under operating leases net of any incentives provided to the leasing company are credited to the
income staternent on a straight-line basis over the |ease periods,
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ANMLIAL REPGRET 031

Notes to the Financial Statements

Revenue and ather income

2021 2020
HK5'D00 HKS'000
Renizriue
Management and service feg income 28684 24.863
Oher income
Interest income 2 92
28,686 24,955
Profit before tax
Prafit belore ax is stated aftes char gingforediting) the following:
2021 2020
HE$'000 HES'D00
Wage, salary and other subsidies (Note) (4] (66)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note B) 17 165
Staff costs 1,15 2,290
Directors’ faas 4,849 4,758

Note:

Mainly benefits received from government and other authorites under COVID-19 related support measures
recognised in other non-operating income far the year ended 31 December 2020,

Finance costs
2021 2020
HES 000 HKS'000
Lease liabilitees 5 11
15
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HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

146

Oooooooooooobooooooad

Tax
2021 2020
HES D00 HES'000
Current Lax:
Current tax on prafits for the year 3584 2,899
Under/{aver)provision in prior year 144 {143)
3728 2.756

Thiz tax charge an the Companys pratic betore tax differs feom the theoretical amount that woubd arise using

the Singapore standard rate of income tax a5 follows;

2021 2020
HKS D00 HKS 000
Prafit before tax 21,610 17.502
Tax caleulated at Singapore standard rate of mcome tax of 17% (2020: 17%) 3674 25975
Tax exemption 1101 [1B6)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ik 151
Incorne not sublect to tax - {21)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses - (203
Underf{overiprovision in prior year 144 [143)
3.728 2.756
Dividend
2021 2020
HESD0D HKS000
Invterim dividend paid of HK$1 4 (2020 HES1.4) per share 14,000 14,000

Right-of-use assets

The Company entered into a new lease agreement for office premises in 2019, For this lease, the Company is
required to make fised monthly payments. The Company recognised HK3513,000 of right-of-use assets and

lease llabilities at inception of the lease.

2021 2020

HES Q00 HKS000

As at 1 January i3] 399
Depreciation {(171) [1B5)
Exchange difference (3) [3)
Az at 31 December 57 231

The total cash outflow for the lease in 2021 was HES180,000 (2020: HK$1 76,0001,
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ANMLIAL REPOST 2031

Notes to the Financial Statements

Flxed assets
Furniture Computer
and fMxtures  eguipment Total
HES'000 HES 000 HKS'000
2021
At 1 January 2021 ard 31 December 2021
Cost 124 34 158
Accumulated depreciation (129 (34] [158]
Net book value - - -
2020
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020
Cost 124 34 158
Accumulated depreciation (124) (34 (158
Net book value - - -
Cash and cash equivalents
2021 2020
HKS'000 HKS'D00
Cash at bank 5275 4,763
Short-term bank depaosits 6,000 6,000
1,275 10,763

Cash and cash equivalents are denaeminated In the following currencies:

2021 2020

P!rcentage Percentage

Hong Keng dollar [ ] T
United States dollar &% 4%
Singapore dollar 26% 26%
1 (W% 100

17
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HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Trade and other receivables

2021 2020

HES D00 HKS'000

Trade recedvatdes from HPH Trust 16,476 12,320
Other recenvables 4 4
16,480 12,324

Trade and other receivables aré mainly denominated in United States dollar and the carrying amaounts
approximate their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade and other receivables,

12 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are mainly denominated in United States dollar and the carrying amounis
approximate their fair values.

13 Lease llabilitles
The following detail the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reparting period of the Company's

Iease liabifities, which are based on contractual discounted principal cash flews and the earbiest date on which
the Company can be required 1o pay:

2021 2020
HES 000 HK$000
Within 1 year 59 177
Within 2 to 5 years = &0
50 237
14 Share capital
Number of
Shares HKS
AL 31 December 2020 and 2021 10,000,000 100,001

18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Motes to statement af cash flows

{a)  Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from operations:

2021 2020

HEE000 HKS'000

Crperating profit 21,615 17.513
Depreciation (Mote B) m 165
Foreign exchange loss 2 3
Operating profit before working capital changes 21.7RB 17680
{Increaseldecrease in trade and other receivables {4,156) A404
Irgrease in trade and ather payables B9 521
Net cash generated from operations 17,714 18,695

(k]  Reconciliation of liabilities arising frem financing activities is as follows:
Lease liabilities

2021 2020

HES 000 HHKS'000

As at 1 January 237 403
Principal elements of lease payments 1175] (165)
Imterest elements of lsase payments {51 (e
Interest expenses on lease labilites (Note 5) 5 11
Currency translation difference (3] {1
As at 31 Decembser 59 237

19
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HUTCHISOH PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

16  Related parties transactions

Significant transactions between the Company and related parties during the year that are carried out in the
normal course of busingss are disclosed below,

{1 Income from and expense to related parties

2021 2020
HES 000 HE$'000
Imcome:
Management fees recelved from HPH Trust (Note a)
- Base fea 25,060 24,553
- Dewetlo pmen: fee 3,552 .
- Acquisition fes T2 270
28,684 24,863
Expance:
Lease payments (Note b) 180 176
Notes:

{a} Management fees were charged in accordance with the trust deed dated 25 February 2011,
the first supplemental deed dated 28 April 2014 and the second supplemental deed dated
B |une 2020 for HPH Trust (collectively, “Trust Deed?), The base fee was charged at a fixed fee
of US$2,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HE$19,500,000) per annum which i3 subject 1o
incraase each yaar from 2012 by suth percentage representing the percentage increase in the
Hong Kang Composite Consumer Price index. The base fee for the year ended 31 December
2021 is payable in cash, As the December 2027 figure for the Hong Kong Composite Consumer
Price Index is yet to be published as at the date of preparation of these finandial statements, the
adjustment to the base fee, if required, will be accounted for in the subsequent financial year,

Development fee relates to the development progect by Yantian East Port International Container
Terminals Limited, a joint venture of HPH Trust, was charged in accordance with the Trust
Deed which states that the development fee i payable in arrears for every six months afier
the commencement of the develapment project in respect of project costs incurred over the
pravious six-manth peried. Purswsant to the Trust Deead,

(1}  where the total project costs incurred in the development project & less than US$500
miltion, the Company is entitled to recene a fee of 2,5% of the todal project costs incurred
{pro-rated to HFH Trust's 39.73% effective interest in the subject development project);
and

[2) where the total project costs incurred in the development project is US$500 million or
more, the Company |s entltled to receive a fee of US5$12.5 million plus 1,5% of the total
project costs indurred which exoeeds US$500 million (pro-rated to HPH Trust's 39.73%
effective interast in the subject developmeant project),

For the year ended 21 December 2021, the project costs Incurred from the commencement
of the project to 31 December 2031 was less than US$500 million, the development fee was
calculated based on the 2.5% of the praject costs incurred for the aforesaid period.

Acquisition fees relate 1o the acquisition of equity interest of 49.0% in SupplyLINE Logistics
Lirmited and 9.7287% im Hutchison Inland Container Depots Limived by the subsidiaries of HFH
Trust in 2021 and 2020, respectively. They were charged in accordance with the Trust Deed
where the Sponsor (s defined in the Trust Deed) does not have direct or indirect interests of
mare than 50.0% in the imestments acquired. It was calculated based on 1.0% of the Enmerprise
Walue {as defined in the Trust Deed) of the subject investments.
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ANMLIAL REPORET 031

Notes to the Financial Statements

16 Related partles transactions (Continued)
1] Income from and expense to related parties (Continued)
MNotes (Continued)

by  The Company leases office premises from a related company and was charged at terms pursuant
ta the relevant agreament.

iy Key management compensations

Key management includes directors, the Chief Executive Dfficer and the Chief Financial Officer. The
compensation paid or payable 1o key management for employee services is shown below:

2021 2020
HES'000 HES'000
Salaries and directors' fees 6,314 6,680

17 Financial risk and capital management

{ay  Cash management and funding
The major financial instruments of the Company include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and lease liabilities. Detaits of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes to the financial statements, The risk management programme aof the Company is
designed to minimise the financial risks of the Company. These risks include cradit risk and foreign currency
sk

The management of the Compary regularly and closely monitors its overall net cash position and reviews its
funding costs and maturity profile.

(b} Capital management

The Comparny's Strategy 1% 10 ensure optimal returns (o sharcholders, while maintaining sufficient fesibility 1o
implement growth strategies,

{c) Credit exposure
The Company's holdings of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables expose the Company
1o counterparty credit risk. The Company controls is credit risk to non-performance by 5 counterparies
throwgh regular review and monitoring their credit racngs.

{d}  Foreign currency exposure

Currency risk arises on financial instruments denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency and
being of a monetary nature.

The Company does rot have significant forelgn currency exposure as Hong Kong doflar s pegged to United
States dollar.
18 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statemenis 561 aut on pages & to 21 were approved by the Board of Directoss of the Compary for
issuie on 9 February 2022,

21
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Trust (“the Trust”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) and the statement of financial position of the Trust are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Singapore Business Trusts Act 2004 (“the Act”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS")
so asto give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Trust as at

31 December 2021 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
of the Group and the changes in equity of the Trust for the financia year ended on that date.

What we have audited
Thefinancial statements of the Trust and the Group comprise:

the consolidated income statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the year then ended,;
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021;

the statement of financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2021;

the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity of the Trust for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin
accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

(CONTINUED)

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the accompanying
financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.
Asin all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financia statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Goodwill and other operating assets We have performed the following procedures to
Refer to notes 3(a), 3(b), 3(c) and 14(b) to the financial <A Uate the Group’s impairment assessments
statements

The Group has a significant amount of goodwill and Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
other operating assets arising primarily from the methodology used;

acquisition of deep-water container ports in Shenzhen

and Hong Kong in 2011. Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions

based on our knowledge of the business and
industry and with the involvement of our valuation
specialists;

Goodwill is subject to impairment tests annually and
whenever thereis an indication of impairment, while
other operating assets are subject to impairment tests

when there s an indication of impairment. Considered the potential impact of reasonably

For the purpose of the Group’s impairment possible changes on the key assumptions; and
assessments, impairment was assessed using value-in-

use models for deep-water container portsin Shenzhen

and Hong Kong, which are the cash-generating units

(“CGUSs") of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

(CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Goodwill and other operating asset (Continued)

In carrying out the impairment assessments, significant
judgements are required to determine the assumptions.
The most significant assumptions relate to discount
rates and growth rates in revenue and cost of services
rendered.

Based on the results of these impairment assessments
conducted by the Group, the Group determined that
thereis no impairment of goodwill and other operating
assets. This conclusion was based on recoverable
amounts, calculated under the value-in-use models,
which exceeded the carrying values of CGUs as at 31
December 2021.

The significant assumptions are disclosed in note 14(b)
to the financial statements.

We have performed the following procedures to
evaluate the Group’ s impairment assessments.
(Continued)

Tested source data to supporting evidence on a
sample basis, such as approved budgets and
available market data and considered the
reasonableness of these budgets.

We found the assumptions adopted in relation to these
impai rment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable based on available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

(CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition
Refer to notes 3(e) and 4 to the financial statements.

Revenue from rendering of container handling services
is recognised and accrued with reference to the
throughput handled and the terms of agreements for
such service.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from
container handling services amounting to HK$12,734
million is recognised based on the containers handled
aswell asthe tariff applied. The tariff applied isthe
rate agreed with customers or estimated by
management based on the latest terms of the agreement
or latest negotiation with customers and other industry
considerations as appropriate.

Due to the large variety and complexity of contractual
terms, as well as ongoing negotiations with customers,
significant judgements are required to estimate the
tariff rate applied. If the actual rate differs from the
estimated rate applied, thiswill have an impact on the
accuracy of revenue recognised in the current year and
accrued as at year end.

We have performed the following proceduresin
relation to the accuracy of net revenue recognised and
accrued:

Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
over thetariff applied in container handling
services.
We selected a sample of transactions and:
Agreed the applied tariff to the respective
termsin the contracts or latest
correspondence with customers where the
tariff has been estimated by management.
Agreed throughput handled, used in the
calculation of tariffs, to the operating system
recording throughput.
Tested revenue calculations and agreed the
revenue recognised to the underlying
accounting records.

Checked to bank advices or credit noteson a
sample basis for the net settlement and reviewed
aged items for any disputed amounts.

We found the judgement made by management in
estimating tariff in the revenue recognised and accrued
to be supportable and reasonabl e based on available
evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

(CONTINUED)

Other Information

Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the “ Trustee-Manager”) is responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information refers to the information in the annual report which does not include the financia statements and our auditor
's report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the information on statistics of unitholdings,
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the Other Information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’ s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the information on statistics of unitholdings, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with ISAs.

Responsibilities of Trustee-Manager for the Financia Statements

The Trustee-Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and HKFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide areasonabl e assurance that assets are safeguarded against 10ss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements
and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financia statements, the Trustee-Manager is responsible for ng the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

The Trustee-Manager's responsihilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financid Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAswill aways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasisfor our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Trustee-Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Trustee-Manager with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Trustee-Manager, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Lega and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Trustee-Manager have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Soh Kok Leong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 9 February 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the
“Company”) are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and
Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2021 and of the financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Company comprise:

the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended,;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code
of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Statement
included in pages 1 to 2 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 9 February 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Trust (“the Trust”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) and the statement of financial position of the Trust are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Singapore Business Trusts Act 2004 (“the Act”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS")
so asto give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Trust as at
31 December 2022 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
of the Group and the changes in equity of the Trust for the financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Trust and the Group comprise:

the consolidated income statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2022;

the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity of the Trust for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin
accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST
(CONTINUED)

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the accompanying
financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.
Asin all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financia statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Goodwill and other operating assets We have performed the following procedures to
Refer to notes 3(a), 3(b), 3(c) and 14(b) to the financial VA Uate the Group’s impairment assessments:
statements

The Group has a significant amount of goodwill and Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
other operating assets arising primarily from the methodology used;

acquisition of deep-water container ports in Shenzhen

and Hong Kong in 2011.

Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry and with the involvement of our valuation

Goodwill is subject to impairment tests annually and
whenever thereis an indication of impairment, while
other operating assets are subject to impairment tests

when there is an indication of impairment. specialists,

For the purpose of the Group’s impairment

assessments, impairment was assessed using value-in- Considered the potential impact of reasonably
use models for deep water container ports in Shenzhen possible changes on the key assumptions; and

and Hong Kong, which are the cash generating units
(“CGUSs") of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

(CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Goodwill and other operating asset (Continued)

In carrying out the impairment assessments, significant
judgements are required to determine the assumptions.
The most significant assumptions relate to discount
rates and growth rates in revenue and cost of services
rendered.

Based on the results of these impairment assessments
conducted by the Group, the Group determined that
thereis no impairment of goodwill and other operating
assets. This conclusion was based on recoverable
amounts, calculated under the value-in-use models,
which exceeded the carrying values of CGUs as at 31
December 2022.

The significant assumptions are disclosed in note 14(b)
to the financial statements.

We have performed the following procedures to
evaluate the Group’ s impairment assessments:
(Continued)

Tested source data to supporting evidence on a
sample basis, such as approved budgets and
available market data and considered the
reasonableness of these budgets.

We found the assumptions adopted in relation to these
impai rment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable based on available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

(CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition
Refer to notes 3(e) and 4 to the financial statements

Revenue from rendering of container handling services
is recognised and accrued with reference to the
throughput handled and the terms of agreements for
such service.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from
container handling services amounting to HK$11,688
million is recognised based on the containers handled as
well asthe tariff applied. The tariff applied isthe rate
agreed with customers or estimated by management
based on the |atest terms of the agreement or latest
negotiation with customers and other industry
considerations as appropriate.

Due to the large variety and complexity of contractual
terms, as well as ongoing negotiations with customers,
significant judgements are required to estimate the tariff
rate applied. If the actual rate differs from the estimated
rate applied, thiswill have an impact on the accuracy of
revenue recognised in the current year and accrued as at
year end.

We have performed the following proceduresin
relation to the accuracy of net revenue recognised and
accrued:

Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
over thetariff applied in container handling
Sservices.

We selected a sample of transactions and:

Agreed the applied tariff to the respective
terms in the contracts or latest

correspondence with customers where the
tariff has been estimated by management.

Agreed throughput handled, used in the
calculation of tariffs, to the operating system
recording throughpuit.

Tested revenue calculations and agreed the
revenue recognised to the underlying
accounting records.

Checked to bank advices or credit noteson a
sample basis for the net settlement and reviewed
aged items for any disputed amounts.

We found the judgement made by management in
estimating tariff in the revenue recognised and accrued
to be supportable and reasonabl e based on available
evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

(CONTINUED)
Other Information

Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the “ Trustee-Manager”) is responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information refers to the information in the annual report which does not include the financia statements and our auditor
's report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the information on statistics of unitholdings,
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the Other Information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’ s report, we
conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in thisregard.

When we read the information on statistics of unitholdings, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with 1SAs.

Responsibilities of Trustee-Manager for the Financial Statements

The Trustee-Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and HKFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide areasonabl e assurance that assets are safeguarded against 1oss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements
and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financia statements, the Trustee-Manager is responsible for ng the Group's ability to continue asa
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee-Manager's responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will aways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individualy or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia
statements.

492/501



EDINETCI I
I o o o o o =225 )
O000oOoOddooooooooOoOaOon
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasisfor our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Trustee-Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Trustee-Manager with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communi cated with the Trustee-Manager, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Trustee-Manager have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’ s report is Soh Kok Leong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 7 February 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the “ Company”)
are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting
Standards in Singapore (“FRSS") so asto give atrue and fair view of the financia position of the Company as at 31 December
2022 and of the financia performance, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Company comprise:

the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“ SSAS"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors Statement included in
pages 1 to 2 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide
areasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against 1oss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to
maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

The directors responsihilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor' s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT

PTE. LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Lega and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 7 February 2023
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